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Chairlady’s Statement
FRE®S

To Our Shareholders,

On behalf of the Board of Directors of CT Vision S.L. (International)
Holdings Limited (the “Company’, together with its subsidiaries, the
“Group”), | am pleased to present you with the annual report for the
year ended 31 December 2022.

BUILDING CONSTRUCTION BUSINESS

The fifth wave of outbreak of the epidemic caused by the Omicron
variant erupted in late December 2021 and has been spreading
rapidly in the community, resulting in an increasing number of
confirmed cases. To respond to the consequential surging in the
number of confirmed cases, the government has taken strict
social distancing measures to curb the spread of the pandemic.
These measures not only resulted in a shortage of labour supply,
but also disrupted some construction-related supply chains. As a
result, the construction works under the building work business
were significantly delayed and the related construction costs were
increased accordingly.

Under the shadow of the pandemic, the investment sentiment was
affected and competition in the construction market intensified.
Furthermore, the tendering process of projects was also delayed due
to the epidemic, resulting in a significant drop in revenue from the
building work business during the period.

Considering the continuous loss-making position for the three
consecutive financial years of the building construction business
and the adverse impact of the cost overruns derived from COVID-19
pandemic on the construction business, which is uncertain when it
will be relieved, the Board has decided to terminate the continuous
investment in the construction business. The construction business
was disposed on 29 November 2022, in order to reduce operating
costs and net losses and to enhance the profitability of the Group.
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Chairlady’s Statement
FR®S

RENEWABLE ENERGY BUSINESS

The clean and low carbon transformation has been accelerated with
the successive introduction of policies related to “carbon peak and
carbon neutrality” (‘Dual Carbon”). On 1 June 2022, the 14th Five-
Year Plan for Renewable Energy Development (the “Development
Plan”) clearly stated that by 2025, the annual electricity generation
from renewable energy will reach approximately 3.3 trillion kilowatt
hours. During the 14th Five-Year Plan period, China’s incremental
renewable energy generation will account for more than 50% of the
total incremental electricity consumption, and the generations of
wind and solar power generation will double. The implementation
of the Dual Carbon goal and the confirmation of development of a
new power system with new energy as the mainstay signify a real
explosion of the new energy industry.

In response to the Dual Carbon targets, the State Council has
issued the “Working Guidance for Carbon Dioxide Peaking and
Carbon Neutrality in Full and Faithful Implementation of the New
Development Philosophy” (BN EEEEEZEEHMERER
HEF BRI F TEBE R ), provinces have also introduced
various incentive policies, which, coupled with the continued
reduction in the cost of wind power and PV power, signify a new
wave of growth in the new energy industry.

It is expected that more renewable energy power generation
plants will be established following the promulgation of the
Development Plan. Taking into account the potential demand for
the construction of the aforementioned power generation plants
and the extensive experience of the Group in the renewable energy
industry, it is anticipated that the Development Plan will drive the
growth of the renewable energy business and bring more business
opportunities to the renewable energy construction projects of
the Group. However, the expected energy transformation and Dual
Carbon targets still rely on policy guidance, and while competition
intensifies, risks of profit deterioration must also be prevented.
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Chairlady’s Statement
FRE®S

E-COMMERCE BUSINESS

The Group entered into a memorandum of understanding with
Huaji Science and Technology (Beijing) Satellite Communication
Technology Co., Ltd* (FERH I R BEBERFEERA
&) ("Huaji Science and Technology”), under which the Group
effectively controls part of the equity interest in Huaji Science and
Technology and the joint venture established by Huaji Science and
Technology through a variable interest entity arrangement so that
the Group will, relying on the technological achievements of Huaji
Science and Technology, expand its business scope and revenue
source by tapping into China’s smart fisheries market, and through
joint cooperation and complementary strengths with system
builders, the Group will establish a complete digital ecosystem for
China’s fisheries industry, contributing to digital transformation of
China’s fisheries industry.

The development of digital agriculture in Mainland China has
become a major trend and has entered a new stage of accelerated
development in recent years. The marine economy and digital
agriculture are potentially huge areas of growth. The Group will seize
the opportunity brought about by the promotion of digitalisation of
agriculture in China to serve the national development strategy and
to expand more business opportunities for the Group’s e-commerce
business. It is expected that the above business model will bring
about synergies for them and inject new growth momentum into
the Group, while empowering the development of smart fisheries in
China.

Leveraging the platform of Zhejiang Shunlian Network Technology
Company Limited* (AT IEH: A48 Fl B IRA B)) (‘Zhejiang
Shunlian”), the Group will develop more business opportunities
in various new economic segments and actively expand its
e-commerce business, so as to expand economic benefits diversify
its business risks.

BUILDING INFORMATION MODELLING
SERVICES

The Group-operates-building. information modelling services
’ th’[oq_gﬁ_','.itgf'.s-u_'bsi"'diaries, Nanjing CT Vision Smart City Technology
',l.'«iﬁi'i.t_éd*_,-(_,ﬁ??fEPBE?"ET%’%“%HFE%EEIZE'//_\\E), including
p.'ro_'\'/%_ijénf6f_".information management platform such as digital

; p'érl{é, _skn__éf-t construction, and smart cities based on building
. information modelling (BIM), Internet of Things, blockchain and
other technologies to governments and enterprises.
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Chairlady’s Statement
FR®S

In recent years, the Group has increased its investment in research
and development and expanded the scope of applications in the
industry. It has signed contracts for a number of projects in the
fields of park, city bus, metro and port, such as the “Electronic Sand

nou

Table Procurement Project of Block B of Zongbao Building’, “Smart

nou

Buildings of Suzhou Bus Centre Building’, “Development of Smart
Management Platform of Suzhou Bus Station’, “Development of
Digital Twin System of Huangshi Xingang Terminal’, “BIM Project of
Line 8 of Suzhou Rail Transit” and “Renai Road Station and Songtao

Street Station of Suzhou Metro VIIITS-10 Bid".

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, after divesting our building construction business,
the group will reallocate its internal resources to renewable
energy business, e-commerce business, and building information
modeling services. We will also continue to explore opportunities
for transformation in emerging industries and technology, bid
on appropriate potential projects, diversify investments in high-
quality industries, proactively respond to market changes and
challenges, so as to promote the Group’s sustainable development
while embarking on a comprehensive new business strategy that
will contribute to the economic transformation and upgrade, and
ultimately pay back values to the society.

APPRECIATION

I would like to take this opportunity to extend my sincere
appreciation to our shareholders, customers, subcontractors and
suppliers for their continuous support. In the meantime, | would
also like to thank our Board of Directors, the management team and
the staff of the Group for their hard work and dedication. The Group
will continue to adhere to its commitment of “putting our hearts
together and work hand in hand to create win-win” and take on
various challenges in the business environment together.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEF DT

BUSINESS REVIEW

The principal activities of CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings
Limited (the “Company’, together with its subsidiaries, collectively
the “Group”) are (i) building construction business which mainly
includes foundation works and ancillary services and general
building works; (i) renewable energy business; (iii) e-commerce
business; and (iv) others which mainly include building information
modelling services and sales of piles.

In October 2014, the Group entered into a construction contract in
Saipan (the “Contract”) as a main contractor, providing foundation
works and ancillary services and general building works (the
“Project”’), for a construction project. The foundation works
commenced from May 2015 to October 2015. The general building
works commenced in May 2016 and was preliminary expected
to complete in or around February 2018. However, due to (i) the
inclement weather; (ii) change of policy on workers visa application,
such that a substantial amount of workers could not obtain the
necessary work permit for carrying out the work at the site; (iii)
change in design as instructed by the customer (“Customer A”");
and (iv) permit for this work not having been obtained, the progress
of the Project was hindered. On 19 March 2018, Customer A has
issued a letter to us indicating its agreement to our application
for extension of time and the completion date of the Project was
extended to February 2019. As the aforementioned factors kept
affecting the progress of the Project, the completion date of the
Project was further delayed to 2020 financial year.

The outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic has posed significant
impacts on global economy and business environment, as well
as the progress of the Project. Certain countries and regions have
implemented various travel restrictions and border controls against
the COVID-19 pandemic in an effort to contain the spread of the
pandemic, such inbound travel restrictions have also disrupted
certain parts of construction-related supply chains, including the
supply of construction materials and labour. The above factors led
to a further delay of the progress of the Project which was originally
scheduled to -r'_ééu_me construction in the middle of 2020 financial
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE ST

After taking into account of (i) the prolonged delay and
uncertainties of the Project; (i) the financial position of Customer
A; (iii) the increased costs and expenses relating to the Project
caused by the delay; and (iv) the burden of diverging further
resources from other businesses of the Group, the Company has
had further discussions with Customer A regarding the resumption
of the Project and settlement of the outstanding amounts due to
the Group in relation to the Project (the “Outstanding Amounts”),
including proposed settlement schedule of the Outstanding
Amounts (the "Repayment Schedule”).

To further ensure the recoverability of the Outstanding Amounts,
Win Win Way Construction Co. Ltd (“Win Win Way"), a then indirectly
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim
('Dr. Kan"), Mr. Lee Sai Man (“Mr. Lee") and Win Win Way Investment
Limited (“Win Win Way Investment”) (a company then owned by
as to approximately 33.3% of each of Dr. Kan, Mr. Lee and Mr. Wong
Siu Kwai) entered into a deed of agreement on 7 January 2022
(the “Deed of Agreement”). Pursuant to the Deed of Agreement,
Dr. Kan, Mr. Lee and Win Win Way Investment agreed to provide
certain security in favour of Win Win Way, for the due performance
of the repayment obligation of Customer A under the Repayment
Schedule.

Each of Dr. Kan, Mr. Lee and Win Win Way Investment acknowledges,
confirms and agrees that if Customer A defaults in making any
payment of the Outstanding Amounts under the Repayment
Schedule, Win Win Way can enforce any or all the above security at
its sole and absolute discretion and without further notice.

The Project has resumed in January 2022. In April 2022, Customer A
entered into an interim advisory services agreement (the “Advisory
Services Agreement’) with an internationally renowned hotel
brand management company (the “Management Company”),
pursuant to which the Management Company will provide certain
advisory services in connection with the design, construction,
furnishing and equipping of the hotel under the brand of the
Management Company (the “Hotel"). The services include (i)
advising Customer A and its consultants-on brand standards
necessary for the Hotel to be operated. as a brand hotel, and- (||)
reviewing the design documents prepared by Customer-A-and. its
consultants to verify compliance with brand standards. Due to the
Advisory Services Agreement, it is expected that the completion of
the Project will be further delayed to December 2023.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEF DT

On 29 November 2022, the Company (as the Vendor) and Fame
Rich Capital Investment Limited (as the purchaser) (the “Purchaser”)
entered into a sale and purchase agreement (the “Sale and
Purchase Agreement’), pursuant to which (i) the Company has
conditionally agreed to sell and the Purchaser has conditionally
agreed to purchase the sale shares, representing 100% equity
interest in Win Win Way Investment; and (ii) the Company has
conditionally agreed to assign and transfer to the Purchaser the
indebtedness owed by the subsidiaries of Win Win Way Investment
to the Company (the “Indebtedness”) at the consideration of
HK$56,436,592 (the “Disposal”).

As at 29 November 2022, Win Win Way Investment is a direct wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, Win Win Way Investment and its
subsidiaries (the “Target Group”), which was mainly engaged in the
building construction business and the sales of piles.

The consideration of HK$56,436,592 was determined with reference

o (i) the appraised value of the sale shares as at 30 September 2022
of nil; (i) the net book value of the Indebtedness as at 31 October
2022 of HK$54,436,592; and (iii) the negotiation between the
Purchaser and the Company, including the value of qualifications of
(a) registered general building contractor; (b) registered specialist
contractor in demolition works category; (c) registered specialist
contractor in foundation works category; and (d) registered
specialist contractor in site formation works category under the
Target Group, which has been agreed between the Company and
the Purchaser.

Upon completion of the Disposal, the Company ceased to have any
interests in Win Win Way Investment.

Details of the Sale and Purchase Agreement were disclosed in the
Company's circular dated 23 December 2022.

Building construction business

The building construction business was disposed in 2022. It
comprised of foundation works and ancillary services and general
buildings works. -

Found&f}f&n']ﬁ/prkshn& Ancillary Services

. _Foundatlo'n Works mamly include mini-piling, percussive piling, rock
'S@cketed ln steel H-pile and bored pile, together with construction

of p|le caps “Ancillary services mainly include site formation and

~ demolition Works for example, clearance of the site, excavation,
- demolition of a building or any substantial part of a building.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE ST

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were 10 (2021:
21) foundation works and ancillary services projects contributing
revenue of approximately HK$47.0 million (2021: HK$135.7 million)
to this business stream.

General Buildings Works

General building works mainly include structural alteration and
additional works, development of superstructures such as entire
dwelling, office buildings, stores, public utility buildings, farm
buildings, etc.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, there were 3 (2021:
2) general building works projects contributing revenue of
approximately HK$37.1 million (2021: HK$12.7 million) to this
business stream.

Renewable energy business

TIEN New Energy Development Limited (“TIEN New Energy”) is an
investment holding company and its subsidiaries are principally
engaged in engineering development and qualified form main
engineering, procurement and construction in electric power
projects in the People’s Republic of China (‘PRC") with a focus in
application of renewable in the construction sector of the PRC.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, renewable energy
business contributed approximately HK$201.8 million revenue
(2021: HKS$177.2 million) of the Group. As at the date of this
report, the Group had a total of 8 contracts (2021: 7 contracts)
on hand (including contracts in progress and contracts yet to be
commenced) and the amount of contract sum yet to be recognised
as at 31 December 2022 amounted to approximately RMB169.7
million (2021: RMB200.2 million).

E-commerce business

Zhejiang CT Shunlian Network Technology- Company- Limited* Gin
SRR IBE BRI A RAE)is principally engaged in the
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provision of procurement service and- related  online and offline

consultation services to e-commerce companies.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEF DT

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the e-commerce
business contributed approximately HK$10.0 million revenue (2021:
HK$25.7 million) to the Group.

Others
Building information modelling services

Nanjing CT Vision Smart City Technology Limited* (Bi R F XK= 1S
EERTERARAT)Is principally engaged in the provision of
building information modelling services.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the building information
modelling business contributed approximately HKS$1.6 million
revenue (2021: HK$4.2 million) to the Group.

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Continuing Operations

For the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's revenue
amounted to approximately HK$213.4 million (2021:
HK$207.1 million). The increase was mainly attributable to the
increase in revenue from renewable energy business of
approximately HK$24.6 million partially offset by the decrease in
revenue from e-commerce business of approximately HKS$15.7
million.

The Group's gross profit margin decreased from approximately
11.7% in 2021 to gross profit margin of approximately 7.1% in 2022.
The decrease in gross profit margin was mainly due to the change in
revenue mix. E-commerce business contributed higher gross profit
margin than renewable energy business.

Selling and administrative expenses (the “S&A Expenses”)
primarily comprise staff costs, business development expenses,
transportation expenses, depreciation, bank charges, office
expenses and professional charges. Due to (i) decrease of legal
and profe_ss%o'haf'fe'_.és after resumption of trading; and (ii) decrease
in selling-expenses; the S&A Expenses for the year decreased by
a,pproxlr’ﬁately HK$135 million to approximately HK$51.3 million,
compared Wlth approxrmately HK$64.8 million in 2021.

12
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Management Discussion and Analysis

SR S RO

Discontinued operations

Revenue of the discontinued operations was primarily from building
construction business which was amounted to approximately
HK$84.1 million (2021: HKS$148.4 million), representing significant
decrease of approximately HK$64.3 million. Since 2019, this segment
was suffering from loss. The loss for the year decreased from
approximately HK$60.7 million for the year ended 31 December
2021 to approximately HK$49.5 million.

As a result, the Group recorded a loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of approximately HK$87.5 million as
compared with the loss of approximately HK$100.8 million in 2021.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND

ﬂ:ﬁ«(&h%i’%

ERLEREEFHNNGTERBEETRZER
HAA4 TEHEBIT (20214 : 14848 8ET) » K
18R V4964 38 BB TT o %0 B8 B 20194 HEFE A S
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607BEBAEATTR/DEAI495EE BT

At FEBAKEERERABEE AELEE
#9987 5B BB TT ) 2021 K5 18491008 B B AT o
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE
As at As at
31 December 2022 31 December 2021
#2022 1220216
12H831H 12H31H
Current ratio’ mEIEEE 1.3 16
Gearing ratio (%) 1R EEEE (%)? 30.1 229
Net debt to equity ratio (%) FEEER LT %) 23.9 12.0
Interest coverage ratio* ) S E = (28.5) (32.4)
Notes: B 5T
1. Current ratio based on the total current assets divided by the total 1. MELEERBRBEELERLURSBRE

current liabilities.

2. Gearing ratio based on the total debt (which includes borrowings,
lease liabilities and amount due to immediate holding company)
divided by total equity and multiplied by 100%.

3. Net debt to equity ratio based on net debt- (which include
borrowings, lease liabilities and-amount due-to-immediate
holding company less cash and bank.balances) divided by equity
attributable to owners of the Company and multiplied by, 1 00%. " i

4. Interest coverage ratio based on the loss before tax and:interest
from continuing operations divided by finance costs incurred.

st o
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEF DT

EMPLOYEES

The Group had 57 employees as at 31 December 2022. The Group
offers competitive remuneration package that is based on overall
market rates and employee performance, as well as performance
of the Group. Remuneration package is comprised of salary,
performance-based bonus, and other benefits including training
and provident funds.

CAPITAL COMMITMENTS
The Group had no capital commitments as at 31 December 2022.

CHARGES ON GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2022, the lease liability of a solar power system
granted to the Group was secured by the trade receivables of
approximately HK$47,200 (31 December 2021: HK$72,000) and
registered capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary amounted to RMB10
million (31 December 2021: RMB10 million).

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
The Group had no contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2022.

FOREIGN EXCHANGE EXPOSURE

The Group has no significant exposure to foreign currency risk as
substantially all of the Group's transactions are denominated in
Hong Kong dollars, United States dollars (‘USD”) and Renminbi
("RMB"). In this respect, the only risk it is faced arose from exposure
mainly to RMB and USD. These risks were mitigated as the Group
held Hong Kong dollars, USD and RMB bank accounts to finance
transactions denominated in these currencies respectively.

As at 31 December 2022, the Group does not have a foreign
currency hedging.-policy in respect of its foreign currency
transactions, assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its
foreign currency exposure closely and will consider using hedging
mstruments in respect of significant foreign currency exposure as
~and _\{yhé;n gpp_[ognate
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE ST

SHARE OPTIONS

Written resolutions of the sole shareholder were passed on 23
June 2017 to adopt the share option scheme (the “Scheme”). No
share options have been granted, exercised or cancelled under the
Scheme since its adoption date and up to the date of this report.
The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the
date of adoption.

PROSPECTS

Building Construction Business

The fifth wave of outbreak of the epidemic caused by the Omicron
variant erupted in late December 2021 and has been spreading
rapidly in the community, resulting in an increasing number of
confirmed cases. To respond to the consequential surging in the
number of confirmed cases, the government has taken strict
social distancing measures to curb the spread of the pandemic.
These measures not only resulted in a shortage of labour supply,
but also disrupted some construction-related supply chains. As a
result, the construction works under the building work business
were significantly delayed and the related construction costs were
increased accordingly.

Under the shadow of the pandemic, the investment sentiment was
affected and competition in the construction market intensified.
Furthermore, the tendering process of projects was also delayed due
to the epidemic, resulting in a significant drop in revenue from the
building work business during the period.

Considering the continuous loss-making position for the three
consecutive financial years of the building construction business
and the adverse impact of the cost overruns derived from COVID-19
pandemic on the construction business, which is uncertain when it
will be relieved, the Board has decided to terminate.the continuous
investment in the construction business. The construction business
was disposed on 29 November 2022, in order to.reduce dp‘erating

costs and net losses and to enhance the profitability of the Group. .
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEF DT

Renewable Energy Business

The clean and low carbon transformation has been accelerated with
the successive introduction of policies related to “carbon peak and
carbon neutrality” (‘Dual Carbon”). On 1 June 2022, the 14th Five-
Year Plan for Renewable Energy Development (the “Development
Plan”) clearly stated that by 2025, the annual electricity generation
from renewable energy will reach approximately 3.3 trillion kilowatt
hours. During the 14th Five-Year Plan period, China’s incremental
renewable energy generation will account for more than 50% of the
total incremental electricity consumption, and the generations of
wind and solar power generation will double. The implementation
of the Dual Carbon goal and the confirmation of development of a
new power system with new energy as the mainstay signify a real
explosion of the new energy industry.

In response to the Dual Carbon targets, the State Council has
issued the “Working Guidance for Carbon Dioxide Peaking and
Carbon Neutrality in Full and Faithful Implementation of the New
Development Philosophy” (RAR B EREEMERMERER
BT B ZE A A TERIRE R ), provinces have also introduced
various incentive policies, which, coupled with the continued
reduction in the cost of wind power and PV power, signify a new
wave of growth in the new energy industry.

It is expected that more renewable energy power generation
plants will be established following the promulgation of the
Development Plan. Taking into account the potential demand for
the construction of the aforementioned power generation plants
and the extensive experience of the Group in the renewable energy
industry, it is anticipated that the Development Plan will drive the
growth of the renewable energy business and bring more business
opportunities to the renewable energy construction projects of
the Group. However, the expected energy transformation and Dual
Carbon targets still rely on policy guidance, and while competition
intensifies, risks of profit deterioration must also be prevented.

16 o1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1S) 2R3 7 IR A 5
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEE ST

E-Commerce Business

The Group entered into a memorandum of understanding with
Huaji Science and Technology (Beijing) Satellite Communication
Technology Co., Ltd* (FERH I R BEBEREERA
&) ("Huaji Science and Technology”), under which the Group
effectively controls part of the equity interest in Huaji Science and
Technology and the joint venture established by Huaji Science and
Technology through a variable interest entity arrangement so that
the Group will, relying on the technological achievements of Huaji
Science and Technology, expand its business scope and revenue
source by tapping into China’s smart fisheries market, and through
joint cooperation and complementary strengths with system
builders, the Group will establish a complete digital ecosystem for
China’s fisheries industry, contributing to digital transformation of
China’s fisheries industry.

The development of digital agriculture in Mainland China has
become a major trend and has entered a new stage of accelerated
development in recent years. The marine economy and digital
agriculture are potentially huge areas of growth. The Group will seize
the opportunity brought about by the promotion of digitalisation of
agriculture in China to serve the national development strategy and
to expand more business opportunities for the Group’s e-commerce
business. It is expected that the above business model will bring
about synergies for them and inject new growth momentum into
the Group, while empowering the development of smart fisheries in
China.

Leveraging the platform of Zhejiang Shunlian Network Technology
Company Limited* i LB A4 R B R A ) (‘Zhejiang
Shunlian”), the Group will develop more business opportunities
in various new economic segments and actively expand its
e-commerce business, so as to expand economic benefits diversify
its business risks.
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Management Discussion and Analysis

BEEF DT

Building Information Modelling Services

The Group operates building information modelling services
through its subsidiaries, Nanjing CT Vision Smart City Technology
Limited* (MRAXEEERRTERARAF), including
provision of information management platform such as digital
parks, smart construction, and smart cities based on building
information modelling (BIM), Internet of Things, blockchain and
other technologies to governments and enterprises.

In recent years, the Group has increased its investment in research
and development and expanded the scope of applications in the
industry. It has signed contracts for a number of projects in the
fields of park, city bus, metro and port, such as the “Electronic Sand

"on

Table Procurement Project of Block B of Zongbao Building’, “Smart

nou

Buildings of Suzhou Bus Centre Building’, “Development of Smart
Management Platform of Suzhou Bus Station’, “Development of
Digital Twin System of Huangshi Xingang Terminal’, “BIM Project of
Line 8 of Suzhou Rail Transit” and “Renai Road Station and Songtao

Street Station of Suzhou Metro VIIITS-10 Bid".

OUTLOOK

Looking ahead, after divesting our building construction business,
the group will reallocate its internal resources to renewable
energy business, e-commerce business, and building information
modeling services. We will also continue to explore opportunities
for transformation in emerging industries and technology, bid
on appropriate potential projects, diversify investments in high-
quality industries, proactively respond to market changes and
challenges, so as to promote the Group's sustainable development
while embarking on a comprehensive new business strategy that
will contribute to the economic transformation and upgrade, and
ultimately pay back values to the society.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SEkEHREEASRE

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The composition of the Board of Directors during the year end up to
the date of this annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Rui (“Mr. Wu”), aged 48, joined the Group as an executive
Director and the vice chairman on 26 April 2019. Mr. Wu has
extensive experience in international trading business and
transnational investment. He graduated from Shanghai Customs
College in July 1995 and subsequently joined the Ford Motor
Company, a vehicle manufacturer based in the United States of
America, as a customs specialist since September 1995, where he
was responsible for analysing the import and export data, managing
the supply chain of the company and conducting research on
General Agreement on Tariff and Trade. From December 1998 to
January 2002, Mr. Wu worked for GE Healthcare Corp. (formerly
known as Amersham Pharmaceutical PLC), a company with principal
business of research and development of medical technology and
life science as the director of the global supply chain development
(Far East) and was responsible for managing the supply chain of
the company and the project “Sourcing from China” From March
2002 to June 2015, he served as the general manager of Beijing
Grand Integrity Merchants Company* QL RHERBEEERA
B]) (a company principally engaged in trading of construction
materials), where he was responsible for looking for global business
opportunities in relation to new material of architecture. Since
December 2015, Mr. Wu served as the managing director of Xinjiang
Kaige Energy Company, a company that is principally engaged in
clean energy business, where he was responsible for searching for
global green technology business opportunities and handling new-
energy-related projects of the company.
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Biographies of Directors and Senior Management

SEkEHREEASRE

Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (“Dr. Ho"), aged 45, joined the Group
as an executive Director and the chief executive officer on 26 April
2019. He is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Company.
Dr. Ho obtained his bachelor degree of Business Accounting
from the Monash University of Australia in 2002 and completed
his dissertation of “One Belt, One Road Post-Doctoral Research
Programme” at the University of Oxford in May 2018. Dr. Ho has
extensive experience in finance and investment, especially in the
renewable energy and technology, media and telecom (TMT)
industry. He has previously participated in the investment in smart
energy cities in the PRC, which involved green building construction
projects and application of renewable energy in the construction
sector. Dr. Ho is currently the chairman of Asia-Pacific Smarter
Energy Alliance (BB X B = RETRE XK ). Dr. Ho was an executive
director of Century Energy International Holdings Limited (formerly
known as China Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited),
a company listed on GEM of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (stock code: 08132) from May 2013 to
February 2019. He was also an independent nonexecutive director
of Asia Resources Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00899) from February
2015 to October 2016, and an independent nonexecutive director
of Sunrise (China) Technology Group Limited (now known as Koala
Financial Group Limited), a company listed on GEM of the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 08226) from April 2014 to August 2016.

Mr. Guo Jianfeng (“Mr. Guo”), aged 50, joined the Group as an
executive Director on 6 July 2018. He is also a director of certain
subsidiaries of the Company. He holds a degree in Engineering
Management from Jiangsu Radio and Television University* (I &k /&
FEEIR K in the PRC. He also holds the professional qualification
as certified senior engineer issued by Human Resources and Social
Security Development of Jiangsu Province* GLER& A S1E R
11 = {RBEEE) of the PRC. He has over 27 years of experience in the
construction industry and has participated in various large-scale
construction projects and new energy investment projects. From
August 1991 to June 2006, he worked in Yancheng Transaction
Bureau, Jiangsu Province* (LER & BEIA2i@/E), holding his last
position as project manager. From July 2006 to March 2010, he
worked in China City Construction 2nd Engineering Bureau Co.,
Ltd* (PR B = TRRBBRAE), holding his last position as
branch company general-manager. From April 2010 to August 2014,
he wa_;-the'_ph'ief executive officer of Jiangsu Zhongmeng Energy
G{r_,ou_b '_,C_'@f:j_-td.*'fiiI’ﬁ%quEﬁEf}?%@ﬁFE@a). From September
_i@jf4f'fé-pet§bje_r 2015, he was the general manager of the Jiangsu
r'ar_jch_f_'co;mpan-y of Tian Hong Yang Guang New Energy Investment
Co. Ltd* (REMBHHEERIZE B MR/AB)). He has joined Jiangsu

~ Zhong Tian Hui New Energy Technology Co. Ltd.* (T &F 5 FAEH AE
- REEZAEPRAE) since November 2015 as chief operation officer.

e He is currently a director of TIEN New Energy Development Limited.
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SEkEHREEASRE

Mr. Sun Dexin (“Mr. Sun”), aged 35, joined the Group as an
executive Director on 7 March 2023. He has more than ten years
of experience in investment and enterprise management. Mr. Sun
graduated from Cheung Kong Graduate School of Business with
a Master of Business Administration in Financial Management. Mr.
Sun obtained the membership of senior management in TUV NAND
International Energy* (TUVEEEBIREREMREBIRNEERK) in
2014. He passed Licensing Examination for Securities and Futures
Intermediaries of the Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
and obtained Hong Kong Securities and Investment Institute
Practicing Certificate (Assets Management) in 2017. He also received
a practicing certificate from Asset Management Association of China
in the same year. From April 2012 to February 2015, he served as an
investment director of Harbin Gloria Pharmaceuticals Co., Ltd. (SZSE
Stock Code: 002437.57), where he was responsible for assisting
in investment, mergers and acquisitions and providing relevant
financial advisory services. Since March 2015, he has served as the
executive president of Shenzhen Zhongtian Hongxin Private Equity
Investment Fund Management Co., Ltd* CRIIFRZEEFASZRE
HESEIEAERAE). From October 2017 to August 2018, Mr.
Sun served as an independent non-executive director of Century
Energy International Holdings Limited (formerly known as China
Oil Gangran Energy Group Holdings Limited) (stock code: 08132),
which is a company listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). From May 2019 to November
2022, Mr. Sun served as the vice president of TIEN New Energy
Development Limited, an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company. From November 2022 to March 2023, he served as the
vice president of the Company.

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Du Yi (“Ms. Du”), aged 80, joined the Group as a non-executive
Director and the Chairlady on 26 April 2019. Ms. Du is a daughter
of Mr. Du Zhongyuan, one of the renowned revolutionary martyrs
of China during the second Sino-Japanese War. From March
1998 to March 2013, Ms. Du served as a member of the Chinese
People’s Political Consultative Conference and-has curren’tly been
an honourable retired member. Since September-1995, she. has
been acting as a director of Doo’s Trading Limited* *i&%f%ﬁ
FR/AF]), a company with principal business of foreign inyvestment
introduction to infrastructure development in the PRC and-export
agency for coal.
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Mr. Lu Qiwei (“Mr. Lu”), aged 39, joined the Group as a non-
executive Director on 25 January 2021. Mr. Lu obtained his
bachelor’s degree in information engineering from Chengdu
University of Technology in June 2007 and his master’s degree
in business administration from Sun Yat-sen University in June
2014. He is currently a national economics professional, first
level/senior technician in relation to corporate human resources
management (BEIR —#k b2 A NEREIELM), senior enterprise
trainer certified by the China Adult Education Association (CAEA)
of the Ministry of Education of the People’s Republic of China and
certified international senior professional lecturer of the American
Certification Institute. Mr. Lu has more than 10 years of experience
in working with foreign enterprises and management experience.
He worked in various companies including but not limited to UTAC
Dongguan Ltd. (4 X ¥ & §8 (R5) AR T, Magneti Marelli
Automotive Electronics (Guangzhou) Co,, Ltd. (BIR A5 BB F (B
M) BFR/AT]) and Delphi Packard Electric System Co., Ltd. ({2 &R
BIkEBERARGLABRAT) before working in Zhe'iang Shunlian
Network Technology Company Limited* GiiIIEBH 48R A
FR/AF]) as the vice president and the president of the research
institute.

Independent non-executive directors

Dr. Tang Dajie (“Dr. Tang”), aged 54, joined the Group as an
independent non-executive Director on 16 July 2019.

Dr. Tang has over 20 years of experience in investment, financing
and corporate management. He held various senior positions in
different companies, including the Vice President of Shenzhen
Capital Group Company Limited, the Deputy General Manager of
Shenzhen Airport (Group) Company Limited, the Managing Director
of Shenzhen High-tech Investment Group Company Limited, the
Manager of the Department of Investment of E Fund Management

Company Limited and the Director of China Southern Asset
Management. Since October 2015, Dr. Tang has been the chairman
and the founding partner of Triwise Capital Management Company
Limited.
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Dr. Tang also serves as the Vice Chairman of Shenzhen Venture
Capital Association, the Executive Vice President of Shenzhen
Science and Technology Entrepreneur Promotion Association,
Vice President of Shenzhen General Chamber of Commerce and
a part-time professor of Southwestern University of Finance and
Economics, Shenzhen Audencia Business School, Xidian University
and China University of Mining and Technology. Dr. Tang obtained
his bachelor’s degree in business management from the Beijing
University of Chemical Technology in July 1990, his master’s degree
in monetary banking from Xiamen University in July 1995 and his
doctorate degree in industrial economics from Jinan University in
June 2007.

Mr. Ng Kwun Wan (“Mr. Ng"), aged 59, joined the Group as an
independent non-executive Director on 3 December 2021. He
has over 20 years of experience in management, accounting and
finance industry. From November 1994 to August 2004, he worked
for New World Development (China) Limited and New World China
Enterprises Projects Limited, both are the wholly-owned subsidiaries
of New World Development Company Limited, a company listed on
the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00017), with his last position as a
deputy general manager. He then joined Smart Faith Management
Limited, a subsidiary of South China Holdings Company Limited,
a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 00413),
as a general manager of industrial operations in the real estate
department and was responsible for overseeing the company's
operations in the Tianjin Region from September 2006 to March
2009. He has also been appointed as an independent non-executive
director of China Boton Group Company Limited since December
2009, the shares of which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 03318), an independent non-executive director of Zhongzhi
Pharmaceutical Holdings Limited since June 2015, the shares of
which are listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code: 03737), an
independent non-executive director of Sunray Engineering Group
Limited since March 2020, the shares of which are listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 08616), and an independent non-
executive director of Asia Energy Logistics Group Limited since July
2020, the shares of which are listed-on the Stock Exchange: (stock
code: 00351). ; -

Mr. Ng obtained his Bachelor's degree in Accounting.and Finance
from the University of Manchester (formerly known -as-the
Manchester Polytechnic) and his Master's degree majoring in
Accounting from the University of New South Wales in July 1988
and May 1990 respectively. He has been a member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants since July 1993.
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Dr. Lin Tat Pang (‘Dr. Lin"), aged 66, joined the Group as an
independent non-executive Director on 30 June 2022. He obtained
his Bachelor of Law, Master of Law and Doctor of Law, from Peking
University (JEZAE2) in 1992, 1998 and 2009 respectively. He also
completed his Postgraduate Certificate in Hong Kong Law in City
University of Hong Kong (previously known as City Polytechnic of
Hong Kong) in 1993. Dr. Lin is a member of the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants and a fellow of the Chartered
Association of Certified Accountants, United Kingdom. He is also a
member of the Chartered Institute of Arbitrators, United Kingdom.
Dr. Lin has over 40 years of experience in accounting, finance and
public offerings. He was company secretary of Sun Hung Kai & Co.
Limited (a company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange
with stock code: 00086) from November 1990 to November 1992.
He worked for Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and
the Stock Exchange between 1992 and March 2013, and his last
position was senior consultant to the Listing, Listing & Regulatory
Affairs Division of Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited.
Dr. Lin has been an independent non-executive director of China
Aluminum Cans Holdings Limited, a company listed on the Stock
Exchange (stock code: 06898) since June 2013, an independent
non-executive director of Leadway Technology Investment Group
Limited (previously known as HNA Technology Investments
Holdings Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock
code: 02086) since December 2017 and an independent non-
executive director of 3D Medicines Inc,, a company listed on the
Stock Exchange (stock code: 01244) since December 2022.
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Company Secretary

Mr. Lo Chun Man (“Mr. Lo"), aged 42, joined the Group as
the financial controller, the company secretary and one of the
authorised representatives on 16 July 2019.

Mr. Lo has over 19 years of extensive working experience in the
fields of accounting, financing and auditing disciplines. Mr. Lo was
the Deputy General Manager of the Finance Department of China
Aerospace International Holdings Limited (stock code: 00031) from
April 2016 to June 2019. He was the Finance Manager of the same
company from December 2008 to April 2016. Before joining China
Aerospace International Holdings Limited, he worked in Deloitte
Touche Tomatsu from September 2003 to December 2008 with his
last position as a Senior.

Mr. Lo obtained the Degree of Master of Science in Professional
Accountancy from University of London and Degree of Bachelor of
Arts (Honours) in Accountancy from The Hong Kong Polytechnic
University. He is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and a fellow member of the Association of
Chartered Certified Accountants.

*  For identification purpose only.
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The Board submits the annual report together with the audited
financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 (the “Financial Statements”).

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS

The Company is a company incorporated in Cayman Islands and
domiciled in Hong Kong. The principal place of business of the
Company at Room Nos. 808-814, 8th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30
Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company is an investment holding company, and its
subsidiaries are principally engaged in building construction
business, sales of piles, renewable energy business and e-commerce
business. The activities and particulars of the Company’s subsidiaries
are shown under note 15 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group, with the description of the
principal risk and uncertainties, for the year ended 31 December
2022 and the likely future development, are included in the section
headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual report
on pages 8 to 12, which forms part of this report.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS, SUBCONTRACTORS AND
SUPPLIERS

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's five largest
customers in aggregate accounted for approximately 79.1% (2021:
62.7%) of the Group's total revenue. The largest customer accounted
for approximately 32.1% (2021: 18.7%) of the Group's total revenue.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's five largest
subcontractors in aggregate accounted for approximately 82.8%
(2021: 85.7%) of the Group's total subcontracting fee. The largest
subcontra_c.t—o'r.' a'c'co_unted for approximately 37.7% (2021: 53.1%) of
the G_[oup’s_,totél schontracting fee.

% Dunng the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group's five largest

:suppllers in- aggregate accounted for approximately 96.8% (2021:
57 SGV) The Iargest supplier accounted for approximately 50.8%
5.2%) of the Group’s total material costs.
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At no time during the year have directors, their associates or
any shareholder of the Company (which to knowledge of the
directors owns more than 5% of the number of issued shares
of the Company) had any interest in these major customers,
subcontractors and suppliers.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on pages 89 to 90 of this annual report.

The Board does not recommend the payment of a final dividend for
the year ended 31 December 2022.

BORROWINGS AND BANK OVERDRAFTS

Particulars of borrowings and bank overdrafts of the Group as at 31
December 2022 are set out in note 27 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results and of the assets and liabilities
of the Group for the last five financial years are included in the
section headed “Financial Summary” in this annual report on page
200, which forms part of this report.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

The Company did not enter into any contract, other than the
contracts of service with the directors or any person engaged in the
full-time employment of the Company, whereby any individual, firm
or body corporate undertakes the management and administration
of the whole, or any substantial part of any business of the
Company.

TAX RELIEF

The Company is not aware of any relief from taxation av-ailable-'fo' :

shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s shares.
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES Al iR EE

As at 31 December 2022, the Company's reserves available 220228128310 » A A B 0D IR T AR B IR
for distribution to shareholders of the Company amounted to  BIENAMOBEBTT (2021128318 : 18798
approximately HK$94.0 million (31 December 2021: HK$187.9 &HBJT) ©

million).

Movements of the reserves of the Group are set out in the ZAEBMNHEEEESHENASFERFBENGSELR
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 93 of this &#)FKe
annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT VE- -BERSZE

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the ~ AEBEZE202FE 12831 B IEEENYIE - BEK
Group during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in the — RBEEBFIEHNEAMERERME160
note 16 to the Consolidated Financial Statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME B tEsTEl

A share option scheme (the “Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to a ~ AAT BRIEARA B ME—BEE 12017965 23H
written resolutions of the sole shareholder of the Company passed BB EE RZEZ RN —BERESTE (T%st
on 23 June 2017 for the purpose of recognizing and motivating the ~ #l1) » U S ER2HE LKW o fEAREE(F
contributions that the eligible participants have made or may make  HAIEEAFUE E K EE -

to the Group.

Pursuant to the Scheme, the Company may grant options to () IRIEZEtE) ZAT T BE)SRITHAE ;()AE
an executive; (i) the director or proposed director (including an BE{EAHEATMNESNIZEES (BIEBILIE
independent non-executive director) of any member of the Group; HITES) ;(i\AEBIRME AT BIEER 25
(ili) the consultant, business or joint venture partner, franchisee, HEEBHE BFHEEF RO/ REBERAE ;
contractor, agent or representative of any member of the Group; (iv)  (iv)[AZ<&EB(ERI 5 & A T IR 425 B & o H fth
the person or entity that provides research, development or other — F#Tsx 38 s (Efal55:0 « BERS « B2 o EthARFEA91E
technological support or any advisory, consultancy, professional ~ AZERE ; R(v) EZER A THEZHBE AR
or other services to any member of the Group; and (v) the close  BEB&#E » MURIEZ T 8RR A AT FIIRS ©
associate of any of the foregoing persons, to subscribe for shares in

the Company in accordance with the terms of the Scheme.

An offer of the grant of an option shall be deemed to have been RZANABEHE R HBREB LM R HFTETERR
accepted when the acceptance letter of the option duly signed by — HARS IR B AR & % A & % 52 B 00 B IR A 3 i
the grantee together with a remittance in favour of the Company > EEEB B B BRENREME AR B X
of HK$1.00 by way- of consideration for the grant thereof is received  HIFRIE1 0078 70 Hs » IR B R B EARIR R 1F
by,.the.C,ér_fj'p;a'hy'\:/vi-thin the period specified in the letter containing ~ BEE#Z# 1% L BEAEEHoF B ERE > BE

',t'k%'e':'.qff:e'f_,.oﬁ'th'e grant of the option. No offer shall be capable — EAJBI LI, A] (4% o

“of (_')'.r'-_té-rﬁéi'rj'.open for acceptance after the expiry of 10 years

it Cdm}ﬁeﬁc_i_'rig on the Listing Date.
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The subscription price of a share shall not be less than the highest
of (i) the nominal value of the share; (ii) the closing price of the
shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on
the offer date; and (iii) the average of the closing prices of the shares
as stated in the Stock Exchange'’s daily quotations sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the offer date.

The share options granted are exercisable at any time during a
period as the Directors may determine which shall not exceed 10
years from the date of an offer for the grant of the option, subject to
the provisions for early termination contained in the Scheme, and
provided that the Directors may determine the minimum period
for which an option has to be held or other restrictions before its
exercise.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon exercise
of all options to be granted under the Scheme and any other
schemes must not, in aggregate, exceed 10% of the number of
shares of the Company in issue on the Listing Date (i.e. 51,200,000
shares). The total number of shares issued and to be issued upon
exercise of the options granted to each participant (including
exercised, cancelled and outstanding options) in any 12-month
period up to the date of grant shall not exceed 1% in aggregate of
the shares of the Company in issue. The maximum number of shares
which may be allotted and issued upon exercise of all outstanding
options granted and yet to be exercised under the Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company must not, in aggregate,
exceed 30% of the shares of the Company in issue from time to
time.

The Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years after the
date of adoption.

No share options have been granted, exercised or cancelled under
the Scheme since its adoption date and up to the date of this
annual report and the total number of shares available for grant
under the Scheme was 51,200,000 Shares, representing.10% of the
issued share capital of the Company of the Listing Date. . "
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DIRECTORS

The Directors during the financial year and up to this annual report
were:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Rui (Vice chairman)

Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (Chief executive officer)
Mr. Guo Jianfeng

Mr. Sun Dexin (appointed on 7 March 2023)

Mr. Wong Kee Chung (resigned on 7 March 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Du Yi (Chairladly)
Mr. Lu Qiwei
Ms. Yip Man Shan (resigned on 30 June 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Tang Dajie

Mr. Ng Kwun Wan

Dr. Lin Tat Pang (appointed on 30 June 2022)

Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (retired on 30 June 2022)

Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (retired on 30 June 2022)

Pursuant to Article 108 of the Articles of Association, one-third of
the Directors for the time being, or if their number is not three or
a multiple of three, then the number nearest to but not less than
one-third, shall retire from office by rotation at every annual general
meeting of the Company provided that every Director (including
those appointed for a specific item) shall be subject to retirement by
rotation at least once every three years. A retiring Director shall be
eligible for re-election.

Further, pursuant to-Article 112 of the Articles of Association, any
Director appointed by the Board to fill a casual vacancy shall hold
office only until the first general meeting of the Company after his
app_o_.in_fiﬁ"’é,'n-t_"_énd'. be subject to re-election at such meeting.
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In accordance with Articles 108(a) and 112 of the Articles of
Association, Mr. Sun Dexin, Dr. Lin Tat Pang, Mr. Wu Rui, Mr. Lu Qiwei
and Dr. Tang Dajie shall retire from office at the 2023 annual general
meeting (the "2023 AGM"). All of the above retiring Directors, being
eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at the 2023 AGM.

BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Brief biographical details of Directors and senior management are
set out in the section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior
Management”on pages 19 to 25 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS' SERVICE CONTRACTS

All Directors have entered into a service contract with our Company
for an initial fixed term of three years and renewable automatically
until terminated by not less than three months notice in writing
served by either party on the other expiring at the end of the initial
term or any time thereafter.

None of the Directors being proposed for re-election at the 2023
AGM has a service contract with any member of the Group which is
not determinable by the Group within one year without payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is not provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
Articles of Association and there was no restriction against such
rights under the laws of the Cayman Islands, which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

The Articles of Association provide that every Director shall be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against-all-losses and
liabilities incurred or sustained by him-as a Director in the execution
of his duties or otherwise in relation thereto, ‘provided that sut’_h
indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of. fraud. or
dishonesty which may attach to such Director. There is appropriate
directors” and officers' liability insurance coverage for the Directors
and officers of the Group. Such provision was in force as of date of
this annual report and during the financial year ended 31 December
2022.
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DIRECTORS' INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS,
ARRANGEMENTS OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance to which
the company, or any of its holding company, subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party, and in which a Director had a material
interest, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the
year.

DIRECTORS' INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SECURITIES

As at the 31 December 2022, the interests and short positions of
the Directors in the Shares, underlying shares or debentures of the
Company and its associated corporations, within the meaning of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (the "SFO"), which (a) were
required to be notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to Divisions 7 and 8 of Part XV of the SFO (including
interests and short positions which they are taken or deemed
to have under such provisions of the SFO); or (b) were required,
pursuant to section 352 of the SFO, to recorded in the register
referred to therein; or (c) were required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model
Code”) as set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules, were as
follows:

Long position in the Shares of associated corporation of the
Company:

EFENRS LRGP ER

RERNFAETAERD > XAF) HEEAERA
B MEARNEARNBARNBRESIAESRIH
PHAEARTNERNEARS LHHET-

EFNEFPNERRRE

2022128318 EER AR B REAKEE
(EERBHERPERY (FBHERBPEERGD)) B
B& 15 ~ ABRABR D EEE TS QIRIEES K&
HAE B SEXVER 7 K8 BB BRI & AN B KB 2
FrER KA (BEREES RS K5 R
B EERRABEENER KR ; RbIRE
B RS KB F 3528 BN KPR E B B M E
SRR ERAE  WORBEHN EHRAM R+
B EMBITAESETES T ZIZESTR (MZ
7R BRNIEANE KBRS K E N
e

RAAEEBCEBBRGFRFE

Name of Capacity/ Approximate
Name of Directors associated corporation nature of interest Total interests Percentage
EEHR R Bk 7K B % 7 55 HEME R BOBESL
Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory CT Vision Investment Limited Beneficial owner 448,000 22.4%
(“CT Vision Investment”)
A &g+ PREERERRAT BEanEREA 448,000 22.4%
(THRXRERE)
CT Vision Investment Beneficial owner 156,000 7.8%
PREERE EmBEBA 156,000 7.8%
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS IN

SECURITIES

So far as was known to the Directors, as at 31 December 2022, the

following persons (not being Directors or chief executive of the
Company) had, or were deemed to have, interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying Shares which would fall to be disclosed
to the Company and the Stock Exchange under the provisions of
Divisions 2 and 3 of Part XV of the SFO or who were directly or
indirectly interested in 10% or more of the nominal value of any

class of share capital carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at

general meetings of any member of the Group:

TERRNESFPFHNEDS

FREEFTAN FR20225E12831H U AL (IEE
ERALBRBITHAZ) KRR NF
AR AEERIEES RS KRG EXVERS
2R3 BBV B A AN B M B R P i BB B9 M i
KA WM HEFM AT RFABEBR N ERER
FRIRERATNREAT ERANTALERIRA
HEEPEENEEER 0% LR .

Percentage of

Capacity/ Number of shareholding in
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest Shares held the Company
QT
RERE s g5, EEtE Frfsizin &8 IEHET 7 EE
CT Vision Investment Beneficial interest 389,160,000 51.15%
PREERE BEmiEm
Ms. Lin Zhiling (“Ms. Lin")! Interest in a controlled 389,160,000 51.15%
corporation
mEZEZ LT (ML) ZEGEEER
Condover Assets Limited (“Condover Assets”) Beneficial interest 71,880,000 9.45%
Condover Assets Limited (I Condover Assets ) EmEn
Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (“Dr. Kan")? Interest in a controlled 71,880,000 9.45%
corporation
HEHEL (EiEt)?2 SEGEEER
Mr. Lee Sai Man (“Mr. Lee")? Interest in a controlled 71,880,000 9.45%
corporation
SHREE (TFE5hE)) REGEEER
Mr. Wong Siu Kwai (“Mr. Wong")* Interest in-a controlled 71,880,000 . 945% .
corporation ™. e e
=AESRE (TFhE)) SEGAEER
Ms. Poon Man Yee® Interest of spouse 71,880,000 9.45%
ERE LTS FoiBtEm
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Percentage of

Capacity/ Number of shareholding in
Name of Shareholders Nature of interest Shares held the Company
{(=F WA
IRERIE 55 #EmiE Fi #5582 15 8 B BRHEE S LE
Ms. Sheba Kishinchand Daswani® Interest of spouse 71,880,000 9.45%
BHIrEL A+ BB
Ms. Ho Lai Kuen’ Interest of spouse 71,880,000 9.45%
IR L 7 BB
Forwin Credit Limited® Security interest in Shares 71,880,000 9.45%
EREERRAES AR PR IRES
Forwin Holding Limited® Security interest of 71,880,000 9.45%
controlled corporation
ERERBRATS REGEEN RS S
BC Financial Group Limited® Security interest of 71,880,000 9.45%
controlled corporation
BlIlEMERFRAES RPEHE BN RS S
Mr. Bian Ce® Security interest of 71,880,000 9.45%
controlled corporation
TRzTES ZEREER RS D
Mr. Guo Min?® Security interest of 71,880,000 9.45%
controlled corporation
FRIR ST REGEENRERE D
Mr. Guo Hongan Beneficial interest 60,000,000 7.89%
FA Lt BaEnm
Notes: Mtk -
1. Ms. Lin beneficially owns 44.80% of the issued share capital of CT 1. MU LTEGRBEEPRAERE4480%B 1T

Vision Investment. Therefore, Ms. Lin is deemed, or taken to be,

intere’étéd"in_éll the Shares held by CT Vision Investment for the

.-purpose of the SFO.

e 'Kén"_'be_'néﬁciall)'/ owns 33%% of the issued share capital of 2.

4%y ...Cc}'hcfo.ve'r Assets. Therefore, Dr. Kan is deemed, or taken to be,

el "ihte_rest'ed in all the Shares held by Condover Assets for the purpose

_ of the SFO.
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3. Mr. Lee beneficially owns 33%% of the issued share capital of
Condover Assets. Therefore, Mr. Lee is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the Shares held by Condover Assets for the purpose
of the SFO.

4. Mr. Wong beneficially owns 33'5% of the issued share capital of
Condover Assets. Therefore, Mr. Wong is deemed, or taken to be,
interested in all the Shares held by Condover Assets for the purpose
of the SFO.

5. Ms. Poon Man Yee is the spouse of Dr. Kan. Accordingly Ms. Poon
Man Yee is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares in
which Dr. Kan is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

6. Ms. Sheba Kishinchand Daswani is the spouse of Mr. Lee.
Accordingly Ms. Sheba Kishinchand Daswani is deemed, or taken to
be, interested in all the Shares in which Mr. Lee is interested for the
purpose of the SFO.

7. Ms. Ho Lai Kuen is the spouse of Mr. Wong. Accordingly Ms. Ho Lai
Kuen is deemed, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares in which
Mr. Wong is interested for the purpose of the SFO.

8. Based on the notifications filed to the Company, on 16 May 2022,
71,880,000 shares were pledged to Forwin Credit Limited which is
owned as to 50% by Mr. Bian Ce and 50% by BC Financial Group
Limited, which is in turn wholly owned by Forwin Holding Limited, a
company wholly owned by Mr. Guo Min. Therefore, Forwin Holding
Limited, BC Financial Group Limited, Mr. Bian Ce and Mr. Guo Min
are deemed to, or taken to be, interested in all the Shares held by
Forwin Credit Limited for the purpose of the SFO.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors were
not aware of any other person (other than the Directors) who had,
or was deemed to have, interests or short positions in the shares or
underlying shares which would fall to be disclosed to the Company
and the Stock Exchange under the provisions. of Divisions 2 and 3
of Part XV of the SFO, or who was directly or indirectly interested
in 10% or more of the nominal value of ‘any class of'_sh'a"re'"capital

carrying rights to vote in all circumstances at general r‘ﬁeet_ihg‘s'.c_)f-.

any member of the Group.

3. EHREEmBEACondover Assets 3315% 5 1T
AR AL MBS RAERAMS » =h4E
WIR AW E (EfCondover AssetsFTiF B MFTA
B ER EEo

4, BHEEEmBEACondover Assets 3315% 5 1T
AR AL MBS AAERAMS "mh4E
WIR AW E (EfCondover AssetsFTiF B MFTA
B ER o

5, BRR L RBELNES AL MEBHFK
HERIIMS > B R EHERIEFERE
BEEARENFARMPER Ex-

6. BMERLEB/FTRENRB - FIL > EBEHF R
HERIIMS  BERZETHERNEFERE
FREERREMFARGFEREEm -

7. AEBEZ L RERENES AL MEBHFK
HERMIIMS BB EREANEFNE
FEER RN ARNFER EEm -

8. BERARBRIZBEHE  K20220F5816
H 71,880,000l M EIRIFFEREERRA
B HATREERD)ISHREBERATD
AEERS50%K50%Em o B |ERERB R AT
AEBRERBRATRNEEWB AR ME R
ERERABBITIRALEZEHES - ALL > 5
FHHERBEERAMS  ERERBRAT B
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AR ER EERRABMBEENA
B RES R
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DIRECTORS' RIGHT TO ACQUIRE SHARES OR
DEBENTURES

Apart from as disclosed under the paragraph headed “Directors’

Interests and short positions in Securities” above, at no time during
the year was the Company, its holding company, subsidiaries
or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangement to enable the
Directors of the Company or their associates to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares or debentures of the Company or
any other body corporate.

PURCHASE, SALES OR REDEMPTION OF THE
COMPANY’S LISTED SECURITIES

Neither the Company nor its subsidiaries had purchase, sell or
redeem any of the Company’s listed securities during the year
ended 31 December 2022.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

The significant related party transactions entered into by the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2022 are set out in note 33 to
the Consolidated Financial Statements.

None of these related party transactions constitute a connected
transaction (as defined in the Listing Rules) that is required to be
disclosed.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company
and within the knowledge of the Directors, the Company has
maintained the prescribed public float under the Listing Rules from
the Listing Date and up to the date of this annual report.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has applied the principles of all the applicable code
provisions o_f the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set
out in Appendlx 14 of the Listing Rules as its own code on corporate
_ ggve’mé_’,r']t_é.p'r_'éct.ices. In the opinion of the Directors, the Company
! '_'ha_s'"fpét'thqf'code provisions set out in the CG Code during the year

. ended 31 December 2022.

36 G vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited 5 B (BIFE) 2R3 5 1RA S

EFRERMOABEENER

fR EX TEENEFTRDE KR —RPTIKER
ZI RERNEAERE ARF HERAT W
BABNFERWEBADBEST LERZH AR
ARBDEFHARENBHEANBBRBEELRTHE
I E At E N BRSPS AR M

BE -HEHBOEATN EHES

REZE2022F 12831 IEFE » KRB HEMWBA
SEEE HEREBELAATER LHES-

FAEK S X5

REBREE2022F 12831 HIEFEFTIINEK
REEG S R S E R e I R R MI5E33 0

BEZSEBR LD XZEHARERS (EER LT
MR AT LUIREE

RANTBFRRE

REBERABMFINLARENRMESN A
B EHHAREESERAP—EEF LR
AR TFREENARFTFRE

TXER

NABIBERE EMRAMEE+ Oz BEEE
PR (M EEASFR)) FrBERSTAMEX Z R
MEAERG Z PXEERBRTFA BEEDRA &K
NEREE20202F12831BIEEEDETEES
JASTRIFT RSP RIE S o

Annual Report 2022 FE R



Directors’ Report
EEFERS

RETIREMENT SCHEMES

The Group participates in the mandatory provident fund prescribed
by the Mandatory Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of the
Laws of Hong Kong). Save as the aforesaid, the Group did not
participate in any other pension schemes during the year ended 31
December 2022.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE FOR
SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of the Listed Issuers contained in
Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules as its own code of conduct of
dealings in securities of the Company by Directors. Upon specific
enquires of all the Directors, each of them confirmed that they have
complied with the required standards set out in the Model Code
during the year.

EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

Save as the disclosure in note 34 to the Consolidated Financial
Statements, there is no material subsequent event undertaken by
the Company or the Group after 31 December 2022 and up to the
date of this annual report.

AUDITOR

The Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022
have been audited by ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited, who will retire
and being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2023
AGM.

By order of the Board
DuYi
Chairlady

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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The Board is pleased to present this Corporate Governance Report
of the Company.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Company has
complied with all the code provisions set out in the Corporate
Governance Code (the “CG Code") contained in Appendix 14 of the
Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS' SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) as
set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules upon the Listing. All
the Directors confirmed that they had complied with the required
standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report in response
to the specific enquiry made by the Company.

The Board has established written guidelines no less exacting than
the Model Code for relevant employees in respect of their dealings
in the securities of the company as required under the CG Code.
No incident of non-compliance of such guidelines by the relevant
employees was noted by the Company during the year ended 31
December 2022 and up to the date of this annual report.

THE BOARD

The Board acts in good faith, with due diligence and care, to
discharge its duties concerning the best interests of the Company
and its shareholders. The primary role of the Board is to protect
and enhance long term shareholders' value; it also oversees the
management, business, strategies and financial performance of
the Group to ensure that good corporate governance policies and
practices are implemented within the Group. The management is
responsible for the execution of the strategies in the Group's daily
operations and the implementation of the risk management and
internal control systems.

38

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited 7 X JIEE# (BIFR) =R B R A T

EFEMMREFRRANEEE GRS

TEERER

REE2022F 12831 EFEE A AT —HET E
MRS+ O EE ST ((BEERFR)
FrEipy 2 Zp=FRIMES °

ERETESRS

NABER LRGN E TR 8+ FrEi iy
MBETAEZETESIHNEEST (MME%ESF
Bl AR ABUEH A DTH%E  2EEEHOHT
WMERHE200NFENENHEEERNRBEERE
R H A BT R E AR E AR £ o

EEREREBECEXEATINRENEHERE
BANBBESEEFEEEIES RIERAER
THESFH c RA TR EZ2002FE 12831 BEEER
BEAFRAPMEZIRERMERERZFISSI
BEM-o

ER=g

ESERFAARERRNREN D Bl 8
BEREERTEHBS EFENTIEHEARE
REAKRRNEREE TEEEEAEENE
B EB RBEAVHERER UEFREAEERNEE
MREFNEXERERAER EEEEENA
EENEREERRTRBLEREREERN
EBEERI R

Annual Report 2022 FE R



Corporate Governance Report
AN S
TEEBRWMT

/]

The composition of the Board during the year and up to the date of
this annual report is set out below:

Executive Directors

Mr. Wu Rui (Vice chairman)

Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (Chief executive officer)
Mr. Guo Jianfeng

Mr. Sun Dexin (appointed on 7 March 2023)

Mr. Wong Kee Chung (resigned on 7 March 2023)

Non-executive Directors

Ms. Du Yi (Chairlady)
Mr. Lu Qiwei
Ms. Yip Man Shan (resigned on 30 June 2022)

Independent Non-executive Directors

Dr. Tang Dajie

Mr. Ng Kwun Wan

Dr. Lin Tat Pang (appointed on 30 June 2022)

Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (retired on 30 June 2022)

Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (retired on 30 June 2022)

The biographies of the Directors during the year and up to the date
of this annual report and the relationships among them are set out
in the “Biographies of the Directors and Senior Management” section
on pages 19 to 24 of this annual report.

CHAIRLADY OF THE BOARD AND CHIEF
EXECUTIVE OFFICER (“CEO”)

The Chairlady of the Board is Ms. Du Yi and the CEO of the
Company is Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory. The roles of the Chairlady of
the Board and the CEO of the Company are segregated to ensure
their respective independence, accountability and responsibility.
The major duties of the Chairlady are to provide leadership. to the
Board and spearhead overall corporate development'amd_ strategic
planning whilst the CEO is responsible for implemeht’mg the
decisions and strategy approved by the Board and managing day—
to-day operations of the Group with the support of the executive
Directors.
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The executive Directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. They lead the
Group's management team in accordance with the directions set
by the Board and are responsible for ensuring that proper internal
control system is in place and the Group’s business conforms to
applicable laws and regulations. The executive Directors bring a
good balance of skills and experience to the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors provide a wide range of expertise
and experience and bring independent judgment on issues
relating to the Group's strategies, development, performance and
risk management through their contribution at the Board and
committee meetings.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The independent non-executive Directors provide their
independent judgment on the development, performance and
risk management of the Group. The independent non-executive
Directors serve the important function of ensuring and monitoring
the basis for an effective corporate governance framework. Their
participation provides adequate checks and balances to safeguard
the interests of the Group and its shareholders including the review
of continuing connected transactions described below. The Board
consists of three independent non-executive Directors and all of
them have appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or
related financial management expertise. The Board confirms that the
Company has received from each of the independent non-executive
Directors a confirmation of independence for the Year pursuant to
Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considers such Directors to be
independent.

The Directors are fully aware that they individually and collectively
accountable to shareholders.
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The executive Directors have entered into employment contracts
with the Company and each of the non-executive Directors and
independent non-executive Directors have been appointed on
a specific term of three years. Notwithstanding the specific term
of appointments, the articles of association of the Company (the
“Articles of Association”) provide that every Directors shall be subject
to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting at least
once every three years. At each annual general meeting, one-third
of the Directors for the time being shall retire shall retire from office
by rotation and be eligible for re-election by the shareholders.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all
times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least three independent non-executive Directors
representing one-third of the Board with one of whom possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related
financial management expertise.

The Company has received written annual confirmation from
each of the independent non-executive Directors in respect of his
independence in accordance with the independence guidelines set
out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. The Company is of the view that
all independent non-executive Directors are independent.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

The management, consisting of executive Directors along with other
senior executive, is delegated with responsibilities for implementing
the strategy and direction as adopted by the Board from time to
time, and conducting the day-to-day operations of the Group.
Executive Directors and senior executives meet regularly to review
the performance of the businesses of the Group as a whole, co-
ordinate overall resources and make financial and operational
decisions. The Board also gives clear directions as to their powers of
management including circumstances where management should
report back, and will review the delegation arrangements on a
periodic basis to ensure that they remain appropriate to the needs
of the Group. i
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BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS BEETEEAREREKRE

The Board meets regularly to discuss and formulate the overall EEEEIRRITE BT HAHIERIERIEUK
strategy as well as the operation and financial performance of ZK%.E’] L&W?‘%fﬁ EEUHRSHUE
the Group. Directors may participate either in person or through B AH N2 HEGH

electronic means of communication.

Pursuant to code provision C5.1 of the CG Code, the Board should IRIBEEEEATEMTFANEXCS 1 EEZETE
meet regularly and board meetings should be held at least four Hi G EEooEESEEBRE MR-
times a year.

The attendance of the respective Directors to the board meeting JBEEFNHEEETTEHEABREASTHERE

and general meeting during the year are set out below: FI0H -
Number of attendance/ Number of
meetings entitled to attend
HEHE ARUEENGEYA
Board General Meeting

3 RRAE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. Wu Rui (Vice chairman) RInEE BI£/E) 7/7 22
Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (Chief executive officer) WB B L (THAER) 7/7 2/2
Mr. Guo Jianfeng BRI 54 7/7 2/2
Mr. Sun Dexin (appointed on 7 March 2023) BRISELE (1R20234357HEZ(E) 0/0 0/0
Mr. Wong Kee Chung (resigned on 7 March 2023) BICRIAE (7R20233/5 7 H BHE) 7/7 22
Non-executive Directors FRITES
Ms. Du Yi (Chairladly) HRat (FE) 7/7 2/2
Mr. Lu Qiwei BEERSE 7/7 2/2
Ms. Yip Man Shan (resigned on 30 June 2022) B4+ (72202265304 BHE) 4/4 22
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
Dr. Tang Dajie BANE L 7/7 2/2
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan SEERE 7/7 2/2
Dr. Lin Tat Pang (appointed.on 30 June 2022) BIEREB L (R2022F6H30H #Z1F) 3/3 0/0
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (fetired on 30 June 2022) RBZE 7T (FR2022F6H30HR1E) 4/4 2/2
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip BEXBRE (1R20226F6H30HB1F) 4/4 2/2

(retired on 30 June 2022)
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CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

OF DIRECTORS

All Directors confirmed to comply with the provision of the CG
Code in relation to continuous professional development during the
year. In doing so, the Directors have undertaken various forms of

EFFHBEXRYR

activities relevant to the Company’s business, Directors' duties and

responsibilities.

The record of continuous professional development relating to
director’s duties and regulatory and business development that

FIEESHIARSNERN—EBTERTERE
ZEMNEEEATURX BRI EFC2HEH
ARBDEB BEFRBRBENSELE

REE2022FN2A3HEFEE  EFEEBERNER
EEREUNEEREREENTESERRERD

have been received by the Directors during the year ended 31  ###7J40F :
December 2022 are summarised as follows:
Type of Training
(Note)
sEIEE R
(P 3%)
Executive Directors WITES
Mr. Wu Rui (Vice chairman) RInkE BIF/E) A B
Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (Chief executive officer) MBS LT (FTRAEE) A B
Mr. Guo Jianfeng Eig e S A B
Mr. Sun Dexin (appointed on 7 March 2023) BIBEB L (102023357 HEZF) B
Mr. Wong Kee Chung (resigned on 7 March 2023) EAD R E (FR20234E3 57 H 4 1E) A, B
Non-executive Directors EHITES
Ms. Du Yi (Chairladly) ML+ (F/E) A B
Mr. Lu Qiwei BEEE R AE A B
Ms. Yip Man Shan (resigned on 30 June 2022) B &+ (7022465 30H BE1E) B
Independent Non-executive Directors BIERITES
Dr. Tang Dajie mANIELT A B
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan SEELE A B
Dr. Lin Tat Pang (appointed on 30 June 2022) EENRIE L (72202286 530 H EZ1E) A, B
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (retired on 30 June 2022) REBEL T (7202226530 HE1E) A/B
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (retired on 30 June 2022)

BB L (R2022E6530HR1E)

Note: A e
Type of Training | .ig.alliﬁi?ﬂ
A: Attending training sessions, including but not limited to, briefings, - A:
seminars, conferences and workshops e mEALEL
B: Reading relevant news alerts, newspapers, journals, magazines and B

relevant publications
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established certain committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee (collectively, the “Board Committee”), to oversee
specific aspects of the Company’s affairs. The Board Committees are
established with specific written terms of reference which clearly
outline the committees’ authority and duties. The terms of reference
of the Board Committees are posted on the Company’s website and
the Stock Exchange’s website and are available to shareholders upon
request.

The majority of the members of each Board committee are
independent non-executive Directors. The members of the Board
committees during the year are set out below:

Audit Committee

Mr. Ng Kwun Wan (Chairman)

Dr. Tang Dajie

Dr. Lin Tat Pang (appointed on 30 June 2022)

Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (retired on 30 June 2022)

Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (retired on 30 June 2022)

Remuneration Committee

Dr. Lin Tat Pang (Chairman) (appointed on 30 June 2022)
Mr. Wu Rui

Mr. Ng Kwun Wan

Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (retired on 30 June 2022)
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (retired on 30 June 2022)

Nomination Committee

Ms. Du Yi (Chairlady)
Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory
Dr. Tang Dajie
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan :
Dr. Lin Tat Pai ng (appomted on 30 June 2022)
Ms. Ng_Y* Ku m, Estella (retired on 30 June 2022)
i M;r',;«\/_\[oﬁ_é'f-\(}f/iin'g'j_Chequ Philip (retired on 30 June 2022)
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Audit Committee on 23 June 2017 with
written terms of reference of no less exacting terms than those set
out in the CG Code. The main duties of the Audit Committee are to
assist the Board in reviewing the financial information and reporting
process, internal control and risk management systems, scope of
audit and appointment of external auditors, and arrangements to
enable employees of the Company to raise concerns about possible
improprieties in financial reporting, internal control or other matters
of the Company.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, three Audit Committee
meetings were held. The attendance of each member to the Audit
Committee Meeting is as follows:

BIZRE8Y

AT BR2017FE6B23HR I BIZEE T 5]
ERBHREEEATHNERNE@BEEE-
ERZERESNTIENSCERESTTHTME
ERRRRER NI REREIERS T
HE R INEZ BN T > UK ERABRED
HANE) T FRER - EF SIS A E Rl B
BHERITARHBE N L

REE2022F 12831 HIEEE  BZEE g Y17
TREHR - ZHNEHEEREESSENLRE
FIanT

Audit

Committee

meeting

attended/

Eligible to

attend

HE

AERHERN

BEZEZEY

g:E2HE

Mr. Ng Kwun Wan (Chairman) SRERE (F/EF) 3/3

Dr. Tang Dajie AN 3/3

Dr. Lin Tat Pang (appointed on 30 June 2022) HEEMRIE L (120226 H30H EZ1E) 2/2

Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (retired on 30 June 2022) REBEE L+ (120226530 HE1E) 1/1

Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (retired on 30 June 2022) &K B4 (772022466530 H B 1E) 1/
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Remuneration Committee on 23
June 2017 with written terms of reference of no less exacting
terms those set out in the CG Code. The primary functions of the
Remuneration Committee include determining/reviewing and
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive Directors and senior management,
the remuneration policy and structure for all Directors and
senior management; and establishing transparent procedures for
developing such remuneration policy and structure to ensure that
no Director or any of his associates will participate in deciding his
own remuneration.

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and senior

management are set out in the sections headed “Directors’

Remuneration” and “Remuneration of the Senior Management” in
this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, two Remuneration
Committee meetings were held. The attendance record of each

HMESE

AT BER2017FE68 23R FMEE S » WET
ERBREEEATHNERN S @B EEE-
FNEESTERSEEET, IR ENNTE
EREHREEBAENFINEE 2BESROM
EEENFNE R REELM L EEaEEg
IRHEZ ; UAR I GITIIEEFHBNBER R 2R EN
SEREERFURGHESERHIAHEAS
HETHB M

EZhEHREEASHFHFMTEFBHNEER
MEEHM SR EEANSHI SE -

REE202F 128310 EFE  FHFNEE T B 2817
MAGE - ZSHEHRFNEESTEZNLHHE

member of the Remuneration Committee is as follows: FIEAF
Remuneration
Committee
meeting
attended/
Eligible to
attend
HE/
SERLEE
NENEEE
BEEE
Dr. Lin Tat Pang (Chairman) (appointed on 30 June 2022) — EZEMEIEL (/%) 0/0
(F220222F6 /530 H EZ1T)
Mr. Wu Rui C=§ P 2/2
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan SRELY 2/2
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (retired on 30 June 2022) &3k B 44 (7220224565305 3B 1F) 2/2
Yi Kurr EREL L (72022456530 5 B1F) 2/2

Ms. N'g'.'YT' _’Kuj"rh,_Estel'Ja (retired on 30 June 2022)
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NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has set up the Nomination Committee on 23 June
2017 with written terms of reference of no less exacting terms than
those set out in the CG Code.

The principal duties of the Nomination Committee include
reviewing the Board composition, developing and formulating
relevant procedures for the nomination and appointment
of Directors, making recommendations to the Board on the
appointment and succession planning of Directors, and assessing
the independence of independent non-executive Directors.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee
would take into account various aspects as well as factors
concerning Board diversity as set out in the Company’s Board
diversity policy, including but not limited to skills, industry and
regional experience, background, race, gender and other qualities
etc. In forming its perspective on diversity, the Company will also
take into account factors based on its own business model and
specific needs from time to time. The Nomination Committee would
discuss and agree on measurable objectives for achieving diversity
on the Board, where necessary, and recommend them to the Board
for adoption.

In identifying and selecting suitable candidates for directorships, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity, where appropriate, before making recommendation to the
Board.

At present, there are 9 members in the Board of the Company,
including 8 male directors and 1 female director. All directors
possess university or above educational level whereas some possess
professional qualifications in accountancy, chartered secretary
and laws etc, and have ample experiences of giant enterprise
management, financial management, legal and.human resources
etc. in different fields. : :
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, two Nomination
Committee meetings were held. The attendance record of each
member of the Nomination Committee is as follows:

REE2022F 1231 HIEFEE R E g Y17
MAEZ - ZHUELFEIRLEESEENLERE
FIEnT

Nomination

Committee

meeting

attended/

Eligible to

attend

HE/

SERUE

NIERZEE

gEHE

Ms. Du Yi (Chairlady) MRzt (FE) 2/2
Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory B EIE L 2/2
Dr. Tang Dajie wmARNEL 2/2
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan SEERE 2/2
Dr. Lin Tat Pang (appointed on 30 June 2022) EEMIE L (1220226530 H EZ1E) 0/0
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (retired on 30 June 2022) RBE L L (720226 530 H B 1F) 2/2
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong Philip (retired on 30 June 2022) XK BEHE (FR2022F6/530H B 1F) 2/2

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in the
code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board had reviewed
the Company’s corporate governance policies and practices,
training and continuous professional development of Directors
and senior management, the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements, the compliance
of the Model Code by Directors and relevant employees, and the
Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosures in this
Corporate Governance Report.

X ERRAE

EFEaTRTHNEEERTRITRIFEXA2
BYBRLAE

REE2022F 12831 B IEEE  EFZERT AR
BN EEABRAER EERSREEEDN
BIMSESEXLEE AR BT ERELEER
ERNBERRER  EEREREEETIREST
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROLS

The Board acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management
and internal control systems and reviewing their effectiveness.
Such systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate
the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and can only
provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against material
misstatement or loss. The Board has the overall responsibility for
evaluating and determining the nature and extent of the risks it
is willing to take in achieving the Company’s strategic objectives,
and establishing and maintaining appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems.

The Group has established a risk management policy which sets out
the process of identification, evaluation and management of the
principal risks affecting the business.

1. Each division is responsible for identifying and assessing
principal risks within its divisions on a quarterly basis and
establishing mitigation plans to manage the risks identified.

2. The management is responsible for overseeing the Group's
risk management and internal control activities, attending
quarterly meetings with each division to ensure principal
risks are properly managed, and new or changing risks are
identified and documented.

3. The Board is responsible for reviewing and approving the
effectiveness and adequacy of the Group's risk management
and internal control systems.

The Group has maintained internal control guidance and procedures
on the Group's operational cycles relating to revenue, purchase and
expenditure, inventory and human resources etc,, to ensure proper
accounting records are kept so that reliable financial reporting can
be provided, the effectiveness and efficiency of operation can be
achieved, and the compliance with applicable laws and r'eg'u{ations

and safeguarding of assets can be maintained. These procedures,

together with the Company’s compliance manual, have also 'sha'p_e'd
the control environment in which and how the Group ‘operates;
including the budgeting controls, investment -decision. making, risk
assessment and practices of corporate governance. These systems
are designed to provide reasonable protection against errors, losses
and fraud.
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The Company does not establish a standalone internal audit
department. However, the Board has put in place adequate
measures to perform the internal audit function at different aspects
of the Group.

The Company has engaged ZHONGHUI ANDA Risk Services
Limited to conduct a review on the effectiveness of the internal
controls of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.
The review covered certain operational procedures and included
recommendations for improving and strengthening the internal
control system. No significant area of concern that may affect the
financial, operational, compliance, control and risk management of
the Group has been identified.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
internal control system of the Group and is satisfied that the Group
has complied with the Code in respect of internal control during the
year.

Regular meetings were held between the executive Directors
and senior management to review and monitor the business
and financial performance against the targets, the progress of
certification and contract receipts from the customers, the efficiency
in the use of the Group's resources in comparison to the budgets,
and the operational matters to ensure the Group has complied with
the regulations that have material impact to the Group's business.
The aim is to enhance the communication and accountability of the
Directors and management so that significant strategic, financial,
operational and compliance risks or potential deviations are timely
identified and dealt with in proper manner, which significant issues
are reported back to the Board for their attention.

With respect to the monitoring and disclosure of inside information,
the Group has developed its disclosure policy which provides a
general guide to the Group's Directors, officers, senior management
and relevant employees in handling confidential information,
monitoring information disclosure and responding to enquires.
While any potential inside information will be escalated to the
executive meetings or the Board via the established reporting
channels, the Drrectors will-assess and determine if the inside
mformatron of the Group exist where timely disclosure is required
to be made by' vvay of an announcement published on the Stock
:Exchange vvebsrte Control procedures have been implemented to

ensure that unauthorrsed access and use of inside information are

: strrctly prohibited.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted its dividend policy and the declaration and
recommendation of dividends are subject to the decision of the
Board after considering the Company’s ability to pay dividends. The
Board may, as it deems appropriate, determine and distribute an
interim dividend to shareholders of the Company from time to time.
The Board may recommend the payment of an annual dividend,
subject to the approval by shareholders of the Company at annual
general meetings.

The Company's dividend policy is to allow shareholders to share
the Company’s profits whist preserving adequate reserves for
the Company’s future development. Subject to the approval of
shareholders and requirement of relevant laws, if the Group makes
a profit, the operating environment remains stable and the Group
has no plans for material investment or capital contribution, the
Company shall pay annual dividends to its shareholders. The Board
may, from time to time, pay to the shareholders such interim
dividends as the Directors deem reasonable to the profit of the
Group. Moreover, the Board may, where considered appropriate,
declare special dividends.

Considerations:

In deciding or proposing the number of distribution and the
amount and form of dividend for any financial year/period, the
Board shall consider the following factors:

(a) the Company's actual and expected financial performance;

(b) retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company
and respective members of the Group;

(@] the debt-to-equity ratio, rate of return on equity and
relevant financial covenants of the Group;

(d) any restrictions imposed by the lenders of the Group in
terms of dividend payment;

(e) the Group's expected working capital requwements and
future expansion plans; ;

(f) the Group's general economic conditions, business cy'dé
of the Group's business and other internal and external
factors that may have an impact on the business or financial

performance and position of the Company; and

(9) any other factors the Board may consider appropriate.
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The dividend payout ratio will vary from year to year. There is no
assurance that a dividend will be declared in any particular amount
for any given period.

FORM OF DIVIDEND

In accordance with the articles of association of the Company,
dividend may be paid in cash. The Board may consider bonus
issue, and its relevant basis must comply with applicable laws and
regulations.

DIRECTORS' REMUNERATION

Directors’ emoluments are determined with reference to Directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group. In addition, the Directors’ remuneration is reviewed by the
Remuneration Committee of the Company annually. Details of the
Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 10 to the Consolidated
Financial Statements.

REMUNERATION OF THE SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration of
senior management is listed below by band:

Band of remuneration

KERGERR > A RER SRS EHHE
SEIRERFESENRS

REER

BREXAAFDNEBERZMA REFTUREIK
- BFGOERBETAR  HAEMEELNERS
BRERRER -

EEHM

ESMENRBESFRT SEERKREURSE
EENEREE IS EFHMESFRE AT H

MEEET -BRAESHFMIBENGS Y
HERFRMIEE100

=R EEA S F

REE2022F 12831 HIEFEE 8 EEAENH
i E R

Number of Person

Nt E A
HKS$ 1,000,000 or below 1
1,000,000 758 LA T

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 2

1,000,00178 75 £ 1,500,00078 75

AUDITOR’S REMUNERATION

For the year e_nded 31 December 2022, the remunerations paid or
payable to-ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited in respect of its audit
serv_ice_'s'_'of,H'K'S2,_52Q,OOO and non-audit services of HK$253,000.
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DIRECTORS' AND AUDITOR’S
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation of
Financial Statements for the year ended 31 December 2022 which
give a true and fair view of the financial position of the Group. In
preparing the Financial Statements which give a true and fair view, it
is fundamental that the appropriate accounting policies are selected
and applied consistently. The statement of the external auditor of
the Company about their reporting responsibilities on the Financial
Statements is set out in the “Independent Auditor’s Report” on
pages 83 to 88 of this annual report. The Directors were not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which
may cast significant doubt upon the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern.

COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company’s company secretary, Mr. Lo Chun Man, coordinates
the supply of information to the Directors and is the primary
contract person within the Company for all matters relating to the
duties and responsibilities of the company secretary. All Directors
have access to company secretary to ensure that Board procedures
and all applicable laws, rules and regulations are followed. During
the year ended 31 December 2022, he had taken not less than 15
hours of relevant professional training as required under Rule 3.29
of the Listing Rules. For details of his biography, please refer to the
section headed “Biographies of Directors and Senior Management”
of this annual report.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

We seriously take care of the shareholders’ interest to ensure that
they are treated fairly and are able to exercise their shareholders’
rights effectively. Shareholders are entitled by the Articles of
Association and are also encouraged to participate in the Company’s
general meetings or appoint proxies to attend meetings and may

request the Board to convene an extraordinary general-meeting-and.

EERGHBENHMBRROEE

ERARREREEREEE2022F12831H1E
FENUHBRT UEEBMP S RMAEEN
MR e NREE S M S 1 & MR R B8 75
REF AXBEETEMNERBEESN T T
Ko R ARIMNEZE AR E R HBRKRNER
WEENER SN FRFESIESEN BHILIZ
HEMIRE | —E e EEWAEE I MR 5EE
NREBEGHFESEREFERNEHINENE
AKAREBRARIER ©

NEME

ARABNARIMEEENCEEERAREEIR
HEH WA A B MERBEABEN—E
BEERRABNEEBREAN FTBEESH A EHE
HARAME  UERENETETEZFTHRUR
FTBEE R A RABOER o IREIE 20224512831
HIEFEE  HERRB EHREISE329EMRELSM
RAORISE/NENEREEXEN - BRAEREN
HE A2REAEREEREREEAEBRE)
—Hfio

ARERHEF

HAENDRERRNED BERSETES
5 WA ARATHEERRER - SRR FIRR
EF B S B RRR S WEZIRAREER AT IR
RAG TR BERESZEEMRREHAGRIZ

Ea%?-\°ﬁ%ﬁuﬁﬁﬁuiﬁlﬁ§$ﬁ“}zz1w$-

EE 3 //Eﬁ'JEHﬁ'EE E’J 4

put forward proposals. Such requisition should be made in writing

to the Board or the company secretary for such purpose and should
specify the objects of the meeting.
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The Board is not aware of any provisions allowing the shareholders BB AMBZRMEKEEHEATEEE
of the Company to put forward proposals at general meetings of {AEX AFAABRENAATNIKRE ARG L2
the Company under the Articles of Association and the Companies 2ZHZ REMANPNRE AL HIE2HEE 2R
Law of the Cayman Islands. Shareholders who wish to put forward ~ FIERFRIiE 2B REUER B R A T WRELF
proposals at general meetings may refer to the preceding paragraph B K& o

to make written requisition to require the convening of an

extraordinary general meeting of the Company.

In case a shareholder wishes to nominate a person for election as RN EADT HIBRLAERAALTHEES
director in general meeting, the particulars of the candidate must BB HEEEAGFMAENNKEEERLBIE
be stated in a nomination notice signed and deposited together EREIEEEABENBERNEEZ  EE2ELRAT
with a notice of willingness signed by the candidate to the company & 22 (it A EFBE(F B EE305RIBEE
secretary at the Company principal place of business (Room Nos.  F8HES08-814FE) E 2R AT AT MER XA
808-814, 8th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, BIMEBRMNBEESL DR BANEZBANEBK
Hong Kong) or at the Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer B AG BHEIRIE/ DR H o

office of the Company. The notice should be given at least seven

days prior to the date of such general meeting.

INVESTOR RELATIONS KEEME

The Company is committed to maintaining effective and timely ~ZAATEAORERFENE KB EHKRRE LTS
dissemination of the Group's information to its shareholders and fBEZEARTER A ATWREBEKRGHEAR
the market. The annual shareholders’ meetings of the Company SIEREFERE  WHRFZEMNTEF S AR
are the primary forum for communication by the Company with BIFIREBEEARE L EX (FEBRKHAL @
its shareholders and for shareholder participation. At the annual #@F)) G FERR S E » U KRRESHENEH -
general meeting of the Company, the Directors (or their delegates  ItE9h » <A &) B 4B UA (http://www.ctvision994.com) &,
as appropriate) are available to meet shareholders and answer EENREER HERS-

their enquires. In addition, the Company’s website (http://www.

ctvision994.com) contains extensive company information which is

easily accessible.

The Board has adopted a shareholders’ communication policy, which ~EEZERMRBENBER > EFRRTE 7 HRFEA
sets out the objective and approach to ensuring communication  RAEERIRITE ER R AREENEIZR X%
transparent, accurate and open communications with the BIREEHEKRELRREATRFTFEHT  TF
shareholders. The policy aims to maintain an on-going dialogue  FAEE E G URREIT 2 B M R Kk £
with shareholders and the investment community, which will be HRBBMNERNRESE NHREHN EFETER
regularly reviewed by the Board to ensure its effectiveness and to  s7BR SR BRI R ZBRE AR EH ©
reflect current best practices in communications with shareholders.

During the Reporting Period, the Board has reviewed the

shareholders’ communication policy and confirmed that it has been

effectively implemented.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS BEXH

T

\\\
ik

During the Reporting Period, no amendments were made to the ¥R HAR] » AA B) & & {4 It
constitutional documents of the Company.

ENQUIRES TO THE BOARD MEEEHER

Enquiries may put to the Board through the Company's principal BRI AT MUBBAATINE B T B M B > il
- place of business in Hong Kong at Room Nos. 808-814, 8th Floor, %% A7 4 B 3058 H B & .0,818808-814%
~ Sun Hung Kai Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong (email: (B :info@ctvision994.com) > MIEEEEHE
- info@ctvision994.com). I
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ABOUT THIS REPORT

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
is pleased to present its Environmental, Social and Governance
(hereinafter called “ESG") Report of the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2022
(the “Year 2022"), with an aim to provide details of the system
establishment and performance of the Group in respect of
sustainable development to both the internal and external
stakeholders.

The Group is committed to the long-term sustainability of its
business, as well as providing support to environmental protection
and the communities in which it operates. Quality services are
delivered to customers by the Group, and its business is managed
prudently under sound decision-making processes. The Group seeks
to balance the views and interests of the stakeholders through
constructive conversation with a purpose to set the course for
long-term prosperity. The Board is responsible for evaluating and
determining the ESG risks of the Group, and ensuring that relevant
risk management and internal control systems are in place and
operate effectively. The Group has assigned a responsible person
(the “ESG Responsible Person”) to review and evaluate the corporate
performance on the relevant ESG issues.

COMPANY PROFILE

The Group is principally engaged in the provision of construction
and related services, which mainly included (i) building construction
business which mainly includes foundation works and ancillary
services and general building works; (i) renewable energy business;
(iii) e-commerce business; and (iv) others which mainly include
building information modelling services and sales of piles.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK

This report was prepared in accordance with the ESG Reporting
Guide set out in Appendix 27 to the Rules Governing thé‘Listing

of Securities made by of The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong.

Limited (the “Listing Rules”), highlighted the environmeéntal and
social measures and activities of the Group during the Year 2022:
Corporate governance is addressed separately in the Corporate
Governance Report.
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GOVERNANCE STRUCTURE
Board’s oversight of ESG issues

The board of directors of the Company (the “Board”) has a primary
role in overseeing the Group's ESG issues. During the Year 2022,
the Board, the management and the ESG Responsible Person
evaluate the impacts of ESG-related risks towards the operation and
formulate ESG-related policies in dealing with relevant risks. The
oversight of the Board ensures that the management and the ESG
Responsible Person can have all the right tools and resources to
oversee the ESG issues.

To demonstrate the Group's commitment to transparency and
accountability, the management and ESG Responsible Person review
and evaluate the Group's performance in respect of ESG issues and
report to the Board regularly.

Board’s ESG management approach and strategy for material
ESG-related issues

To better understand the opinions and expectations of different
stakeholders on the ESG issues, materiality assessment is conducted
annually. The Group ensures various platforms, and channels of
communication are used to reach, listen and respond to its key
stakeholders. Through communication with the stakeholders, the
Group is able to understand the expectations and concerns from
its stakeholders. The feedbacks obtained allow the Group to make
more informed decisions, and to better assess and manage the
resulting impacts of the business decisions.

The Group has evaluated the materiality in ESG aspects through
the following steps: (i) identification of ESG issues by the Group; (ii)
key ESG areas prioritisation with stakeholder engagement; and (iii)
validation and determining material ESG issues based on the results
of communication with the stakeholders.

56

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited & X IB&# (B ) I B IR A F

Ea%E
EFEHEN HEREAFENEE

FrRREFE ((EFg) e BEAEENRE
HEREAFESHEETEAE R02FE

Exg EEEBARKR -HERELEEASFGE
RE-HERELGEFRAREEENTE WHE

RIZ R EBEMBERUEEERER £
ZHESRFREEERIRRE -HEREREEA
EEFVGENIARER UEESRE 1
gREBEH

ARNNERHEBHERBEENKE SEE
RIBEE - HEREAAEAE SN RTEARE
EAERE HEABAESENRRICHHES
GER-

EEEHEARRE - HERESHEMEENIRER
HEREAEESEARRKRE

BB TRAREDZ ARIRE HLERELS
BENERKE RASEETEEM N E &
BEAREASBETERBRERBREE KEX
CEEEERm A -BRRED NETEE &&
BSLT AR ANIEREE -FIESHNR
R REAEEENFLERERIRR LB
L R EEREHERRELENTE -

REFEBEEUTTRAGHRE - HERERS
EE’JE B AR EEFIRE - HEREARSE
(iNVFERED )\ 20T BRAARIRE LB RE
%BWﬂg?EHIEF_ ReliiiR IR A A B BB S
%ﬁﬂaa&?éﬁ%jﬁaiﬁ HERERER-

Annual Report 2022 FE R



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BIE g REARE

Taking these steps enhances the understanding of the expectations
and concerns of the Group's stakeholders on various ESG issues,
which enable the Board to plan the sustainable development
direction to address material ESG-related issues in the future.

Board review progress against ESG-related goals and targets

The Group will closely review from time to time for the performance
and implementation progress of the goals and targets. If the
progress falls short of expectation or changes of business
operations, it may be necessary to make changes and communicate
about the goals and targets with key stakeholders such as
employees, customers and suppliers.

The Board has set strategic goals to enable the Group to develop a
realistic path and focus on the development direction for achieving
its vision. The Board will carefully examine the attainability of the
targets which should be weighted against the Group's philosophy
and goals.

REPORTING PRINCIPLES

Materiality: Stakeholder engagement and materiality assessment
were conducted regularly to identify material ESG issues, and to
ensure that these issues are addressed in this report.

Quantitative: Data presented in this report have been collected
prudently. Please refer to the environmental and social performance
data for standards and methodologies used for calculation of key
performance indicators.

Balance: Both positive and negative sides of the performance have
been presented in a transparent manner.

Consistency: Unless otherwise stated, the disclosures, data

collection and calculation methods have remained.consistent
throughout the years to facilitate comparability over time:. .
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REPORTING BOUNDARIES

The scope of this ESG report mainly includes policies, data and
activities of the offices in Hong Kong (the "Hong Kong Offices”) and
the offices located in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC") (the
“PRC Offices”) and certain construction sites during the Year 2022.
Unless otherwise specified, the disclosed environmental and social
Key Performance Indicators (the “KPIs") covers Hong Kong Offices,
PRC Offices and the following construction sites located in Hong
Kong in relation to four environmental aspects and eight social
aspects:

Anderson Road project — foundation works;

St Francis Street project — foundation works; and

Mount Davis Road project — general building works.
The above construction sites account for approximately 58.4% of
the total revenue from building construction business of the Group,
which are active construction sites in Hong Kong for the Year 2022.
The Group will continue to review the reporting scope in the future,
and extend the report coverage based on the following criteria:

significance of revenue against the respective financial year;

potential ESG impact;

geographical location; and

associated new legislation requirements, if any.

The Board has reviewed and approved this ESG report.

58

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited 7 X JIEE# (BIFR) =R B R A T

wEEE

AERE - HEREARENEETECENREE
HsEE ((EBMER) RMINRFEARENER
(THhERL) Bk pe (THREMEERR)) U E TFREE
TP 2022 ENBER - I KBS - R IER B TS
BE - BRIFFINEMNIRIE R S RABENIEE (TR
BENIEE) RESTEBMER  PEMBERL
TR EANER M EIRESEK/\ B
T

ZERBRE-METR;
RHELHRE-METRE &
EEEERE ——MREETLR-
M ERRETHEARERNR2002FEERERERER
TRV T2 R BB U mA584% A LB AR
W@ REHE TERUATREREARS
nAE
W SR AR REENEERRE ;
BERR - HERELGTE,;
MIRMUE ; &
REFTERIRE WA) -

EEgCBRARMESRRR HERERARSE

Annual Report 2022 FE R



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BIE g REARE

STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

The Group values the views and opinions of the stakeholders and
recognise the importance of their input to the Group's sustainable
development.

The Group'’s key stakeholders include government, shareholders,
customers, employees, suppliers or subcontractors and community.
The Group has conducted a survey, discussed or communicated
with stakeholders to understand their views and respond to their
needs and expectations, evaluated and prioritised their inputs to
improve the Group's performance, and finally strived to provide

i A SR

FEEEREED A ANRRLAER  FARESE
SR REERMFEMZEE -

FEENIEETABSERF KRR -FF &
E-HEBNIDEBIAME FEECEED AE
THEHE SRIER U TRRFHNREKRE
BHBERAE TR EHRSAEFER
REZBRNEBARF  TRARDBERZAR
EEE

value to the stakeholders.

Stakeholders
A

Expectations and requirements

LEEEPY

Communication and response

BB Rl

Government and regulatory bodies

BT 5 B E AR

Shareholders

S

Customers
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Operating in compliance with the law
Tax payment in accordance with the
laws

AL E

HRIE R

Implementation of corporate
governance and create value
Information disclosure

ETEERTAEER
B

Fulfilling contracts within the law
High-quality services

AR
BERS

Law-abiding operations
Tax payment on time and in full

SEKE

72 Ry 7B BURR

Optimising internal control and risk
management
Releasing operating data in due

course
BB B A R i B 18
B EMEEYE

Timely completion of the works as set
out in works order

Adopting ISO 9001:2015 certification
RS TIZsT B e T2
FRAMISO 9001:201558 58
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Stakeholders

Expectations and requirements

Communication and response

A HAZ R E K 838 K [ FE

Employees Career development platform Transparent promotion channel
Remuneration and benefits Competitive remuneration package
Occupational health and safety Implementation of health and safety

management system

== EXERTAE BZEHENSARE
# N B2 @ F BRI NNHFMNTE
BERRKRZE BMEREREZEEERR

Suppliers or subcontractors

HERHDEHE
Community
H&

Receiving payment on time
Business ethics and credit standing

IR R
BEERKRESR

Improving the environment of
communities

Protecting the nature
RAMBIRIE

REBR

Timely payment schedule
Fulfilment of obligations under any
contract in accordance with laws
R B A R By 3 22 BF
KEBITTENERT

Participation in charitable activities

Adhere to green operations
SHAKEED

Z 2RI =

BT EE

MATERIALITY MATRIX EEEE

In Year 2022, the Group carried out materiality assessment on a  F20R2EE » AEBRHZLIERIE - HEREASEE
number of ESG issues in order to identify which issues were crucial #ETEBMFTE UBFHAEBEFREER
to the Group's business and were of the utmost concerned by @ ARBEEMNEE -2 HEEMAEERGFEE
stakeholders. It helps the Group to ensure its business development EFERFTEHER ANPEREKR - AEEEH
meeting the expectations and requirements of stakeholders.  BIH2SIEREIRIE -t B REENIRIE - HERE
The Group has identified 25 ESG issues covering environmental, ASEIE > W BALRINBEZ N BBIEDTA
social and operation, and has invited both internal and external &E HZFRE - HEREASTENETEME
stakeholders to assess the materiality of the ESG issues through a {TeHfi e A EBEEEBEESRZERE - HEKE
scoring tool and interviews. The Group's management has reviewed SARIBEMNEBMAF) TR ARERIFELE R &
the ranking of materiality of the ESG issues and then disclosed the EMFHHNAREH R ANBRETHR &
result in this report. The results of materiality assessment prioritised ~ ZANEETEITEN ~ AR KR EIR EE R TE EAVE
stakeholder inputs and made the Group focused on the material  BSo

aspects for actions, achievements and reporting.
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The Group's materiality matrix of ESG issues in Year 2022:
NFEAERRR - HEARELAFRESMIER

ESG ISSUES MATERIALITY MATRIX

HIGHEST
85 BRE HEREAREEEEMER
10
24 20 3]8‘211156
° 23 1922
1129914

- 8 12 g
E ; High S
9] =5 9
T °
-4
e<
6 b Medium ¢
==’ "
£
[+
o 3
o
=

2

Low
1
0 3 4 5 6 8 9 10
IMPORTANCE TO BUSINESS HIGHEST
HEBNEEM BS

Environmental issues

Social issues

Operation issues

IRIREIR #HEHIE SEEIR

1. Greenhouse gas emissions 10. Use of chemicals 19. Economic value generated
1. BERBHIN 10. 12 RAfE A 19. EXNVEKBERE

2. Energy consumption 11. Local community engagement 20. Corporate governance

2. BERUHFE 1. Rt @S8R 20. BEEER

3. Water consumption 12. Community investment 21. Anti-corruption

3. FEK 2. HELE 2. RES

4. Waste 13. Occupational health and safety 22. Supply chain management
4. BEEY 13 BEREREZE 22. R TR
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Social issues

HEEE

Environmental issues

IRIREIR

Operation issues

EEFHE

5. Use of raw materials and packaging 14. Labour standards in supply chain 23. Customer satisfaction

materials

5. EMERBEMEBER 14, HEESR AR S TRE BEARERE
Green buildings certification 15. Training and development 24. Customer privacy
AR ENE 15, Bl E R 24. BRFLRR
Noise 16. Employee welfare 25. Product responsibility
= 6. R EEF] 25 EmER

8. Climate change 17. Inclusion and equal opportunities

8. RIZEL 7. B8R TEERS

9. Customer engagement in 18. Talent attraction and retention
environmental issues

9. BERHIREEEMNSE 18. RS2 3R B A A

EMISSIONS HE )

The Group recognises that environmental protection is one of
the great social concern matters. The Group formulates specific
Environmental Management Plans (EMP) for the projects to
effectively implement the mitigation measures, with proper
monitoring and remedial measures that satisfy relevant
requirements. Apart from regulatory requirements, the Group also
adheres to the BEAM Plus requirements in three of the construction
sites including Anderson Road project, St Francis Street project and
Mount Davis Road project to further the efforts in controlling the
emissions and resource use.

The fuel used by machinery and mobile generators during
construction will result-in-air emissions. Under the Air Pollution
Control (Non-road Mobile Machinery) (Emission) Regulation
approved by the Environmental Protection Department is required
for the use of regulated machines and non-road vehicles. To
reduce. alr Em|ssr0n the Group uses ultra-low-sulphur diesel in all
- dJeSeIope’rated Constructlon plants and set up screens to reduce the
.vmpact of exhaust fumes on the public when necessary.
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For dust control, the Group regularly sprays water on unpaved roads

and exposed or loose soils surfaces to suppress dust emissions.

Vehicles would also go through wheel washing facilities before

leaving the sites to remove any dusty materials.

During the Year 2022, air emission for nitrogen oxides (“NOx”"),
sulphur oxides (“SOx") and particulate matter ("PM") were mainly

generated from the combustion sources of motor vehicles of the

Group. The table below shows the key environmental performance

indicators of different types of air emissions emitted by the Group’s

operation during the Year 2022.

MEEEIET > A B E R R R 5 R A E B K
A\%Tmﬁﬁlﬁ’\]iigﬁﬂﬁm BUR KD EEHF K - B2
ERTERER THBI A BB IR - U BREWM
5 EEERBIKL o

00252 ffty (a8ty) ety

(M| EY)) REFRF (MBFH F1) BIEER
FREZRFBNEEBERIMER TRIITR
2022F EASE B EZEFTBEAY & 2R R AR AYRE
BIRIRAEM ISR

Unit Year 2022 Year 2021

Air emissions” ERBER™ B 20224 E 201 FEE

NOx emissions Fa=R k71 kg 9.95@ 5220
T2

SOx emissions meEtHER kg 0.19 0.40
T

PM emissions SEE N T HER kg 0.73? 0.38%
T

Notes: 5T :

Petrol data for the calculation of NOx emissions, SOx emissions and
PM emissions cover all the vehicles consumption for all construction
sites of the Group in Hong Kong.

No record of travelling distance for 2 out of 12 private cars is
maintained by the Hong Kong Offices and PRC Offices in Year 2022
(5 out of 12 in Year 2021). Hence, no figure of NOx emissions and PM
emissions of relevant private cars are disclosed.

The emission factors used to calculate the NOx, SOx and PM
are sourced from: the Hong Kong Environmental Protection
Department’s (“EPD") EMFAC-HK Vehicle Emission.Calculation model
and the United States Environmental Protection Agen'cy'é‘-VehicIe

Emission Modeling Software - MOBILE6.T;.and the assumptions
of 80% relative humidity, a temperature of 25. degrees Celsius, én

average speed of 30kmh, and include running exhaust. emissions
only.
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Greenhouse gas (“GHG") emissions refer to the sum of carbon
dioxide ("CO2") emissions and the CO. equivalent emissions of
methane (“CH4") and nitrous oxide (“N20"). GHG emissions are
categorised into direct emissions and indirect emissions.

The main sources of direct GHG emissions from operations are the
use of motor vehicles owned or controlled by the Group. The main
sources of indirect GHG emissions from operations are the use of
purchased electricity, paper waste disposed at landfills, electricity
used for processing fresh water by government departments.

Target of air emissions intensity

BERE (CRERRE)) SHRERE—AHK (T8
1ERR)) BERE K Rk (THRY) MEEnaE (M|t
DR N SEREESRENRN - BERE
By 7 ER B BEHE R

EEMELENERBEREINIERRRER
FEEHEANEANER BEMELNBZER
EREFREBREAERINEESN HEHER
EBREAR A BT SR PR K KPR 7T

BERGFRMEERR

Environmental KPI Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
IRIRRA BB RUEIR kB AR BEEE Ak 2&
Air emissions

BE RBEYD

NOx intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
AR YBE 122025 E ARV 3% 20205F & EITH
SOx intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
metyBE 120256 AR 3% 20206 E #EiTH
PM intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
AN FRE 122025 E ARV 3% 20205F & EiTH
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The table below shows the key environmental performance TFRET0NEEAEEEEMESLRERED
indicators of GHG emissions emitted by the Group's operation  FFIRASBIZIZENIEIZ
during the Year 2022.
Unit Year 2022 Year 2021
GHG emissions™ BEREHRED BB {i 20226 20214 E
Total GHG emissions BERBESERE kg COse 451,082 866,325
FTRZatikEE
GHG emissions intensity (per employee) S EERBEBHHNERE kg COze 7,914 7,219
(B4EE) FTrZRICHRESE
Direct emissions due to combustion of B ENAR B KR A kE kg COze 386,184 794,010
fuels in mobile sources (Scope 1) EXNEEIENR 2 TRZS(EHRES
(8EB%1)
Indirect emissions due to consumption of SHIEINEBHEEN kg CO2e 59,247? 53,019
purchased electricity (Scope 2)@ B (#E2)? TR _atikESE
Other indirect emissions due to paper WIHRREERAK kg COze 5,651 19,296
waste disposed at landfills, electricity BRIEXKFTHEEN TRZ&IERES
used for processing fresh water (Scope 3)  EEEMIEMMRTIIEHER
(§0E%3)
Notes: B 5T
1. Diesel and petrol data cover all the vehicle and machinery 1. SRR AHBRBRERERESENMEL
consumption for all sites of the Group in Hong Kong. MHIFT A S B RIS MHFES
2. The emission factors of electricity consumed are sourced from Hong 2. BB R BERRINBIB2020F AI R EE B IR
Kong Electric Sustainability Report 2020, CLP Power Hong Kong's EHREE2022F A FEE BIRE /20192

2022 Sustainability Report and the China Eastern and Southern
Power Grid in 2019.
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Target of GHG emissions intensity

AEREHFREZEEER

Environmental KPI Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
IRI5 R SR A RIS IR kB 1R BEF Ak RE
GHG emissions intensity (Scope 1) Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
BERBHREE BERE1) 120256 AR 3% 20205 & #EiTH
GHG emissions intensity (Scope 2) Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
BEREBHRZE (52) 1220255 AR 3% 20205F & T
GHG emissions intensity (Scope 3) Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
BERBHREE BEE3) 120256 AR 3% 20205 & EiTH

The Group takes proactive measures for environmental protection,
and manage waste on site through the proper collection, storage,
transportation, disposal and treatment of wastes. To meet the waste
reduction goals, the Group formulates Waste Management Plans
for projects with clear guidance on the handling of different kinds
of waste. In addition, the Group takes measures to reduce waste
generation at source and systematically sort the wastes, followed
by the recovery of any reusable or recyclable parts such as metal
parts from temporary works, as well as paper packaging from
general refuse. To encourage recycling of waste, recycling bins at
construction sites are also provided.

The Group sends waste to construction waste sorting facilities and
public fill so more construction and demolition (C&D) wastes can be
recovered as far as possible. The Group designates storage locations
for chemical wastes such as used lubricated oil, diesel and residual
paint during site planning. The safety officers would perform regular
inspections to ensure proper storage. The collected chemical wastes
are properly disposed of by a qualified licensed chemical waste
collector.

Moreover, the Group promotes switching off lighting and
airconditioning one hour during lunchtime and using timer to
control on/off for office electrical appliance to reduce energy
consumptions _élfur_i'r_]'g the Year 2022.
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The table below shows the key environmental performance
indicators of waste produced by the Group's operation during the

TREMREERAEREEMELERZEYNH
RIRIRENIER

Year 2022.
Unit Year 2022 Year 2021
Waste BEEEY) B8 {i 20226 20214 E
Total non-hazardous waste produced FMESREREEYES tonnes 442 32,331
i
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity FrEEEERERYEE tonnes 8 269
(per employee) (54ES) it
Total hazardous waste produced FMESBEREEYES tonnes N/A N/A
WA RER ENERE
Hazardous waste produced intensity (per FREL B EBEEYTRE tonnes N/A N/A
employee) (B4EE) irs iR NERE
Target of non-hazardous waste produced intensity FRESEEZEEYZEBR
Environmental KPI Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
IRIBRARREBUEE RHEE R HAEF AR RS
Non-hazardous waste produced intensity ~ Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
FREEBEERRYTE FL20255F AR 3% 20205 #EiTH
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The Group recognises that noise emission is one of the great
environmental concern matters. The Group strives to strictly
adhere to relevant laws and regulations in managing the impact of
construction noise on the surrounding environment.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to
ensure the compliance with local laws and regulations relating to
environmental protection and pollutant emissions. In Year 2022,
there was no case of material non-compliance with the Water
Pollution Control Ordinance, the Air Pollution Control Ordinance,
the Waste Disposal Ordinance, Noise Control Ordinance, Dumping
at Sea Ordinance, Environmental Impact Assessment Ordinance and
other relevant laws and regulations of Hong Kong relating to air
and GHG emissions, discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste and noise that have a
significant impact on environment. In addition, there was no report
of significant fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with
the relevant laws and regulations in Year 2022.

USE OF RESOURCES

The Group recognises that efficient use of resources is one of the
significant aspects to protect environment.

The Group relies on different resources to deliver quality
construction work in operations. That includes electricity for the site
offices and headquarter, diesel for the machineries and generator
sets, petrol for the site vehicles, and water for different processes.

During the Year 2022, the Group has not experienced any difficulty
in sourcing water that is fit for the usage of the Group. The Group
strives to conserve resources in its operations. Different resource-
saving measures are implemented during the various stages
of construction to conserve energy, water, paper and other
office supplies. The measures taken range from improvement
in equipment efficiency, reuse and recycling of materials, to the
behavioural change of the people. To conserve resources, the Group
continuously implements various measures including:
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converting and retrofitting construction machines to fit into
different construction sites;

reusing timber and concreting formboards in construction
sites where possible and recycling materials like metal parts,

plastics and paper packaging; and

reusing treated construction wastewater for water spraying
and wheel washing when possible.

The Group also implements green office practices at Hong Kong
Offices and PRC Offices with examples like:

replacing T5 light tubes with LED lights;

selecting computers with “Energy Star” logo;

encouraging employees to turn off or unplug any electrical
appliances that are not in use, such as light, computer or

chargers; and

encouraging duplex printing in offices.

Energy saving signs remind staff members to turn off
the lights after using in order to promote energy conservation.

SRAGETBE Eaﬁkﬂiﬁlﬁﬁfﬁﬁm’ﬂﬁﬁiﬂinb"_\_

PSR R R RS FAREET
H# ;

0T A K B T B AN R RS AR
BEEKSBEN BERETOREH
B R

BOUEEACERENEIEREK NANE
KI5

HATREEMERATEARSEEREOHA
R A

TS E B IR ALEDIE ;

ERAEAERZ EIESEMNER ;

wEEEREREANES BINRA-E
fEsistEaR) BRI REIR 5 &

DR AEANBEEITE

Notice of Printing and photocopying control
for paper saving. :

RPN R B EN i ﬂuﬁdéﬁé
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The below table shows the key environmental performance TFREAT0DEEAEEE REANRBIRIEE

indicators of the Group's use of resources during the Year 2022. MIEIE -
Unit Year 2022 Year 2021
Total use of resources HRERES B i 2022F[E 2015 E
Electricity purchases for consumption SNEESIHES kWh 111,561 103,397
T ERE
Diesel consumption” SESHIEFED kWh 1,439,698 2,954,363
T EFF
Petrol consumption FRHIHEED kWh 124,730 261,543
T BB
Total energy consumption RERHFERE kWh 1,675,989 3,319,303
TR
Total energy consumption intensity MEFEETE kWh 29,403 27,661
(per employee) (54 EE) T EE
Water consumption FEKE m? 2,740 1,293
IFH K
Water consumption intensity FEKBE (B2ESB) m? 48 11
(per employee) LK
Packaging material used for finished SUpY G P A B EE kg N/A N/A
products? HAE© T RiEHA TR
Packaging material per unit produced? — SE£EBMNNEEMRE kg N/A N/A
AR T TiE A g
Notes: B3 -
1. The conversion factor used to convert data in other units to kWh is 1. BAREEMEB RN EIRERA T RENER
sourced from the Energy Statistics Manual issued by the International A F 755 B BIFR5E TR & 2 MR A R AR st F o
Energy Agency.

2. The packaging material used for products or services provided by the 2. AEEIRMBNERIRBETESEM R

Group is minimal and hence no relevant data is disclosed. 5 e 47 2R AR A R ©

Target of energy and water consumption intensity FEEERFEKEZEBRZ
Environmental KPI Reduction Target Baseline Year Status
Iﬁiﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂ?’éff? AEEB R BEF Ak RE
Energy consumptlon |nten5|ty Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
- ﬁa"zﬁ# G HR20255 EE AR 3% 2020 (T
o "V_\/ater, consumption intensity Reduce 3% by Year 2025 Year 2020 In progress
L EKEBE 1220254 FE AR 3% 20205 & T
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Regarding measures to mitigate emissions, the Group closely
monitors the level of resources consumption, GHG emissions and
wastes disposal of construction sites, the Hong Kong Offices and

Mf‘fﬁ’?ﬁ’ ‘ﬁFﬁﬁZE’HﬁEﬁﬁ'ﬁ ’Zﬁﬁgbtﬂ?mhﬁ
_LEE%FEAZ&EE%¢@E§ZK$ $%./E ﬁ*ﬁﬁ

PPN

PRC Offices. The Group is required to set its respective energy and E’] EREREKEE WAEB A TIEEUBIRZER

carbon reduction targets and come up with feasible measures to

Zo BRI T

achieve them. The details and results achieved are listed as follows:

Projects

HH

Details and results achieved

EALES

Multi-function devices

Non-hazardous waste

The multi-function devices with printing, scanning and photocopying have been extensively
adopted. Employees are advised to switch on the devices only when use and switch off after
office hours, which have reduced electricity consumption.

BEZRAETN -BHRHEZHNNZSYERFE ERESETEAKHAE  LEFHA
R R AR R A LU D EES -

Motor vehicles are restricted to serve for senior management to attend business meetings and
to be used by important clients or business partners.

AEERSHEEBLEBFEEREREPAEBBHER -

Non-hazardous waste from construction sites and Hong Kong offices include consumables,
household waste, paper and paper boxes. Construction sites, the Hong Kong Offices and
PRC Offices have made their best effort to minimise their impact on the environment by
using recyclable paper and paper boxes. Construction sites, the Hong Kong Offices and PRC
Offices promote separation of waste such as cartons and plastic bottles, which are placed in
designated areas to be collected by recyclers.
BET#HREAMEENESERYEIEHER  EIFIR - AR KA E&%EOL;”‘%I%
EEMEERTEANMEEZBER I RIWARRKEE IBHRKESIRIENTER
RR-BERIM - EBMEERTEMEEXBREAI R EROEREZY(EDE JZE
H>REREERE > UFEIWEE -
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THE ENVIRONMENT AND NATURAL
RESOURCES

The Group understands that its performance in respect of emissions,
waste produced, and use of resources impacts the environment,
the Group endeavours to minimise such impacts, and communicate
the Group's environmental policy, measures, performance, and
achievements to the stakeholders.

The Group is committed to reducing the operation impacts on
environment and natural resources. Series of guidelines are issued to
the workforce (in-house workforce as well as subcontractors) on air
pollution, water pollution, noise control and waste management at
works.

CLIMATE CHANGE

Awareness over climate change continues to grow and is one of
the most discussed topics among companies. The Group is no
exception, having increasing concerns over the potential impact
from climate change on the Group's business and operation. The
Group regularly reviews global and local government policies,
regulatory updates and market trends to identify potential climate
related risks which may have impact on the Group's business
operation.

There are two major categories of climate-related risks, physical
and transition risks. The Group will immediately develop a response
plan such as changing the business strategy and modifying the
development plan in order to reduce the negative impacts of such
climate-related risks.

The Group will continuously incorporate sustainable practices in its
business operations and prepare and maintain sufficient resources
for managing identified climate-related risks and studying the
potential remediation measures.

During the Year 2022, there is no climate-related risk, including
phySIcaI and transmonal risks, which has significant impact to the
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EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR PRACTICES

The Group recognises the significance of talent management
in achieving long-term business growth. In managing the
talents, the Group upholds the principles of fairness and market

competitiveness, as well as rewards on high performances.

The Group is an equal opportunity employer and oppose any form
of discrimination in the hiring process. Employment opportunities
and treatment of employees are not affected by personal attributes
like race, religion, nationality, age or gender. The Group also strictly
prohibits any act of sexual harassment.

The Group provides competitive remuneration packages to staff.
Employees who have completed the probation period are entitled
to medical insurance as well as bonuses and allowances. The Group
has set reasonable working hours, rest periods, and different types
of leave including annual, maternity and examination leave, to
further cater to the personal needs of employees. In addition to
the basic benefits, the Group also provides meals to workers at the
construction sites.

The Group conducts annual remuneration review of employees
based on their performance. As per the policy on promotion, the
Group prioritises internal promotion and would only seek to hire
through open recruitment when internal promotion is not suitable.

All human resources policies are communicated through the
employee handbook and other communication channels such as
bulletin postings or emails, to ensure all staff members are well
aware of their rights and responsibilities.

Annual Report 2022 &R

BlEk5E TER

FEFESEAT EEHRMANRMEBERAS
BEERZ -ABEEBEASK sEREFEAFTRTE
MPEHRA W ERIHTE

FEENDTEREET THRBEETREEWN
FEINBIIRAR o IR~ RE Bl RS~ F e MR E 1@
NFETEREREUENEERFB - AEETR
BEEMEREBTR

ﬂiilﬁélkﬁ\,f*%j}m%ﬁ@ﬂ TB BB
RN EE N ZFBRMABRURIEAL K2 - 5%
EEHEI S EN TIERZ {EX/HH&TH@?&E’\J%
R BERFR ERAEAR E—TREREREN
BATE FFREXREFIN AEEIFERE T MY
TARMHER-

FEESFRESRFER EEFHM - 2RI
E’J‘*_—‘*ﬂBZ” FEREBHREBARLAB EREE
WEB AR 75§ ARIEE

FTIE ANERBREBREFMAEMBMRE
(BN S EE) & URREBETETH
EFREE-

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited ¥ X IEE# (EIE) R A RA S 73



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
mizr 21T S A
IRIE s Tt EREAHRES

The workforce compositions of the Hong Kong Offices and PRC  FR2022512831H » HERMEE R P EMEENE

Offices as of 31 December 2022 are stated as follows: BAEGHEINUT -

BABENE S8 Year 2022 Year 2021
Employee Statistics by different categories EBESRAHF 20224EE 201 E
Total number of staff in head offices WM ERE T A 25 45
By gender g kall
- Male —BEM 12 26
- Female —ut 13 19
By age BEHe
- Aged under 30 —30BE AT 5 7
- Aged 30-50 —30&508% 15 25
- Aged over 50 —505% A £ 5 13
By employment categories B8R
- Senior level — =4 5 13
- Middle level — R 10 15
— Entry level — &R 10 17
By geographical region &
- Hong Kong —&5E 8 31
- China — R 17 14

As of 31 December 2022, the Hong Kong Offices and PRC Offices 220228 12831H » HEAEMEERPEMER B2
had 25 employees, of whom 100% were full-time employees with & {EE > REHVAEHLBES -
permanent employment term.
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During the year, the turnover rates of employees of the Hong Kong
Offices and PRC Offices by different categories are as follows:

RERN RAEENE DS B E R &P EH
%%E@{E%mﬁitt%@? .

Year 2022 Year 2021
20224E[E 2015 E

AR 9 Turnover rate®™ Turnover rate!”

Employee turnover rate by different categories BEmKLEED MR EEEM il
By gender g kall

Male S 74% 20%
Female ZM% 38% =
By age ke

Under 30 years old 305 AR 33% -
30-50 years old 30E508% 50% 20%
Over 50 years old 508 L 89% =
By geographical region #it&

Hong Kong S 118% 3%
PRC e - 29%
Note: B 5F

1 The employee turnover rate is calculated based on the number of (1) BEMRKILEEBRNEANKRIELERBRNVEE AH

employees who cease employment during the year divided by the
average number of employees during the year in each category.

In Year 2022, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with the Employment Ordinance for Hong Kong
Offices and construction sites in Hong Kong and Labour Law of
the PRC (FRZE AR HME S B)E) for PRC Offices relating to
compensation and dismissal, recruitment and promotion, working
hours, rest periods, equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
as well as other benefits and welfare.

RN ERRLER N FHIESEAHE -

FL20226F 5 > A S 0 5 3 3R B B 02 R A A
R BEREM TR RA TEH
2 Sl REGEUREMTEREN S ERN
(ERIFH) EEBMEREAREBRRETH) K(F
EARHEMEFEE) (TEMER) BER-
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

As the Group is primarily involved in construction activities,
occupational health and safety is one of the top priorities. The Group
has a Safety, Health and Environment policy in place to ensure good
health and safety of employees.

The Group has designated person in charge of safety issues to
better manage health and safety issues. Safety officers will regularly
review and check for updates of the relevant laws, and make regular
inspections to ensure safety. Besides regular inspections, the Group
also provides monthly industry safety training and occupational
risk assessments to increase employees’ awareness and reduce the
chance of work accidents.

Depending on the nature of their work, workers are required to wear
appropriate personal protective equipment. No workers are allowed
to operate machineries or perform high-risk tasks such as working in
confined space or working with electrical appliances without strict
supervision and approval of supervisors.

The Group has informed workers about planned escape routes
in case of emergencies and have provided proper signage and
instruction for caution areas in the workplace. When employees
identify potential health and safety risks, they are required to
escalate the issues to management for follow-up actions.

During the Year 2022, there were five cases of work-related injuries
at the construction site in Hong Kong. In response to the accident,
the Group has taken appropriate remedial action including training
on construction safety for the workers and putting up more safety
posters and instructions at the different areas of the site.

BREZZ

HARAEETE22HEBRTY BERRERZE
DEREANBIRZ — AEERERLE - BEK
RIBEER LR REENRERZ 2

FEECHERKAEEEZELER BFHEER
RRZEEH Z2AERERBRS RIREEREH
ERNRTEN WERGRURZ R - FREHR
2 AEBTRMHEATEL2HIIRBER
et d > LU S E B MR H R ETERS
RIS o

TAEABRTIFEEZZESBREARERE

EREEBAEBRBEBRILENERT TA
—THHA%WY &7 BB EE > HIIN BB 2R
T{EeiR{EE2S

FEFEDEMTAZEERRBREAYE SR LR
o WR TSR TAEMIEFENEERT
Kigme BRE%IFE ffi)%i&%?’i\ﬂﬁ SRR
AREEAS LHRARMEE LUFRE

FR202FER BEENRBRETMEBEELESRTTIES
o AREBERBGEENBBITHRERIN B1F
ATARMEEEZ2EI > W T REEE R
EZ LR BHRKLIER

Year 2022 Year 2021

Work-related injuries I 2022 E 2021 F
Cases of work-related fatalities A TERAFZMIETBISE - =
Cases of work-related injuries AT ERIAETM B ER - 5
RAIEEEIIFERH _ 888

Lost—da_ys _'d'ue'.t-o Wofk—related injuries

The Group had no employees involved in work related fatalities in
:Lhe past three years.

76  Cr vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited & 5= I (BIFS) 2R 5 1RA S

REE=F  AEETHEESHEH T ERAEMIET

Annual Report 2022 FE R



Environmental, Social and Governance Report

BIE g REARE

(the "COVID-19"), the
Group has immediately followed the local authority’s hygiene
guidelines and has established a series of Anti-COVID measures that
has been executed since early of 2020, and will be continuously

As the outbreak of coronavirus disease 2019

enhanced from time to time until pandemic is in basic control. The
Group Anti-COVID measures include but not limited to: (i) checking
body temperature before entering to the business premises; (ii)
providing disposable protective mask and hand sanitizers for all
employees and visitors; (iii) sterilizing designated high risk areas
frequently; (iv) keeping a proper communicating and working
distance; (v) fully disinfecting business premises regularly; and (vi)
employee diversion dinning to reduce crowd gathered.

While navigating health and safety concerns to mitigate the
outbreak of the COVID-19 and in combating to the virus, the
Group has to ensure a provision of safe working environment with
abundant supply of face masks to employees.

The Group adheres to relevant health and safety laws, such as
Factories and Industrial Undertakings (Safety Officers and Safety
Supervisors) Regulations, Occupational Safety and Health Ordinance
of Hong Kong, Law of the PRC on Prevention and Control of
Occupational Diseases (F#E A R BB 2K FG7E7%) and
Work- Related Injury Insurance Regulation (LR A of the
PRC. During the Year 2022, the Group was not aware of any material
non-compliance with laws and regulations regarding occupational
health and safety.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

As employee’s capabilities can drive the long-term development
of the Group, the Group seeks to enhance their skills by providing
them with various training opportunities. The Group has a Training
Policy that is focused on imparting training and qualifications to the
management, aiming at:

Company secretarial;

China and Hong Kong tax; and

ISO training.

Annual Report 2022 &R

BEE 20198 A F SR (TCOVID-19)) 182 » KEET
e EREEIESIRGIE T —RIBIBEHE
B A EF2020F AT > Ko RS F & 058 »
BERBEAZIES - AEBENNEEREEE
BARERR (EEANEEISZARAEER ()5
FrEREMARIRME—RIER %D%%Mﬁ,& 5
(IS EHIEESRREETHS (WFRTHE
REBEA TEmREE ;( /EHHﬁA%%FﬁLﬁ%E
HE S RVIEI D RBELURD ANBERE -

TERR B %2 2 IR LUREECOVID-191R BRI %2
ERFEENNBRER  LAERREHZEZH
THRRIE REERETENOS-

FrERETHARRERZ2ER AW IERRT
ERE (Z2XTRERZEEER) RH EBWEE
L2 RBEFH) - (FEARKENBBERN G
%) BB (TASRBRARG] ) 122022 2 » A EH
WEZERARBERERLEIEARMERSE
BERERTERIBR

ERRIEN
BENENEDRDHEIERNENER Hitd
FEDRRRBTABIIRE > B IRT REH
RibE o AR BN BUIEE  BRHEREmE
SR ST
ATE ;
PERERNE R

SO i

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited # X B (BIFX) R B R A S 77



Environmental, Social and Governance Report
IBIE \ B REARE

Employee training could be in forms of in-class learning, E-learning, {EEIBIINF NI BIEREE BEFE2E Hist
seminars and coaching. Staff members taking part in external ﬁ&?ﬁ’_°¥kﬁﬁ7ﬁ?:ﬂtﬂéfl/,\5’|‘ﬁﬁi—‘uJ||E']§I,LiE
training are also encouraged to share their learning with other MEIEADZE2BRB A MNE  2HEFHEHD
colleagues. When necessary, employees taking part in professional  EE HEEB R BIFERTER > FEEIER
examinations are granted paid leaves as well. Under the current  B3% :

policy, the major training topics include:

Regulatory compliance (e.g. relevant Listing Rules, Corporate  « BEEAR GINERACEMRA) ~ (xS
Governance Code, the Securities and Futures Ordinance and BSTR s GBS R ERAD U BB
other applicable rules and regulations in Hong Kong and SNV EAME B RE AR ;
overseas);
Anti-money laundering and counter terrorist financing; . RERBRITERMD TESESE;
Environmental, health and safety regulations; . BB -RERLEZER;
Relevant rules/regulations in the construction industry; and - B EMRRARRI R K
Crisis response awareness. . O e B, o
During the year, the employee training rate is as follows: RER BEFIILEERNT !
Year 2022 Year 2021
20225 fE 2021 E
Percentage of employees trained® ZIlRE B2 100% 100%
Percentage of employees trained categorised ZHERESNZIIEE
by gender? Bt
Male sM 48% 58%
Female e 52% 42%
Percentage of employees trained categorised ZEEHENS2NZIIEES
by employment categories? Bt
Senior level = AR 20% 29%
Middle level AR 40% 33%
General level — R AR A 40% 38%
Notes: B 5E -
1. It is calculated by dividing the number of employees who took part 1. B2HENEEAFBRUFREE AHG
in training by the number of employees as at year end. Ho
2. '_Jt is. calculated by dividing the number of employees trained in such 2. ZEEENNZIEE ANEGRUZIIRE A

ik -category by the number of employees trained. B=tEo

_The |nforma1|on on average training hours completed per employee  BREIZER & EREIER 2 DHNELEE K
: -Categonsed by gender and employment categories are considered ~ HJFEHRFH M ERER AW AE A > HILA RS
Aot S|gn|f|cant hence they are not covered in this report. I 48 25 ©
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LABOUR STANDARDS

Use of forced and child labour is strictly prohibited by the
Group. The Group adheres to all relevant regulations and laws to
safeguard the rights of the employees and does not tolerate labour
exploitation. If any child labour or forced labour is identified, the
employment contract will be terminated immediately.

All relevant laws, such as the Employment Ordinance of Hong
Kong, Labour Law of the PRC (FRZE A R HFE % 87%), the
Provisions on the Prohibition of Using Child Labour (22 IEfEFHE
T3R7E) of the PRC and the relevant laws and regulations relating
to preventing child or forced labour are regularly reviewed to
ensure the compliance of the labour practices by the Hong Kong
Office, PRC Offices and construction sites in Hong Kong. During
the recruitment process, the Group verifies the applicant’s age and
the practice is extended to the supplier selection process as well.
Any noncompliance will be escalated to the director for further
investigation and handling.

During the Year 2022, the Group was not aware of any material
noncompliance with laws and regulations regarding child labour
and forced labour.

SUPPLY CHAIN MANAGEMENT

In the construction projects, the Group works with different
subcontractors and suppliers. Therefore, supply chain management
is important to the Group's provision of quality construction work.

The Group has in place well-established procedures to select
and monitor subcontractors and supplier partners. The Group's
procedures in selecting suppliers for projects are well-documented
in the Selection of Subcontractor and Supplier policy, which requires
careful assessment of suppliers based on criteria such as reputation,
capability, work quality, experience and other relevant factors.
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During the year 2022, the Group continues to monitor supplier
performance and adopt adequate control measures to ensure that
the purchased products conform to project specifications. Beyond
quality and legal compliance, the Group expects the subcontractors
to adopt fair labour practices and demonstrate environmental
stewardship. The requirements for suppliers are communicated in
the Supplier Code of Conduct, and the Group evaluates supplier
performance through site visits to confirm their compliance with
the code. Only those who pass the evaluation would stay on the
Approved Subcontractors/Suppliers List, and severe noncompliance
may ultimately lead to cease of collaboration.

The Group also has a separate Procedure for Selection of External
Professional Parties, which provides guidance on appointing
external professional advisers based on factors such as quality and
independence.

As of 31 December 2022, the number of subcontractors and
suppliers categorised by geographical region is as follows:

PRRonEE AEREFERERHERRE WK
B S miE  ARPIBENERTSERR
BN EEERERREN FEBRRD SR
BN FHETER RBRIESF AEEHMH
EENEZRENHEFTATR TEEMER
SHEHEBENRREFRT G TR - RARBNG
MR S BRI RMNF I D ER, (e
BRE BEFTARNBRAEEREENSHE
iko

AEETRABUNIINBEZEALTRERS 5
REERERBUMERRZEIN T EERREM
"35le

72022128310 @& 8| 9D B RAtER
ANBINTF :

Year 2022 Year 2021
20224 2001 EE
Hong Kong &8 - 174
Mainland China A [ER] P9 18 27

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY

It is the goal to improve the quality of life in society and build for a
better environment. To achieve this goal, the Group strives to deliver
high-quality, safe construction services to the clients.

To ensure the delivery of high-quality services consistently, the
Group has established and implemented an ISO 9001:2015 certified
quality management system. It provides reliable assurance of the
contracted services and works and fulfils the following criteria:

meeting. customer expectations and relevant regulatory
requirements;

- satisfying customers through continuous improvement of
- products and services; and

: 'fu'lﬁll'ing contract requirements with quality management as
the top priority.
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The Group is committed to protecting customer information and
safeguard their privacy. Guidelines have been set up to control the
collection, access, updating, security and retention of customer data
and assets. In addition, sufficient information technology related
control measures are implemented to prevent unauthorized access
and virus attack in the operating and accounting systems containing
customer information.

The Group engaged experts to regularly monitor any potential
infringement of Intellectual Property Rights. (the “IP rights”).

Customers can submit complaint through social media channel of
the Group's services where a post sale service staff will regularly
respond and take follow-up actions for customer’s enquiry. During
the Year 2022, there are no cases of product recall and complaints
received against the Group's products and service which are due to
health and safety issues.

During the Year 2022, the Group is not aware of any non-compliance
with Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance of Hong Kong, Trade
Description Ordinance of Hong Kong and the relevant laws and
regulations in Hong Kong and the PRC relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and method of redress.

The Group is not aware of any material non-compliance with the
Trade Descriptions Ordinance, Copyright Ordinance, Prevention
of Copyright Piracy Ordinance and other applicable laws and
regulations that have a significant impact relating to health and safety,
advertising, labelling and privacy matters relating to products and
services provided and methods of redress on the Group in Year 2022.

In addition, no significant fines had been reported in Year 2022.
ANTI-CORRUPTION

Employees at all levels are required to conduct themselves with
integrity, impartiality and honesty. The Group strictly adheres to
the Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong. In addition,
the Group has in place an Anti-bribery and Corruption Policy,
which provides a clear definition of bribery and corruption acts,
and documents the internal control and escalation procedures in
handling suspected cases. ;

As a supplement to the Anti-bribery and Corruption ﬁb’licy,-fh‘é'

Staff Discipline Policy provides guidance on employeesbehaviour,
including the acceptance of gifts and conflict of interests, to further
enhance the awareness of employees. The above policies ensure
that employees across levels adhere to anti-bribery laws and
follow the best practices in combating corruption-in all business
operations of the Group.
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The Group also seeks to promote awareness of the employees
through anti-corruption training. The colleagues attended
antimoney laundering training, which covered topics including
updates on regulatory changes, banking requirements and the
detection of money laundering.

The staff members are encouraged to report suspected corruption
cases. The Group has a Whistle-blowing Policy that protects
the whistle-blower from possible retaliation while discouraging
malicious allegations made in bad faith through established
mechanisms. Under the policy, the whistle-blower’s identity is
protected and retaliation is not permissible against him or her. The
Group will investigate the reported incidents thoroughly and will
take disciplinary actions against any misconduct. In addition, the
Group shall report suspected corruption cases to the Independent
Commission Against Corruption of Hong Kong. The Group held one
session of anti-corruption training for directors and staff.

The Group strictly regulates the operation of its business to ensure
compliance with national and local laws and regulations relating
to anti-corruption during the course of operation. In the Year
2022, there was no case of any material non-compliance with the
Prevention of Bribery Ordinance of Hong Kong, the Anti-Unfair
Competition Law of the PRC and the relevant laws and regulations
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering that have
a significant impact. In addition, there was no report of significant
fines or sanctions as a result of non-compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations in the Year 2022.

COMMUNITY INVESTMENT

The Group sincerely believes that growth is closely tied to the
surrounding community and the environment. In order to
raise the awareness of climate change and energy saving, the
Group participated in Environmentally Friendly Work Places and

Environmental Campaign “Earth Hour 2022 in Sun Hung Kai Centre”

held by SHK. Real Estate Management Company Ltd., by raising
the awareness of environmental protection and sustainability and
climate change and energy saving.

FEEDBACK

The Group will continue to adopt measures for the benefit of ESG
in its operations. Stakeholders' feedback is valuable and can help
the Gr@up to |mprove its operational, environmental, social and
govemanca pollqes and procedures. Please feel free to share your
feedback on the performance via any of the following channels:

o Room Nos. 808-814, 8th Floor, Sun Hung Kai Centre,
- 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong
info@ctvision994.com
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV S Ik

i

ZHONGHUI

To the Shareholders of CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of CT
Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on pages
89 to 199, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial
position as at 31 December 2022, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, consolidated
statement of changes in equity and consolidated statement of
cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and
fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and
its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance
with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the
"HKICPA") and have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on these
matters. We have determined the matter described below to be the
key audit matter to be communicated in our report.

REVENUE RECOGNITION OF CONSTRUCTION
SERVICE

Refer to Notes 5 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements

We identified the revenue recognition from these construction
contracts as a key audit matter as it is significant to the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income
and management’s judgment is involved in measuring the stage
of completion of construction works completed during the
year. Construction works may take several years to complete.
Management estimates the revenue by assessing the progress
of construction works. As disclosed in note 4 to the consolidated
financial statements, the management's estimate of revenue and
the comp.le‘t'i'o'_h's_tatus of construction works requires significant
judgméhtp’};'arjd' has'a significant impact on the amount and timing of
) rq_‘y.e_rj_ue’_ffe_‘g’_bg’_’rjiséd-.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV S Ik

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Obtaining an understanding of the key controls over the
revenue recognition and determination of the completion
status of construction works;

- Obtaining an understanding from the project managers of the
status of completion of the construction projects during the
year on a sample basis; and

- Assessing the management’s estimate of revenue from
construction works, by checking to the Group's latest internal
construction progress reports on a sample basis to verify the
value of construction works completed and comparing these
to the latest certificates issued by the surveyors appointed by
the customers.

We consider that the Group's estimates of the revenue recognised
are supported by the available evidence.

TRADE RECEIVABLES AND CONTRACT ASSETS

Refer to Notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial
statements

The Group tested the amounts of trade receivables and contract
assets for impairment. This impairment test is significant to our audit
because the balances of trade receivables and contract assets of
HK$98,608,000 and HK$160,489,000 respectively, as at 31 December
2022 are material to the consolidated financial statements. In
addition, the Group's impairment test involves application of
judgement and is based on estimates.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV S Tk

Our audit procedures included, among others:

- Assessing the Group's procedures on granting credit limits and
credit periods to debtors;

- Assessing the Group's relationship and transaction history with
the debtors;

- Evaluating the Group's impairment assessment;

- Assessing ageing of the trade receivables;

- Assessing creditworthiness of the debtors;

- Checking subsequent settlements from the debtors;

- Assessing the disclosure of the Group's exposure to credit risk
in the consolidated financial statements; and

- Testing subsequent contract work certification and settlement
of contract assets and receivables respectively after the
balance sheet date on a sample basis.

We consider that the Group's impairment test for trade receivables
and contract assets is supported by the available evidence.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all the information in the Company’s annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV S Ik

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to
report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance
with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements
of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal
control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the
directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations,
or have no realistic alternative but to do so.
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Independent Auditor’s Report
RV S Tk

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report our opinion
solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not
assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person
for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level
of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

A further description of our responsibilities for the audit of the
consolidated financial statements is located at the HKICPA's website
at:

https://www.hkicpa.org.hk/en/Standards-setting/Standards/Our-views/auditre

This description forms part of our auditor’s report.

ZHONGHUI ANDA CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Fong Tak Ching

Audit Engagement Director
Practising Certificate Number P06353

Hong Kong, 31 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

rEEmxEME

W am

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
B 5 FET TAET
(Restated)
(B7)
Continuing operations FHBIREER
Revenue Uz 213,379 207,144
Cost of revenue W 3 AR A (198,290) (182,981)
Gross profit EF 15,089 24,163
Other income HMA 1,433 1,479
Other gains and losses HthiEm (2) 3
Net impairment losses on trade B RAREREGHR
receivables and contract assets BEEMEBERETFHE 3.1(b) (3,892) (518)
Selling and administrative expenses HE RITHEEXS 9 (51,337) (64,754)
Operating loss RER1E (38,709) (39,633)
Finance costs BA RS A 11 (1,360) (1,223)
Loss before income tax MREFIS ARS8 (40,069) (40,856)
Income tax expense FriSiR B 12 (1,428) (1,452)
Loss for the year from FIEREER2
continuing operations FEFE (41,497) (42,308)
Discontinued operations BARIREER
Loss for the year from BRIEREERE
discontinued operations FEEIE 28 (49,487) (60,742)
Loss for the year FEBE (90,984) (103,050)
Other comprehensive (loss)/income EHfth2 & (F18) W=
Item that may be reclassified to B] EF 57 48 F 18 an HY
profit or loss: EHH . :
Exchange differences on translation of Tﬁi%ﬁ%%%ﬁﬁ%iﬁ'\] e e
foreign operations tEREER (9,195) e
Total comprehensive loss for the year FE 25184258 (100,179) (99,329)
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income
iroEm AEMEEW S

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
Note HK$’000 HKS$'000
[l TFHET TFHET
(Restated)
(E3))
Loss for the year attributable to: MTFALTEGFE
B518
Owners of the Company KATER A
Loss from continuing operations B EER 2
& (37,964) (40,085)
Loss from discontinued operations ERIEEEER
B8 (49,487) (60,742)
Loss attributable to owners PN/NETEZ X = DN
of the Company E5i8 (87,451) (100,827)
Non-controlling interest 2
Loss from continuing operations FERESER
B8 (3,533) (2,223)
Loss from discontinued operations BARIEKREERE
B8 - >
Loss attributable to JEEE G e FE A
non-controlling interest 518 (3,533) (2,223)
(90,984) (103,050)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ WU N A LEGEEETE
attributable to: E51R4EEE .
Owners of the Company KREER A (96,984) (97,041)
Non-controlling interest FFIERG RE R (3,195) (2,288)
(100,179) (99,329)
Loss per share for loss attributable to ZsAF# 85 AL E51E
owners of the Company ZEREE
From continuing-and REBFEM
discontinued operations EARIEREETS
Basic and diluted (HK cenits) EHARR#5E (B 13 (11.49) (13.25)
B ',F_';c_)'fﬁ_c'oﬁ_t.i.r_jbin'g operations REFBREER
“ . Basicand diluted (HK cents) BT E (B (4.99) (5.27)

- The above consolidated statement of profit or loss and other  Fifism& 1B K EMEE W R ERABMN
~ comprehensive income should be read in conjunction with the  —@3tE93g8o
accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
e IRR

At 31 December 2022 F22022512831H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes HK$’'000 HKS$'000
5 FHET FHET
Assets BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment MEBEKRFEE 16 1,589 2,272
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 10,948 8,761
Goodwill meE 18 21,523 23,355
Deposits b 20 1,550 1,740
Deferred tax assets R IEE E 23 1,324 380
36,934 36,508
Current assets REEE
Trade receivables, deposits and B EWTIEEE
other receivables K B e W FR I8 20 129,397 165,030
Contract assets BHEE 2] 160,489 238,721
Cash and bank balances RE M IR1TAEER 22 4,454 20,911
294,340 424,662
Total assets HMEE 331,274 461,170
Equity =
Share capital A& A 24 7,608 7,608
Reserves B 25 93,951 190,935
Capital and reserves attributable to RARER ANEILER
owners of the Company K (& 101,559 198,543
Non-controlling interest IR R (6,228) (3,033)
Total equity AR R 95,331 195,510
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

RE R BINER

At 31 December 2022 122022512831H

2022 2021
20224 20214
Notes HKS$'000 HKS$'000
b 5 F#ET FET
Liabilities aE
Non-current liabilities ERBEEFE
Lease liabilities HEaE 17 5,256 4,082
5,256 4,082
Current liabilities mENaE
Trade and other payables B2 RAMENIE 26 201,704 203,282
Contract liabilities HHEaE 21 467 7,393
Current tax liabilities BIHEAfRIEEE 5,053 10,168
Amount due to immediate ET BB TR AT RIE
holding company 33(@a) 19,164 28,358
Lease liabilities HEaE 17 4,299 3,377
Borrowings EEN 27 - 9,000
230,687 261,578
Total liabilities wmaeE 235,943 265,660
Total equity and liabilities MiEEREE 331,274 461,170

The consolidated financial statements on pages 89 to 199 were
approved by the Board of Directors on 31 March 2023 and were

signed on its behalf:

Guo Jianfeng
R UE
DIRECTOR
EFE

.T’r_‘ié abp@e,_éohéo'lidated statement of financial position should be
- read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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FBROFE1VE NG E M FIRFZEBEFT ZH20235F
3E3TE#LE WHIUTERAREE !

Sun Dexin
®BiEE
DIRECTOR
EE

EatER & MR R e AR RA MY S — G BIRE -
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

l\\7|_\ jt

\ im0,

2EIR

At 31 December 2022 F22022512831H

Attributable to owners of the Company

TATERAES
Non-
Share Share Other Exchange Accumulated controlling
capital premium reserve reserve losses Total interest  Total equity
ke REE  Hfthe  ERRE  RitEH @5t ks arx
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEr TER FAET TET THET TEr TEr TER
At 1 January 2021 R01E181H 7,608 278,775 43,100 1,468 (35367) 295,584 (745) 294,839
Loss for the year FEFA - - - - (100827) (100827) (2223) (103,050)
Other comprehensive  FEHMZEEE
loss for the year - - - 3,786 - 3,786 (65) 3,721
Total comprehensive  FEZHERSEHALE
loss for the year - - - 3,786 (100,827) (97,041) (2,288) (99,329)
At 31 December 2021 12021128318 7,608 278,775 43,100 5,254 (136,194) 198,543 (3033) 195,510
t 1 January 2022 R202E1818 7,608 278,775 43,100 5,254 (136,194) 198,543 (3,033) 195,510
Loss for the year FEBE - - - - (87,451) (87,451) (3,533) (90,984)
Other comprehensive ~ EEHM2H (518)
(loss)/income for the /W&
year - - - (9,533) = (9,533) 338 (9,195)
Total comprehensive loss 2 E B
for the year = = = (9,533) (87,451) (96,984) (3195 (100,179)
Disposal of subsidaries & & A 7] - - (43,100) - 43,100 - - -
At31December 2022 120225128318 7,608 278,775 - (4,279) (180,545) 101,559 (6,228) 95,331
The above consolidated statement of changes in equity should be  E#ii4RE TR S BN R IEAARRIMIEE—HBEIE

read in conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
FeREERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2022 2021
20225 20214
Notes HK$’000 HKS$'000
M5 FAET TET
Cash flows from operating activities EEEZHRBRERE
Cash generated from operations REMBIRE 31 9,187 17,978
Income tax paid BPEHR (350) (1,504)
Net cash generated from REEBNS
operating activities REFEE 8,837 16,474
Cash flows from investing activities RE;ZHFFBRERE
Purchases of property, plant and BEME -BEKREE
equipment 16 (50) (510)
Proceeds from disposal of other non- HEHMIERSHEEDN
current assets P 1S 718 - 20,203
Proceeds from disposal of property, HEWE  BERZE
plant and equipment FrigskIE 3] = 198
Interest received BUWF B 322 1,689
Net cash outflow on disposal of HERB AT Z
subsidiaries b i na b (1,155) =
Net cash (used in)/generated from 2 &% &) (FRA) Frifd
investing activities HEBEE (883) 21,580
Cash flows from financing activities FIZE;EBIFIFIRERE
(Repayment to)/advances from (M EEIERATER
immediate holding company S EBEERABEBRN (8,456) 23,618
Principal elements of lease payments  FAE SR A EZE 5 (5,037) (7,615)
Repayment of bonds BRES (9,000) =
Repayment of bank borrowings BERIBITER - (43,110)
Interest paid BENHE (1,375) (2479
Repayment to directors MEEEMN - (4,468)
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

\vT\ Eﬁiuu%%

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

2022 2021
20224 20214
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET TET
Net cash used in financing activities FEE ;EENFARAREFEE (23,868) (34,054)
Net (decrease)/increase in cashand RERIFEEEY
cash equivalents GR2) /G hne 8 (15,914) 4,000
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning RNEZRE KRR E
of the year EEY 20,911 16,726
Effects of exchange rate changes on EXEHHIBERIAS
cash and cash equivalents LEYNTE (543) 185
Cash and cash equivalents at end RERZRERAE
of the year ZEW 4,454 20911

The above consolidated statement of cash flows should be read in
conjunction with the accompanying notes.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

e B HRRMIE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

96

GENERAL

CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited (the “Company”)
was incorporated in the Cayman Islands as an exempted
company with limited liability under the Companies Law,
(Cap. 22, Law 3 of 1961, as consolidated and revised) of
the Cayman Islands and its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its
immediate holding company and ultimate holding company
is CT Vision Investment Limited, a private limited company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (“BVI"). The addresses
of the registered office and principal place of business of
the Company is Room Nos. 808-814, 8th Floor, Sun Hung Kai
Centre, 30 Harbour Road, Wanchai, Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its principal subsidiaries are set out in
Note 15.

These consolidated financial statements of the Company
and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
are presented in Hong Kong dollars (“HKS"), unless otherwise
stated.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies
adopted in the preparation of these consolidated financial
statements. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation

(a) Compliance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) and Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance (“HKCO”)

& _T_He consolidated financial statements have
- been prepared in accordance with HKFRSs and
- disclosure requirements of the HKCO Cap. 622.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.1 Basis of preparation (continued)

(b)

(c)

(d)

Historical cost convention

The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared on a historical cost basis.

New and amended standards adopted by the
Group

In the current year, the Group has adopted all the
new and revised HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA
that are relevant to its operations and effective for
its accounting year beginning on 1 January 2022.
HKFRSs comprise Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards; Hong Kong Accounting Standards
("HKAS"); and Interpretations. The adoption of
these new and revised HKFRSs did not result in
significant changes to the Group's accounting
policies, presentation of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements and amounts reported for
the current year and prior years.

New and amended standards not yet adopted

The Group has not applied the new HKFRSs that
have been issued but are not yet effective. The
application of these new HKFRSs will not have
material impact on the financial statements of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAE:HEFEHE @

POLICIES (continued)

2.2 Subsidiaries 22 MiBATE

98
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Subsidiaries are all entities (including structured entities)
over which the Group has control. The Group controls
an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights
to, variable returns from its involvement with the entity
and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power to direct the activities of the entity. Subsidiaries
are fully consolidated from the date on which control is
transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from
the date that control ceases.

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for business combinations by the Group (refer
to Note 2.3).

Intercompany transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless
the transaction provides evidence of an impairment of
the transferred asset. Accounting policies of subsidiaries
have been changed where necessary to ensure
consistency with the policies adopted by the Group.

Non-controlling interests in the results and equity of
subsidiaries are shown separately in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, consolidated statement of changes in equity
and consolidated statement of financial position
respectively.

The gain or loss on the disposal of a subsidiary that
results in a loss of control represents the difference
between (i) the fair value of the consideration of the
sale-plus the fair value of any investment retained in

_ .-'_'fﬁa'_i'su'bsidiary and (i) the Company’s share of the net
: "'.«a_\'é_'set$ of that subsidiary plus any remaining goodwill

- relating to that subsidiary and any related accumulated
- foreign currency translation reserve.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.

POLICIES (continued)

BEAEHEERE @

2.3 Business combinations

The acquisition method of accounting is used to
account for all business combinations, regardless of
whether equity instruments or other assets are acquired.
The consideration transferred for the acquisition of a
subsidiary comprises the:

fair values of the assets transferred;

liabilities incurred to the former owners of the
acquired business;

equity interests issued by the Group;

fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement; and

fair value of any pre-existing equity interest in the
subsidiary.

Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination are, with
limited exceptions, measured initially at their fair values
at the acquisition date. The Group recognises any
non-controlling interest in the acquired entity on an
acquisition-by-acquisition basis either at fair value or at
the non-controlling interest’s proportionate share of the
acquired entity’s net identifiable assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.3 Business combinations (continued)
The excess of the
consideration transferred,

amount of any non-controlling interest in the
acquired entity, and

acquisition-date fair value of any previous equity
interest in the acquired entity

over the fair value of the net identifiable assets acquired
is recorded as goodwill. If those amounts are less
than the fair value of the net identifiable assets of the
business acquired, the difference is recognised directly
in profit or loss as a bargain purchase.

Where settlement of any part of cash consideration
is deferred, the amounts payable in the future are
discounted to their present value as at the date
of exchange. The discount rate used is the entity’s
incremental borrowing rate, being the rate at which
a similar borrowing could be obtained from an
independent financier under comparable terms and
conditions. Contingent consideration is classified either
as equity or a financial liability. Amounts classified as a
financial liability are subsequently remeasured to fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss.

If the business combination is achieved in stages,

the acquisition date carrying value of the acquirer's

previously held equity interest in the acquiree is

remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date. Any
_.-'_galns or losses arising from such remeasurement are
3 "'.«r_e_cogm_g_ed in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.4

25

2.6

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable costs
of investment. The results of subsidiaries are accounted
for by the Company on the basis of dividend received
and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries
is required upon receiving a dividend from these
investments if the dividend exceeds the total
comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period
the dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the
investment in the separate financial statements exceeds
the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements of the investee’s net assets including
goodwill.

Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to the
chief operating decision maker (the “CODM"). The CODM
consists of the executive directors of the Company.

Foreign currency translation

(i)  Functional and presentation currency

Items included in the financial statements of each
of the Group's entities are measured using the
currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates (‘the functional
currency’). The consolidated-financial statements
are presented in HKS, which is also the Companys
functional and presentation currency. -
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
eI MIET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

(ii)

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
at the dates of the transactions. Foreign exchange
gains and losses resulting from the settlement
of such transactions and from the translation of
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
are generally recognised in profit or loss. They
are deferred in equity if they relate to qualifying
cash flow hedges and qualifying net investment
hedges or are attributable to part of the net
investment in a foreign operation.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that
relate to borrowings are presented in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, within finance costs.
All other foreign exchange gains and losses are
presented in the consolidated statement of profit
or loss and other comprehensive income on a net
basis.

Non-monetary items that are measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using
the exchange rates at the date when the fair value
was determined. Translation differences on assets
and liabilities carried at fair value are reported as
part of the fair value gain or loss. For example,
translation differences on non-monetary assets
and liabilities such as equities held at fair value

.~ through profit or loss are recognised in profit

702 o1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1K) #2837 IR A 5

or-loss as part of the fair value gain or loss and

_translation differences on non-monetary assets
- “such-as equities classified as fair value through
" other comprehensive income are recognised in

other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)
(iii)  Group companies

The results and financial position of foreign
operations (none of which has the currency of a
hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

assets and liabilities for each statement of
financial position presented are translated
at the closing rate at the date of that
statement of financial position;

income and expenses for each statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are translated at average exchange
rates (unless this is not a reasonable
approximation of the cumulative effect
of the rates prevailing on the transaction
dates, in which case income and expenses
are translated at the dates of the
transactions); and

all resulting exchange differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2.
POLICIES (continued)

EXEHBRRE @

26 SMEIAE (B

2.6 Foreign currency translation (continued)

EELE ()

(iii)  Group companies (continued) (i)

7104 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1) #2837 IR A 5

On consolidation, exchange differences arising
from the translation of any net investment in
foreign entities, and of borrowings and other
financial instruments designated as hedges
of such investments, are recognised in other
comprehensive income. When a foreign operation
is sold or any borrowings forming part of the net
investment are repaid, the associated exchange
differences are reclassified to profit or loss, as part
of the gain or loss on sale.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign operation are treated as
assets and liabilities of the foreign operation and
translated at the closing rate.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

2.7

Property, plant and equipment

All property, plant and equipment are stated at
historical cost less depreciation. Historical cost
includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic benefits
associated with the item will flow to the Group and the
cost of the item can be measured reliably. The carrying
amount of any component accounted for as a separate
asset is derecognised when replaced. All other repairs
and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
reporting period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation is calculated using the straight-line
method to allocate their cost, net of their residual
values, over their estimated useful lives as follows:

Solar power system 20 years
Furniture and fixtures 5 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Office equipment 5 years
Plant and machinery 3 to 4 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable-amount (Note
29). b

Gains or losses on disposals-are determined by .

comparing proceeds with carrying amount. These “are
included in the consolidated statement of profit-or loss
and other comprehensive income,
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2.  SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAEHERHE @

POLICIES (continued)

2.8 Goodwill 28 HE
Goodwill is measured as described in Note 2.3. Goodwill EERMIF2 3T 2 o M E T E#
is not amortised but it is tested for impairment H BEFETRENR  HESMHR
annually, or more frequently if events or changes in 15 B E R E O] e R (B B SR AR B
circumstances indicate that it might be impaired, and EITRE > IR AR E Rt B ER
is carried at cost less accumulated impairment losses. BAR - HEBRENKRGEREEEEE
Gains and losses on the disposal of an entity include the BEERAEMNEmENEEE
carrying amount of goodwill relating to the entity sold.
Goodwill is allocated to cash-generating units for BEFWORIIREEFBUETH
the purpose of impairment testing. The allocation is B DRSO HEEHREREER
made to those cash-generating units or groups of ENEBREHPERNIREELEBN
cash-generating units that are expected to benefit NIREEEBEMUARNEH A E
from the business combination in which the goodwill EmEs ZEBUREMUMARTIZEE
arose. The units or groups of units are identified at the RHENRERE K EIREDER) #A o
lowest level at which goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes, being the operating segments.

2.9 Impairment of non-financial assets 29 JEERMBEERE

Goodwill is tested annually for impairment, or more
frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that they might be impaired. Other assets are
tested for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised
for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount
exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. For the purposes of assessing
impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels
for which there are separately identifiable cash inflows
which are largely independent of the cash inflows from
other assets or groups of assets (cash-generating units).

.-'_T'\ilo'_r'wiﬂ_riaﬂcial assets other than goodwill that suffered

7 ah irr,ipzijrme.nt are reviewed for possible reversal of the

706 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1) #2283 7 IR A 5

“impairment at the end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets

(i)

(ii)

Classification

The Group classifies its financial assets in the
following measurement categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair
value; and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business
model for managing the financial assets and the
contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and
losses will be recorded in profit or loss or other
comprehensive income (“OCI"). For investments in
equity instruments that are not held for trading,
this will depend on whether the Group has
made an irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity investment
at fair value through other comprehensive income
("FVOCIY).

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and
only when its business model for managing those
assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial
assets are recognised on trade-date, the.date on

which the Group commits to-purchase or sell-the

2.

asset. Financial assets are derecognised when . ™

the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
assets have expired or have been transferred and
the Group has transferred substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

TO8 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited = 5 IE %4 (E1K) #2837 IR A 5

(iii) Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a
financial asset at its fair value plus, in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVTPL"), transaction costs that are directly
attributable to the acquisition of the financial
asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried
at FVTPL are expensed in profit or loss.

Financial assets with embedded derivatives are
considered in their entirety when determining
whether their cash flows are solely payment of
principal and interest.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments
depends on the Group’s business model
for managing the asset and the cash flow
characteristics of the asset. There are two
measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection
of contractual cash flows where those cash
flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost.
Interest income from these financial assets is
included in finance income using the effective
interest rate method. Any gain or loss arising on
derecognition is recognised directly in profit or

. loss-and presented in other losses together with

fbreign exchange gains and losses. Impairment

_,'.lo_"sse's are.presented as separate line item in the
. consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
. comprehensive income.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.10 Investments and other financial assets (continued)

(iii) Measurement (continued)

(iv)

Debt instruments (continued)

FVTPL: Assets that do not meet the criteria for
amortised cost or FVOCI are measured at FVTPL.
A gain or loss on a debt investment that is
subsequently measured at FVTPL is recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income and presented net
in the period in which it arises.

Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward-looking basis
the expected credit losses associated with its
debt instruments carried at amortised cost. The
impairment methodology applied depends on
whether there has been a significant increase in
credit risk.

For trade receivables and contract assets, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted
by HKFRS 9, which requires expected lifetime
losses to be recognised from initial recognition of
the assets, see Note 3.1(b) for further details.

2.11 Offsetting financial instruments

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net

amount reported in the consolidated. statement of

financial position where the Group-currently. has-a_
legally enforceable right to offset the re'c‘:o'gni's_ed

amounts, and there is an intention-to settle-on. a

net basis or realise the asset and settle. the liability

simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.12

2.13

2.14

Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
goods sold or services performed in the ordinary course
of business. If collection of trade receivables, deposits
and other receivable is expected in one year or less (or
in the normal operating cycle of the business if longer),
they are classified as current assets. If not, they are
presented as non-current assets.

Trade receivables are recognised initially at the amount
of consideration that is unconditional unless they
contain significant financing components, when they
are recognised at fair value. The Group holds the trade
and other receivables with the objective to collect the
contractual cash flows and therefore measures them
subsequently at amortised cost using the effective
interest method. See Note 3.1(b) for a description of the
Group's impairment policies.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of presentation in the consolidated
statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand and deposits held at call
with financial institutions and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current
liabilities in the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Share capital
Ordinary shares are classified as equity (Note 24).

Incremental costs directly attributable to the issue

.-'_'6ﬁ '_hey\),-fshares or options are shown in equity as a

T10 o1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1K) #2837 IR A 5

; ".«d'_e'du,'cti_'g_)n;' net of tax, from the proceeds.
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.15

2.16

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and
services provided to the Group prior to the end of
financial year which are unpaid. The amounts are
unsecured and are usually paid within the credit term.
Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is not due within 12 months
after the reporting period (or in the normal cycle of the
business if longer). They are recognised initially at their
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are initially recognised at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost. Any difference between
the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption amount is recognised in profit or loss over
the period of the borrowings using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings are removed from the consolidated
statement of financial position when the obligation
specified in the contract is discharged, cancelled or
expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of a financial liability that has been extinguished or
transferred to another party and the consideration paid,
including any non-cash assets transferred or liabilities
assumed, is recognised in profit or loss as finance costs.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer-settlement
of the liability for at least 12 months after the -réporting
period. : e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.17

2.18

712 o1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =15 IE %4 (E1S) #2837 IR A 5

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which
they are incurred.

Current and deferred income tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the
tax payable on the current period’s taxable income
based on the applicable income tax rate for each
jurisdiction adjusted by changes in deferred tax assets
and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and
to unused tax losses.

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the
basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted
at the end of the reporting period in the countries
where the Company and its subsidiaries operate and
generate taxable income. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in tax returns with respect to
situations in which applicable tax regulation is subject
to interpretation and considers whether it is probable
that a taxation authority will accept an uncertain tax
treatment. The Group measures its tax balances either
based on the most likely amount or the expected
value, depending on which method provides a better
prediction of the resolution of the uncertainty.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability
method, on temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the consolidated financial statements.
However, deferred tax liabilities are not recognised
if they arise from the initial recognition of goodwill.
Deferred income tax is also not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction other than a business combination
that at the time of the transaction affects neither
accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred income
tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of
the reporting period and are expected to apply when
the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only if it is probable
that future taxable amounts will be available to utilise
those temporary differences and losses.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are not recognised for
temporary differences between the carrying amount
and tax bases of investments in foreign operations
where the Group is able to control the timing of the
reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable
that the differences will not reverse in the foreseeable
future.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there
is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax-assets

and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate

2.

to the same taxation authority. Current tax assets and-

tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally
enforceable right to offset and intends either. to settle
on a net basis, or to realise the asset and settle the
liability simultaneously.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.18 Current and deferred income tax (continued)
Deferred income tax (continued)

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or
loss, except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised in other comprehensive income or directly
in equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

2.19 Employee benefits
(i)  Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including
nonmonetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end
of the period in which the employees render
the related service are recognised in respect
of employees’ services up to the end of the
reporting period and are measured at the
amounts expected to be paid when the liabilities
are settled. The liabilities are presented as current
employee benefit obligations in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

(i)  Retirement benefit costs

Payments to the Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (the "MPF Scheme”) are recognised as an
expense when employees have rendered service
entitling them to the contributions.

.~ The full-time employees of the Group are covered

: by various government-sponsored pension plans

_under.which the employees are entitled to a

- “monthly ‘pension based on certain formulas.

" Contributions to these plans are expensed as
incurred.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.19 Employee benefits (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Bonus plans

The Group recognises a liability and an expense
for bonuses taking into account of the profit of
the Group. The Group recognises a provision
where contractually obliged or where there is
a past practice that has created a constructive
obligation.

Termination benefits

Termination benefits are payable when
employment is terminated by the Group before
the normal retirement date, or when an employee
accepts voluntary redundancy in exchange for
these benefits. The Group recognises termination
benefits at the earlier of the following dates: (a)
when the Group can no longer withdraw the
offer of those benefits; and (b) when the entity
recognises costs for a restructuring that is within
the scope of HKAS 37 and involves the payment
of terminations benefits. In the case of an offer
made to encourage voluntary redundancy, the
termination benefits are measured based on
the number of employees expected to accept
the offer. Benefits falling due more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period are
discounted to present value.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

4o A

N

RATS R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.20 Provisions

2.21

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
legal or constructive obligation as a result of past
events, it is probable that an outflow of resources will
be required to settle the obligation and the amount can
be reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for
future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the
likelihood that an outflow will be required in settlement
is determined by considering the class of obligations as
a whole. A provision is recognised even if the likelihood
of an outflow with respect to any one item included in
the same class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of
management’s best estimate of the expenditure
required to settle the present obligation at the end
of the reporting period. The discount rate used to
determine the present value is a pre-tax rate that
reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the liability. The
increase in the provision due to the passage of time is
recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable for the sales of goods or services in
the ordinary course of the Group’s activities.

When another party is involved in providing goods or
services.to a customer, the Group determines whether
the nature of its promise is a performance obligation

to '_i:;rQVide the specified goods or services itself (i.e.
-~ the Group'is a principal) or to arrange for those goods

- or sefvices to be provided by the other party (ie. the

716 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1S) #2837 IR A 5

e _fSro".'up:i's an agent).
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAXE:HEHME ©

POLICIES (continued)
IR FEER (B)

2.21 Revenue recognition (continued) 2.21

The Group is a principal if it controls the specified goods
or services before that goods or services are transferred
to a customer.

The Group is an agent if its performance obligation is
to arrange for the provision of the specified goods or
services by another party. In this case, the Group does
not control the specified goods or services provided
by another party before that goods or services are
transferred to the customer. When the Group acts as
an agent, it recognises revenue in the amount of any
fee or commission to which it expects to be entitled
in exchange for arranging for the specified goods or
services to be provided by the other party.

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the goods or services is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the goods or
services may be transferred over time or at a point in
time.

Control of the goods or services is transferred over time
if the Group’s performance:
provides all of the benefits received and

consumed simultaneously by the customer;

creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

does not create an asset with an alternative use to

the Group and the Group has-an-enforceable right

to payment for performance completed to.date.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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RATS R MIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (continued)

T18 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1S) #2837 IR A 5

If control of the goods or services transfer over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract by
reference to the progress towards complete satisfaction
of that performance obligation. Otherwise, revenue
is recognised at a point in time when the customer
obtains control of the goods or services. Specific criteria
where revenue is recognised are described below.

When either party to a contract has performed, the
Group presents the contract in the consolidated
statement of financial position as a contract asset
or a contract liability, depending on the relationship
between the entity’s performance and the customer’s
payment.

If a customer pays consideration or the Group
has a right to an amount of consideration that is
unconditional, before the Group transfers a good
or service to the customer, the Group presents the
contract as a contract liability when the payment
is made or a receivable is recorded (whichever is
earlier). A contract liability is the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the
Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A receivable is recorded when the Group has an
unconditional right to consideration. A right to
consideration is unconditional if only the passage of
time is requited before payment of that consideration is
due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

Construction services

The Group provides construction services
under contracts with customers and may take
several years to complete the construction.
Such contracts are fixed-price contracts entered
into before the services begin except for
any variable orders or contact modification.
Under the terms of the contracts, the Group is
contractually required to perform the services
at the customers’ specified sites that creates or
enhance an asset that the customer controls as
the Group performs. Revenue from provision of
construction services is therefore recognised over
time for each individual contract by using output
method, i.e. on the basis of measurement of the
value of services transferred to the customer to
date. The measurement is based on surveys of
construction services completed by the Group
to date as certified by architects, surveyors or
other representatives appointed by the customers
and adjusted by the estimated value of work
performed but which is yet to be certified at each
of the reporting date. Management considers
that output method would faithfully depict the
Group's performance towards satisfaction of
performance obligation under HKFRS 15.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

7120 o1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1%) #2837 IR A 5

Construction services (continued)

Variable consideration

For contracts that contain variable consideration
(variation order of construction work), the Group
estimates the amount of consideration to which it
will be entitled using the most likely amount.

The estimated amount of variable consideration
is included in the transaction price only to the
extent that is highly probable that such an
inclusion will not result in a significant revenue
reversal in the future when the uncertainty
associated with the variable consideration is
subsequently resolved.

When there is change in circumstances, the
Group updates the estimated transaction price
(including updating its assessment of whether an
estimate of variable consideration is constrained)
to better predict the circumstances present at the
end of the reporting period and the changes in
circumstances during the reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

Construction services (continued)
Existence of significant financing component

In determining the transaction price, the Group
adjusts the promised amount of consideration
for the effects of the time value of money if the
timing of payments agreed (either explicitly or
implicitly) provides the customers or the Group
with a significant benefit of financing the transfer
of services to customer. In those circumstances,
the contract contains a significant financing
component. A significant financing component
may exist regardless of whether the promise of
financing is explicitly stated in the contract or
implied by the payment terms agreed by the
parties of the contracts.

Notwithstanding the above, a contract does
not have a significant financing component in
circumstances where payments are in accordance
with the typical payment terms of the relevant
industry, which has a primary purpose other than
financing.

Warranty

For warranty embedded to the construction
contracts, the Group accounts for the warranty in
accordance with HKAS 37, “Provision, Contingent
Liabilities and Contingent Assets"as the warranty
provides the customer with. assurance that the
contracting work complies with the agreed upon
specifications.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAE:HEFEHE @

POLICIES (continued)
2.21 Revenue recognition (continued) 221 SR (&)
(i)  Construction services (continued) 0 EERE E)
Costs to fulfil a contract JBTTEAIZ AR

The Group incurs costs to fulfil a contract in its
construction contracts. The Group first assesses
whether these costs qualify for recognition as an
asset in terms of other relevant standards, failing
which it recognises an asset for these costs only if
they meet all of the following criteria:

(@)  the costs relate directly to a contract or to
an anticipated contract that the Group can
specifically identify;

(b)  the costs generate or enhance resources
of the Group that will be used in satisfying
(or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future; and

(c)  the costs are expected to be recovered.

The asset so recognised is subsequently
amortised on a systematic basis that is consistent
with the transfer to the customer of the goods
or services to which the assets relate. The asset is
subject to impairment review.
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

Construction services (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities

In accordance with the terms of the contracts
entered into with customers, the Group is
required to submit to customers monthly
payment applications for the value of work done
under the contracts along with any variation
orders performed. Customers will settle normally
from 0 to 60 days after certifying our monthly
payment applications based on their assessment
of work done by the Group. Customers usually
retain an amount up to 10% of the contract
value as retention money for the contract. The
terms and conditions in relation to the release
of retention vary from contract to contract and
the retention period generally ranged from six to
twelve months.

A contract asset represents the Group's right to
consideration from customers in exchange for
the provision of construction services that the
Group has transferred to the customers that is
not yet unconditional. Contract assets arise when
the Group has provided the construction services
under the relevant contracts but the works have
yet to be certified by architects, surveyors or other
representatives appointed by the customers and/
or the Group’s right to payment is still conditional
on factors other than passage of time. Any
amount previously recognised as a-contract asset
is reclassified to trade receivables at the- point

when the Group's right to-payment.becomes

2. EXRGHERBE @

221 WEEFESD ()

@

unconditional other than passage of timie, j.e. the

point when the Group receive the certificate.
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
eI MIET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (continued)

(i)

(ii)

124 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E12) #2837 IR A 5

Construction services (continued)
Contract assets and contract liabilities (continued)

The Group may require a deposit before the
commencement of the contracts. This would
give rise to contract liabilities as it represents
the Group's obligation to transfer the aforesaid
services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

E-commerce-related service

The Group provides services to facilitate upstream
suppliers to sell goods to end customer through
an online platform operated by an independent
third party (‘E-commerce-related services”). The
Group does not control specific goods prior to
the purchase by the end customer. Therefore, the
Group is acting as an agent in the transactions.

Revenue from the E-commerce-related services
is recognised at a point in time when the
transactions through the online platform is
completed or when the provision of the related
service is completed. The Group records the
net amount that it retains from such completed
transaction as revenue.

2.

EXEHBRRE @

2.21

e

@

(i)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.21 Revenue recognition (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Building information modelling service

The Group provides business building information
modelling services under fixed-price contracts.
Revenue from providing services is recognised
based on the actual service provided to the
end of the reporting period as a proportion
of the total services to be provided because
the customer receives and uses the benefits
simultaneously. The revenue i s determined based
on the proportion of the actual costs incurred
relative to the estimated total costs for satisfaction
of the service.

The customer pays the fixed amount based on
the contract terms. If the services rendered by the
Group exceed the payment, a contract asset is
recognised. If the payments exceed the services
rendered, a contract liability is recognised.

Sales of piles

Revenue from the sales of piles are recognised
at a point in time when the control of goods has
transferred, being when the goods have been
shipped to the customers' specific location.

A receivable is recognised by the Group when
the goods are delivered to the customers as this
represents the Group's right to consideration
becomes unconditional, as only the passage of
time is required before payment is due.

The customers have neither rights-of return

2.

nor rights to defer or avoid-payment for 't_h'.e

goods once they are accepted by the custemers
upon receipt of goods, The contracts signed
with customers are short-term and fixed price
contracts. The normal credit term is 7. days upon
delivery.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAE:HEFEHE @

POLICIES (continued)

2.22 Contingent liabilities 222 HAEE

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises
from past events and whose existence will only be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one
or more uncertain future events not wholly within the
control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation
arising from past events that is not recognised because
it is not probable that outflow of economic resources

WABEIEHNBEEHMAIEESE
NEE LEEERKTEEMIHIE
RN —IERZ RN IFAEBAI LT
RINTHEEEHRDHLE  HAEEE-
HARBRITAIEREABENEHFM
SIRBIFEEEE BHRAEITE
MHEEER AEEEEKRERSE

will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be HEtEMABED o
measured reliably.
2.23 Earnings per share 223 BKRERH

126 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1S) #2837 IR A 5

(i)  Basic earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing:

the profit attributable to equity owners
of the Company, excluding any costs of
servicing equity other than ordinary shares;
and

by the weighted average number of
ordinary shares outstanding during the
financial year, adjusted for bonus elements
in ordinary shares issued during the year
and excluding treasury shares.

(iij)  Diluted earnings per share

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures
used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

the after-income tax effect of interest
and other financing costs associated with
dilutive potential ordinary shares; and

the weighted average number of additional
ordinary shares that would have been
outstanding assuming the conversion of all
dilutive potential ordinary shares.
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAXE:HEHME ©

POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases 224 fAE

Leases are recognised as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased
asset is available for use by the Group.

Contracts may contain both lease and non-lease
components. The Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to the lease and non-lease components
based on their relative stand-alone prices. However,
for leases of real estate for which the Group is a lessee,
it has elected not to separate lease and non-lease
components and instead accounts for these as a single
lease component.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially
measured on a present value basis. Lease liabilities
include the net present value of the following lease
payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments), less any lease incentives receivable;

variable lease payment that are based on an index
or a rate, initially measured using the index or rate
as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable. by the- group
under residual value guarantees; ik
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24 Leases (continued)

the exercise price of a purchase option if the
Group is reasonably certain to exercise that
option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if
the lease term reflects the Group exercising that
option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain
extension options are also included in the measurement
of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest
rate implicit in the lease. If that rate cannot be readily
determined, which is generally the case for leases in the
Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to
pay to borrow the funds necessary to obtain an asset
of similar value to the right-of-use asset in a similar
economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.

To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the
Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing
received by the individual lessee as a starting
point, adjusted to reflect changes in financing
conditions since third party financing was
received;

uses a build-up approach that starts with a riskfree
- interest rate adjusted for credit risk for leases held
: by the Group, which does not have recent third-
_party financing; and

' makes adjustments specific to the lease, such as
term, country, currency and security.
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2. EAXE:HEHME ©

POLICIES (continued)

224 THE @)

2.24 Leases (continued)

If a readily observable amortising loan rate is available
to the individual lessee (through recent financing or
market data) which has a similar payment profile to the
lease, then the group entities use that rate as a starting
point to determine the incremental borrowing rate.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and
finance cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or
loss over the lease period so as to produce a constant
periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the
following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease
liability;

any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date less any lease incentives
received;

any initial direct costs; and
restoration costs.

Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the
shorter of the asset’s useful life and the lease term on
a straight-line basis. If the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset
is depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
While the Group revalues its land and buildings that are
presented within property, plant-and equipmeht- it has

chosen not to do so for the right-of-use bwldmgs held_

by the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.24

2.25

130 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1) #2837 IR A 5

Leases (continued)

Payments associated with short-term leases of
equipment and vehicles and all leases of low-value
assets are recognised on a straight-line basis as an
expense in profit or loss. Short-term leases are leases
with a lease term of 12 months or less.

Rental income from operating leases where the Group
is a lessor is recognised in income on a straight-line
basis over the lease term except when an alternative
basis is more representative of the pattern of benefits
to be derived from the use of the leased assets. Initial
direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the underlying asset
and recognised as expense over the lease term on the
same basis as lease income. The respective leased assets
are included in the consolidated statement of financial
position based on their nature.

Rental income derived from the lease of solar power
system within renewable energy business are presented
as revenue.

Dividend distribution

Provision is made for the amount of any dividend
declared, being appropriately authorised and no longer
at the discretion of the entity, on or before the end of
the reporting period but not distributed at the end of
the reporting period.
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2.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.26

2.27

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair
value where there is a reasonable assurance that the
grant will be received and the Group will comply with
all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred
and recognised in the profit or loss over the period
necessary to match them with the costs that they are
intended to compensate.

Interest income

Interest income from financial assets at FVTPL is
included in the net fair value gains/(losses) on these
assets. Any other interest income is included in other
income.

Interest income is calculated by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset except for financial assets that subsequently
become credit-impaired. For credit-impaired financial
assets the effective interest rate is applied to the net
carrying amount of the financial asset (after deduction
of the loss allowance).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

2.28 Discontinued operations

132 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1S) #2837 IR A 5

A discontinued operation is a component of the
Group, the operations and cash flows of which can be
clearly distinguished from the rest of the Group and
which represents a separate major line of business or
geographical area of operations, or is part of a single
co-ordinated plan to dispose of a separate major line
of business or geographical area of operations, or is a
subsidiary acquired exclusively with a view to resale.

Classification as a discontinued operation occurs upon
disposal or when the operation meets the criteria to be
classified as held for sale in accordance with IFRS 5, if
earlier. It also occurs when the operation is abandoned.

When an operation is classified as discontinued, a single
amount is presented in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income, which
comprises:

- The post-tax profit or loss of the discontinued
operation; and

- The post-tax gain or loss recognised on the
measurement to fair value less costs to sell, or
on the disposal, of the assets or disposal group
constituting the discontinued operation.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

3.1

Financial risk factors

This note explains the Group's exposure to financial
risks and how these risks could affect the Group’s
future financial performance. Current year profit or loss
information has been included where relevant to add
further context.

The Group’s financial instruments include trade
receivables, deposits and other receivables, cash and
bank balances, trade and other payables, amount
due to immediate holding company, lease liabilities,
borrowings.

Details of these financial instruments are disclosed
in Note 19. The risks associated with these financial
instruments include market risk (interest rate risk and
foreign currency risk), credit risk and liquidity risk.
The policies on how to mitigate these risks are set
out below. The management manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group's
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign currency risk

The Group has no significant exposure to
foreign currency. risk as substantially all of
the Group’s transactions are denominated
in HKS, United States dollars-(“US$”) or
the Group entity's respective furictional
currency. 3 :

As the HKS is pegged to the USS, the
Group considers the risk of movements in
exchange rates between the HKS and the
USS to be insignificant.
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(a) Market risk (continued)

(ii)

134 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited = 5 IE %4 (E1) 2R3 7 IR A 5

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair
value or future cash flows of a financial
instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates. The Group
is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to lease liabilities. The Group is also
exposed to cash flow interest rate risk in
relation to variable-rate bank balances.

The Group has not used financial derivatives
to hedge against the interest rate risk.
However, from time to time, if interest
rate fluctuates significantly, appropriate
measures would be taken to manage
interest risk exposure. The interest rates
and terms of repayment of interest-bearing
borrowings of the Group are disclosed in
Note 27 to these consolidated financial
statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(a)

Market risk (continued)

(if)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk
(continued)

Sensitivity analysis

At 31 December 2022, it is estimated that a
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points
in interest rates, with all other variables held
constant, would have decreased/increased
the Group's loss after tax by approximately
HK$17,000 (2021: decreased/increased of
HK$90,000), in response to the general
increase/decrease in interest rates.

The sensitivity analysis above has been
determined assuming that the change
in interest rates had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been
applied to the exposure to interest rate
risk for nonderivative financial instruments
in existence at that date. There has been
no change on the basis in preparing the
sensitivity analysis.
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b) Credit risk

(i)

136 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1S) 2R3 7 IR A 5

Risk management

Credit risk is managed on a group basis.
The credit risk of the Group mainly arises
from cash and cash equivalents, trade
receivables, contract assets, deposit and
other receivables. The carrying amounts
of these balances represent the Group's
maximum exposure to credit risk in relation
to these assets.

To manage the credit arising from cash held
at banks, the Group only makes transactions
with reputable international banks and
financial institutions. There has been no
recent history of default in relation to these
banks and financial institutions.

To manage the risk arising from trade
receivable and contract assets, the Group
has policies in place for credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that
follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts.

The Group has concentration of credit risk
of trade receivables and contract assets as
34% and 91% (2021: 26% and 65%) of the
total gross trade receivables and contract
assets was due from the Group's largest
amount debtor and top five largest debtors
respectively.

“ To' manage the risk arising from other
~receivables, the Group makes periodic
_collective assessments as well as individual

assessment on the recoverability of other
receivables based on historical settlement
records and past experience.

3. BMEERER®

31 MBRBER @

®) EEmEE

v

Annual Report 2022 FE R

EEEE

FERRBEEEREE
B-AEENEERARE
BRERTKRBEEFE
Y BZBWHIE - 50E
E B REMBRRRIE
ZEERREED R E
B EEEMER Y &

SEERAR-

HERRTHANEEAR
EENEE AEEESA
EERFHBERETRE
REBETRS ZFiR
ThEMEETIRTRE
#IFCER ©

~HERBZRERERE
MEEFMELZRRE &
EEEREEEFMBUIR
REMEBRRZRF R
PREX ER 2 17 2 LAUR [B1 781 HA

fB81|-

7 £ [ G B8 5 P URRUIE
MRENEENEEETR
B HAAEZEIRRIER
BHRIE ERREN34%91%
(20214F : 26%%65%) 93 3]
RETEEARASEEER
AFFI A KREFHEA

7 B IR EL M FE WK IR FR
EZRB AEEERB
FRETRKBELERTE
HA S H WK IB B9 BT UR
(B 1% 26 17 8 — 5F 1 e (@ 5
GRED



Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit risk (continued)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets
Trade receivables and contract assets

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified
approach to measure expected credit losses
("ECL") which uses a lifetime ECL for trade
receivables and contract assets.

To measure the ECL, trade receivables and
contract assets have been grouped based
on shared credit risk characteristics and
the days past due. The contract assets
relate to uncertified work in progress
and retention receivables, which have
substantially the same risk characteristics as
the trade receivables for the same contracts.
Management therefore concluded that the
expected loss rates for trade receivables are
a reasonable approximation of the loss rates
for the contract assets.

Non-credit-impaired trade receivables and
contract assets

For non-credit-impaired trade receivables
and contract assets, management has
assessed the ECL based on. the customers’
past history of making payments when due
and current ability to pay, the -b'ayment

profiles of revenue-and the corresponding,

3.

historical credit losses experienced. . ™

Management also considered forward-
looking information such as unemployment
rate or gross domestic product that may
impact the customer’s ability to repay the
outstanding balances.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI MIET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. BMEERER®

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMEEKREZE E)
(b)  Credit risk (continued) b EEREE &
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued) 7 EHEERE (B

Trade receivables and contract assets BEERRBERENEE
(continued) #)
Non-credit-impaired trade receivables and BEEERENEZEI
contract assets (continued) TIEREGHEE @)
The loss allowance was determined as BERERRBERENEE
follows for both trade receivables and HEBEEETWNT :

contract assets:

Within More than More than More than
30 days 30 days 60 days 90 days

Current past due past due past due past due Total
ok ik B ok
31 December 2022 ANENRYIA 0B FiEEA #8308 ide0m i8o0A it
Trade receivables 2akhmE
Gross camying amount (HIS000)  REH(E (F570) 93403 - - - 5,69 99,099
Loss alowance (HKS 000) BRRE (TEn) - - - - 191 491
Weight average expected oss rate~ METSRHBER 0% 054% 0% 0% 8.62%
Contract assets alEE
Gross camying amount (HKS000) ~ A4fE (FE7) 161,543 - - - - 161,543
Loss alowance (HKS/000) BiRkE (Tan) 1,054 - - - - 1,054
Weight average expected oss rte. MBI BHEER 0.65% 0% 0% 0% 0%
Within More than More than More than
30days 30days 60 days 90 days
Current past due past due past due past due Total
ik ik ki ik
31 December 1021 WiENAYA N 25 #8H #ioe HEnH i3
Trade receivables BARNE
Gosscarying amount (FHS000) IR (T70) 75759 84 - - 14149 0N
Loss llowance (HKS'000) BEERE (T - ; . - 149 154
Weight average evpected ossrate ~ METSBHEEX 0% 054% 0% 0% 105%
Contract assets alEE
Gross carying amount (HS000)  EEARfE (F&m) 1106 - - - - 1106
Lossdllowance (K 0) BREE (TEn) 255 - - - - 255
Weight average expected ossrate METHRHFEE 1.06% 0% 0% 0% 0%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.

3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)  Credit risk (continued)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

The following tables show the movements
in impairment losses for trade receivables
and contract assets:

MBRERER @
31 BHEARER @
v (EEERE

0 EEEERE @

BZRBREBERENEE

()
TR E ZEUWRER

BNBEREREZEE:

Non-credit- Credit-
impaired impaired Total
EERE FEERE #ast
HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
TET TAET TAET
Movements in the net B 5 EWFIERE
impairment losses for trade K538 328 2 & &)
receivables
At 1 January 2021 t2021181H 12 - 12
Increase in loss allowance SRR B ERHY
recognised in profit or loss &5 18 5 1% 0
during the year 141 - 141
Reversal of previous SRR (B RSB O]
impairment losses 1 = 1
At 31 December 2021 $£2021512H31H 154 - 154
Increase in loss allowance . FERNREmRERH
recognised in profitor loss 538 B 1 N
during the year - 537 3,736 4,273
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBAT (185) — (185)
Exchange difference ERELE (15) (106)
At 31 December 2022 #2022%12H31H 491 3,630 4,121
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3.
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued)
(b)  Credit risk (continued)
(i) Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets

MBRERER @
31 BHEEABRER @
v (EEERE

0 EEEERE @

BZRBRERGNEE

(continued) #)
Non-credit- Credit-
impaired impaired Total
EERE FEERE st
HKS'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FAETT TFAT TFATT
Movements in the net SHREERERIE
impairment losses for FREZ BE)
contract assets
At 1 January 2021 1202141818 1,916 57,125 59,041
Increase in loss allowance  ERRIBm M
recognised in profit or loss K58 B &1 N
during the year 600 - 600
Reversal of previous Jo Al (B RS 1E EE O]
impairment losses - (57,125) (57,125)
Exchange difference bE 2 E KR 39 - 39
At 31 December 2021 #2021%12H31H 2,555 - 2,555
(Decrease)/increase in loss AR IBHFESH
allowance recognised in IR CRil)
profit or loss during the A0
year (970) 124 (846)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEMERE] (416) - (416)
Exchange difference PERE%R (115) (4) (119)
At 31 December 2022 182022412H31H 1,054 120 1,174
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (continued)

(b)

Credit risk (continued)

(if)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets
(continued)

Trade receivables and contract assets are
written off where there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery. Indicators that
there is no reasonable expectation of
recovery include, amongst others, the
failure of a debtor to engage in a repayment
plan with the Group, and a failure to make
contractual payments.

Impairment losses on trade receivables
and contract assets are presented as
net impairment losses within operating
profit. Subsequent recoveries of amounts
previously written off are credited against
the same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The Group considers the credit risk of other
receivables is insignificant when they have
a low risk of default and the issuer has a
strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term,
and the impairment losses recognised is
therefore limited to 12 months ECL. In view
of insignificant risk of default and credit
risk since initial recognition; the ECL under
the 12 months expected losses.method is
considered to be insignificant. '

While cash and cash equivalents are. also
subject to the impairment requirements of
HKFRS 9, the identified impairment loss was
insignificant.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AAN

Wik 3

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

3.

142 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1%) #2837 IR A 5

RATS R MIEE

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. HBRAKEREw
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMEEKREZE E)
(c) Liquidity risk © HEBELEE
Individual subsidiaries within the Group are KEBRWER B ATEBERKR
responsible for their own cash management, BHREEIE SEEEEARU
including the raising of loans to cover the FETTEEAMVIR S FE K o R E E Al
expected cash demands. The Group's policy is to FHE  EHGERIRR AT
regularly monitor current and expected liquidity MBBEEBRNREHERZAN
requirements and its compliance with lending BFER UERAEEERR
covenants, to ensure that it maintains sufficient EHREHERETECRIEE
reserves of cash and adequate committed AHBTENRERE LUREHR
funding lines from major financial institutions to RHRRIABETE K
meet its liquidity requirements in the short and
longer term.
The following table details the remaining TRV AEETHEBENRRS
contractual maturities at the end of the reporting HARBFGRENEBER T E
period of the Group’s financial liabilities, which are REARMIFRERE (B1FU
based on contractual undiscounted cash flows BHOMER (HAFEHFE) 3|
(including interest payments computed using HHRIRITH R EF SN
contractual rates or, if floating, based on rates R REAEERELZNNRER
current at the end of the reporting period) and HRo
the earliest date the Group can be required to
pay.
Weighted  On demand Between Total
average or within 2and  contractual Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5years  cash flows amount
Contractual maturities of EHMAREH it FEE X BHRE
financial liabilities FBER FHHE FR-FR WERE RERE REfE
% HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
% THET THET THET THET
2022 2022
Non-derivative financial liabilities FEfT4£ & RE& &
Trade and other payables 8 5 KR HEM R B - 105,511 301 105,812 105,812
.~ Amount due to the immediate EAERERAT
" holding company IE - 19,164 - 19,164 19,164
Lease liabilities REER 5.13 4,233 6,191 10,424 9,555
128,908 6492 135400 134531
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued) 3. MBRKBERE®
3.1 Financial risk factors (continued) 31 HMEEBER @)
(c)  Liquidity risk (continued) ¢ TEETEEE &)
Weighted ~ On demand Between Total
average or within 2and  contractual Carrying
interest rate 1 year 5 years cash flows amount
Contractual maturities of EHEEEY i FEEX aHRE
financial liabilities HHER THRNE FR—-ER WERE  RENE REEE
% HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HK$'000
% TET TET TET TET
2021 20215
Non-derivative financial liabilities JEfTE£2RBE
Trade and other payables BEREMENTIE = 92,186 1414 93,600 93,600
Amount due to the immediate ENEEERAT
holding company 218 - 28,358 - 28,358 28,358
Lease liabilities HESE 5.13 3727 4527 8,254 7459
Borrowings EE 8.00 9619 = 9619 9,000
133,890 5,941 139,831 138,417
3.2 Capital risk management 32 EBXEBERE

The Group's primary objectives when managing
capital are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern in order to fund its business,
provide returns for shareholders and benefits for
other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital

structure to reduce the cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt,
which includes the borrowings disclosed in Note 27
and lease liabilities disclosed in Note 17, net of cash-and
bank balances and equity attributable to-owners of the

Company, comprising share capital and reserves. -

FEREEEANEZERARES
EEFBEENES  URHEEBR
HES HREREHLERR S HEAE
m AR @ WERREERRE
LUR D E B o

FEENEARBOEEESE @
I 527 5 BB B SR R B 51 7FF SR
PR EAE IRRERBTERN
RAATGE NS @ERER
B o e
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

3. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

144 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1) #2837 IR A 5

Capital risk management (continued)

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure to maintain a balance between the
higher shareholder returns that might be possible with
higher levels of borrowings and the advantages and
security afforded by a sound capital position, and makes
adjustments to the capital structure in light of changes
in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
an adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio. For this purpose,
adjusted net debt is defined as total debt (which
includes interest bearing loans and borrowings, and
lease liabilities) less cash and bank balances. Total equity
comprises all components of equity attributable to
owners of the Company. The net debt to equity ratio
was as follows:

3.

MHBRRER @

3.2

BEXxRBEE (@

AEERBILERRN REERER
BB LTERSEE KT A EHRER
= AR ER O3k SRR R B AR T PR 2R BY
BIERREZ BERE T 1 EEL
BER RN BEHNERRBIEHEE -

AEERCRABREH FEYE@mLEE
ERHEARBoILMS  KHEERE
BREDAEAEHEE (BESFEE
RRERUKRBEE R BIRERIRTT
B BEEEAABDER AR
DA A EMRE D - (BFFERY
BambRT -

2022 2021

20225 20214F

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FAT FET

Borrowings RN - 9,000

Lease liabilities HE&aR® 9,555 7,459

Amount due to immediate N BEZERABRIE

holding company 19,164 28,358

Less: Cash and bank balances B IREMIBITARR (4,454) (20911)

Net debt B7%5 /3258 24,265 23,906
Total equity attributable to ownersZs A B ¥ A A FE{L S 4258

of the Company 100,739 198,543

Net debt to equity ratio R RERE R 24% 12%
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

3.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (continued)

3.2

33

Capital risk management (continued)

During the year, the Group's strategy was to maintain
the adjusted net debt-to-equity ratio at a reasonable
level, not exceeding 50% (2021: 50%). In order to
maintain or adjust the ratio, the Group may adjust the
amount of dividends paid to shareholders, issue new
shares, raise new debt financing or sell assets to reduce
debt.

The Government of Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region (the “Government”) requires contractors on the
list of approved contractors for public works (the “List")
to maintain certain minimum working capital as the
Government may from time to time determine (the
“Required Minimum Working Capital”). A subsidiary
of the Company is subject to the Required Minimum
Working Capital as the subsidiary is a contractor on
the List. Except for this, neither the Company nor its
subsidiaries are subject to externally imposed capital
requirements.

Fair value estimation
The carrying amounts of the Group’s financial assets
and financial liabilities as reflected in the consolidated

statement of financial position approximate their
respective fair values.
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
eI MIET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

146 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited = 5 IE %4 (E1) #2837 IR A 5

CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preparation of consolidated financial statements requires
the use of accounting estimates which, by definition, will
seldom equal the actual results. Management also needs
to exercise judgement in applying the Group's accounting
policies.

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated. They are
based on historical experience and other factors, including
expectations of future events that may have a financial impact
on the entity and that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances.

(a) Revenue from construction contracts

Management measures the value of completed
construction work based on output method, which
is to recognise revenue on the basis of measurement
of the value of services transferred to the customers.
Management's estimate of the progress of construction
works requires significant judgement and has a
significant impact on the amount and timing of revenue
recognised.

Management has periodically measured the value of
the construction work completed for each construction
project based on certification performed by architects,
surveyors or other representatives appointed by the
customers and estimated the value of work which is
completed but yet to be certified at each of the end
of reporting period. Management estimated the value
of work which is completed but yet to be certified
based on surveys carried out by internal technicians
or external expert, and revisited with reference to
certification subsequently performed by architects,
surveyors or other representatives appointed by
the customers or confirmations received from the
.-'_'c"ijs_'t'onﬁers. The Group regularly reviews and revises

; :,'.«t_h'e _ést'i_m'ation of construction contract progresses
'_"f',vvﬁeﬁ:evqr.there is-any change in circumstances. As at
31 December 2022 and 2021, the value of work which is
~ completed but yet to be certified was disclosed in Note

e

4.
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rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

4. CRITICAL ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

(continued)

(b)

(c)

Impairment of trade receivables and contract assets

The loss allowances for trade receivables and contract
assets are based on assumptions about risk of default
and expected loss rates. Management uses judgement
in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the calculation of expected credit losses, based on
the Group’s past history and existing market conditions
as well as forward-looking estimates at the end of each
reporting period. Details of the key assumptions and
inputs used are disclosed in Note 3.1(b).

Impairment of goodwill

Management tests whether goodwill has suffered any
impairment on an annual basis. The recoverable amount
of cash-generating units ("CGUs") was determined
based on value-in-use calculations which require the
use of assumptions. The calculations use cash flow
projections based on financial budgets approved by
management covering a five-year period. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using
the estimated growth rates stated in Note 19. No
impairment is recognised during the year (2021: same).
Details of the recoverable amount calculations are
disclosed in Note 18.
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
eI MIET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

5. REVENUE 5 W=
An analysis of the Group's revenue for the year is as follows: KEBFRWZNDHAOT !
2022 2021
20226 20214
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FAT TET
Revenue from construction contracts RERESONWE
~ foundation works and ancillary services ~ —#E T &EER 46,972 135,723
- general building works ——MREETRE 37,134 12,657
— renewable energy systems — P BEEREEIL 200,983 176,551
E-commerce-related services B i 518 R AR TS 10,004 25,732
Building information modelling services BEEEELRE 1,591 4214
Revenue from contracts with customers KEEPFP NG 296,684 354,877
Rental income WA 801 647
297,485 355,524
Representing 29%
Continuing operations FBREED 213,379 207,144
Discontinued operations BARIEREE 84,106 148,380
297,485 355,524
Other than e-commerce-related services which was FRE TR BHERRE I E— R BRS8N
recognised at a point in time, all the Group's revenue from REBFAARBEE L AN RPERF B

contracts with customers were recognised over time.
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group manages its businesses by business lines in
a manner consistent with the way in which information
is reported internally to the CODM, for the purposes of
resource allocation and performance assessment. The Group's
reportable and operating segments are as follows:

1. Building construction business: provision of foundation
works and ancillary services and general building works
to customers in Hong Kong and Saipan (discontinued
operation)

2. Renewable energy business: provision of construction
service of renewable energy systems (e.g. solar power
systems and wind power systems) and rental income
from lease of solar power system in the People Republic
of China (the “PRC")

3. E-commerce business: provision of online merchant-
related service in the PRC

4. Others: building information modelling service in the
PRC and sales of piles to customers in Hong Kong

Segment results represent the loss before income tax from
each segment except for the unallocated corporate expenses.

Segment assets include all current and non-current assets
with the exception of deferred tax assets, financial assets
and other corporate assets. Segment liabilities include all
current and non-current liabilities with the exception of other
corporate liabilities.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)

Information regarding the Group's reportable segments as
provided to CODM for the purposes of resource allocation and

6. DEER @

RHERNERDE kDRI
FEBEKERRENETEB I 2RI ME

s E e fit

assessment of segment performance for the year is set out BISIRET
below:
Discontinued operations Continuing operations
BAILEEEHE REGEER
Building Renewable
construction energy  E-commerce
business Other business business Others  Unallocated Total
BETHE [ BFiH
2% HHty FERER ¥% Hith RAE b
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT TAT
For the year ended #HE20nE
31 December 2022 1NANALEE
Segment revenue HEhE 84,106 = 201,784 10,004 1,591 - 297,485
Segment (loss)/profit N (B8 /5F (50,390) (41) 714 684 (5,311) (35,212) (89,556)
Income tax expense FEiE% (1,428)
Loss for the year FEBR (90,984)
Other information (included in ~ EftE# (5t A2
measure of segment profit/ &%/ (§518) 5t &)
(loss))
For the year ended #Z20225128318
31 December 2022 LLFE
Interest expenses FSE% 15 - 778 - 5 577 1,375
Depreciation for the year ERHE 512 - 2,925 - 232 1,592 5,261
Net impairment losses on trade B R EKFER G4
receivables and contract assets B EREREFE (433) - 3,860 - - - 3,427
Interest income FISWA (265) - (27) - @) (26) (322)
Additions to non-current ERBNNEE
segment assets* RE - = 6,740 6 1,072 - 7,818
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEE @

Discontinued operations Continuing operations

BRIEEEH RELEER

Building Renewable
construction energy  E-commerce

business Other business business Others Unallocated Total
RETE BEXS ETEHS

£% it FERER £% Hitr Kk st
HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HK$'000

TET TET TER THT TET TERT TET

For the year ended 31 December #%2021%128318

2021 LLEE
Segment revenue AEE 148,380 - 177,198 25732 4214 = 355,524
Segment (loss)/profit N8 (BB /BH (60,281) (489) 1076 2607 (4,274) (40,265) (101,626)
Income tax expense FERES (1424)
Loss for the year FEGR (103,050)

Other information (included in ~ Ef1 &R} (5t A 25
measure of segment profit/ %]/ (548) 5t 8)
(loss))

For the year ended 31 December #%20215128318

2021 LLFE
Interest expenses FERY 1,256 - 325 - 4 85 2479
Depreciation for the year ERFE 1,586 - 3491 - 41 1758 6876
Net impairmentlosses on trade B BZEMHBRAEH

receivables and contract assets B ERBEEFE 223) - 964 = = o 741
Interest income FISWA (1,602) - (50) = @ 33 (1,689)
Gain on disposal of property, plant &Y% BB K

and equipment RENRR (198) - = - = = (198)
Additions to non-current FRBNHEE

segment assets* RE 852 = - 4 274 2388 3518
2 Other than financial assets and deferred tax asset ta B ERIRERIEE ERRI
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI MIET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. EPER @
Segment assets and liabilities AHEERARE
The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and liabilities TAAHEIZ2RDE BN AEREE
by reportable segments: S4=N =L ap ign
2022 2021
2022% 20214
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Segment assets DEEE
Building construction business I T2 75
(Discontinued operations) (BRI 2£T5) - 215,263
Renewable energy business AIEEERER 309,042 218,155
E-commerce business BFEEER 4,594 4,791
Others HAth 12,105 21,575
Elimination of inter-segment 7 55 ] FE U = I8 5 8
receivables - (13,922)
325,741 445,862
Unallocated assets RNBELEE 4,209 14,928
Deferred tax assets RIERIBE E 504 380
Consolidated assets REEE 330,454 461,170
Segment liabilities DEEE
Building construction business B T2 #£75
(Discontinued operations) (BARIERE2TE) - 120,712
Renewable energy business A B4 REIRE 219,031 114,447
E-commerce business BTEBER 1,640 2,374
Others Hth 1,480 4,239
Elimination of inter-segment o SR e T TR IE 5
payables - (13,922)
e 222,151 227,850
Unallocated liabilities Apkad 13,792 37,810

" Consolidated liabilities aaE 235,943 265,660
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued)
Entity-wide information
Geographical information

The Group's operations are mainly located in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Saipan.

The following tables set out information about the
geographical location of (i) the Group’s revenue and (i) the
Group'’s property, plant and equipment, right-of-use assets
and goodwill (“Specified Non-Current Assets”).

The geographical location of revenue is based on the location
at which the services were provided or the goods delivered.
The geographical location of the Specified Non-Current Assets
is based on the physical location of the assets, in the case of
property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets, and
the location of the operation to which they are allocated, in
the case of goodwill.

6. DEERE @
EREEEER
HEEH

FEENESTEUNES  RBEKRER-

TNEREHE R EE W m KA &Y
X BEAREB EAREERBE (BT
IFREBEE)) FIMIBUEE K

Wmt BN ERENRREHIRBNZGEY
MUEME - FEFNBEEMEUERE
REENBRMUE FIYE BB kRHEU
REAEEEMNS) URBEEEDEHNEE
EE GEEEMS) ME -

2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FHExT
Revenue: W ak -
Hong Kong 58 60,220 148,380
The PRC FRE 213,379 207,144
Saipan i 23,886 =
Discontinued operations BARIEREE (84,106) (148,380)
Consolidated total A MEET 213,379 207,144
Specified non-current assets:  FEIEREEE : o s
Hong Kong 55 3 1,467 TR 3500 S
The PRC A 32,593 £ = o 0350 < L
Saipan EH - e T
34,060 34,388
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI MIET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

6. SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 6. DEEE @
Entity-wide information (continued) ERBEEN (@)
Information about major customers FEEXFREH
During the year, revenue from customers contributing over TR REEMAEEAWRRBB0%NE
10% of the total revenue of the Group is as follows: PR mWT -
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FET
Building construction BETREXEDT
business segment (B4R IERE )
(discontinued operations)
Customer A! ZEEA N/A* 39,913
RiER
Renewable energy AIREEREEDE
business segment
Customer B? ERAp? 82,192 N/A*
@A
Customer C? ZERC N/A* 63,728
RiER
Customer D? ERD? 95,432 66,302
‘ The revenue was derived from building construction business g RERRTIREBRD I -
Segmeﬁt.
2 The revenue was derived from renewable energy business 2 TRERBEERERD I o
Segmeﬂt.
A The customer did not contribute over 10% of total revenue of f %= P AE R E A A B BA AN £ E AR UL
the Group during the relevant year. B8 10% ©
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

OTHER INCOME 7. HUgA
2022 2021
20225 20214F
HK$’'000 HKS$'000
FET AT
Rental income from lease of HAEE MBS WA
machinery 200 42
Bank interest income IRITH] B WA 322 87
Interest income from *REBEHEL ((BiELT)®
Dr. Kan Hou Sek, Jim (‘'Dr.Kan")  # B WA = 1,602
Government grants (Note) BB (M 5F) 1,216 437
Compensation income from = N
insurance 1,775 =
Management fee income BIEERA 1,318 =
Sales of waste product HEREEMR 1,176 =
Others HAth 1,798 1,346
7,805 3,514
Representing 255
Continuing operations FEKEER 1,433 1,479
Discontinued operations BARIEREET 6,372 2,035
7,805 3,514
Note: Mok -

Government grants included receipts of Employment Support
Scheme from Hong Kong government and electricity subsidy from
local government in the PRC of approximately HK$645,000 and
HK$571,000 (2021: HKSnil and HK$437,000) respectively. There are
no unfulfilled conditions or other contingencies attaching to these
grants.

BN B 81 S B BUN B TR 2] 5T 8 WU
B PR 75 B AT UK R B9 BB 70 4 Ak 93 B 49645,000
BT K571,00058 70 (20214 © T 7T K%437,000%
TC) © 5% <5 /0 B 0 4 BT 5 SR IE ARV R S H 3
AESED
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
eI MIET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

8. OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 8. Hfthfz
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET AT
Gain on disposal of property, HEME -BERSKHE
plant and equipment U = - 198
Change in fair value of financial AT EzH ABZH
asset at FVTPL TRBEENATFEEZD - (3.343)
Net foreign exchange losses EREIEFEE (9) 3
(9) (3,142)
Representing 255
Continuing operations FFEKEER (2) (3)
Discontinued operations BAARIEKREET (7) (3,139)
(9) (3,142)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

9. EXPENSES BY NATURE 9. BMEHISHNMAX
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET AT
Accrued cost to subcontractor FEst D B R A 223,077 271,357
Employee benefit expenses ETEMNMEX (BEESFHM
(including directors’emoluments)  (F5£10)
(Note 10) 47,239 61,094
Depreciation e
— Property, plant and equipment  —#)% R &R E 482 566
— Right-of-use assets —FREEEE 4,779 6,310
Legal and professional fees FRERBEXER 11,197 9,609
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 24 B %% EM
- Audit services —BETRTS 2,520 2,200
- Non-audit services —IEEETARTS 253 233
Other expenses HMEx 101,432 102,933
Total cost of revenue, selling and Wz A4S ~ 35 6& K 1T B 2 AR ZE
administrative expenses 390,979 454,302
Representing 2%
Continuing operations FERE T 249,627 247,735
Discontinued operations BARIEKREET 141,352 206,567
390,979 454,302
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

N

e B HRRMIE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS' EMOLUMENTS)

10. BEEREFFAN (BIFEEFHM)

2022 2021
20225 20214F
HK$’'000 HK$'000
FHT FET
Wages, salaries and bonuses ITE -FisKk{E4a 44,283 58,157
Pension costs — defined BARERE—TERE
contributions plan TR E 1,115 1,493
Others HAth 1,841 1,444
47,239 61,094
Amount included in cost of AU ER AR AR RRIE
revenue 11,701 23,867
Amount included in sellingand Bt AIHE RITEHAZBIFIE
administrative expense 35,538 37,227
47,239 61,094
Representing 25 %
Continuing operations FEREER 23,998 20,826
Discontinued operations BARIEREET 23,241 40,268
47,239 61,094
Five highest paid individuals TEREHAL

FRAEEFMESNERL A TEERS
(2021 M%) EF HFME KRR
MY sE30FR R DA e ENFEN T HER=

The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest
in the Group for the year include two (2021: two) directors
whose emoluments are reflected in the analysis shown in

Note 30. The emoluments payable to the remaining three
(2021: three) individuals during the year are as follows:

(20214 : =%) EABIFBNINT -

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$’000 HKS$'000

F#ET FHET

_ Salanes and allowances Hre KR Rh 3,294 4,597
" _~Penision cost - defined RINE AL —E TR

- “contributions plan HARE 3 54 54

3,348 4,651
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

10. EMPLOYEE BENEFIT EXPENSES 10. EERMFAXZ (BEESFHW @
(INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS)
(continued)
Five highest paid individuals (continued) hEEEHmAL (E
The number of the highest paid employees who are not the WIERNBEEEHFMNF FIHEEN R
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the S ESMABUT

following bands are as follows:

Number of employees

EEA#

2022 2021

20224 20214

Nil to HK$1,000,000 = %1,000,0007 7T 1 -
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,00178 75 % 1,500,00078 75 2 2
HKS$ 1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,00178 7T & 2,000,000/ 7T - 1
3 3

11. FINANCE COSTS 11. B

2022 2021

20224 20214

HKS$'000 HKS'000

FET FTAET

Interest on bonds BEER B 481 720
Interest on borrowings ERGlls = 841
Interest on lease liabilities HEaEFE 475 544
Interest on bills ZRFE 419 -
Interest on bank overdrafts RITELFE - 374
1,375 e

Representing 255 : i

Continuing operations RFERESER : 1,360 e o0

Discontinued operations BAR IS ETE 15 1,256
1,375 2,479
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
eI MIET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE 12. FRIEREA

Pursuant to the enactment of two-tiered profits tax rates
by the Inland Revenue Department of Hong Kong, the
Group's first HKS2 million of assessable profits under Hong
Kong profits tax is subject to tax rate of 8.25%. The Group's
remaining assessable profits above HKS2 million will continue
to be subject to a tax rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Corporate Income Tax (the “CIT
Law") and Implementation Regulation of the CIT Law, the tax
rate of the PRC subsidiaries is 25%.

No provision for income tax expense outside Hong Kong and
the PRC has been made as the Group's subsidiaries outside
Hong Kong and the PRC either did not have assessable profits
or have tax credits in excess of assessable profits during the
year in the relevant jurisdiction.

The amount of income tax expense represents:

RIEEBRBRHERNWARBIFFRIRE
FEEARBEEENERAE2EZBTE
SRIE N ZTR I8 2504417 « A E B A RLEB A
2E BB ITTBIER TSRS R FL AR Z16 5%
Ao

R ZERERE (EERERE) &
EMEBREEHAE  DERBATKRE
2325% 0

HREREEEETBRTEBINNEL
Bl R AER B A B EEERIRET N
BBHERNGTNER R  MABRE
B R REIRINBIFT SIS (F B o

PRSI BIBRRTE ¢

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET AT
Current income tax — BPEARR1SHR —
Hong Kong profit tax EBHER
Over-provision in prior year BEFEBREE - (2.144)
Current income tax — BPEARR1S AR —
the PRC corporate income tax FRE (B 2FREHR
Provision for the year FREE 2,313 1,628
Under—provision in prior year BEFEREBTE = 17
2,313 (499)
Deferred income tax (Note 23) RIEPTISTR (F¥5E23) (885) 1,923
1,428 1,424
R,ep_‘r,éég'r{-ting'_ : 255
- ~Continuing operations RREEXT 1,428 1,452
" Discontinued operations BRI EEET - (28)
1,428 1,424
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rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

12. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (continued) 12. FRISHREAX @

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to GeEmkEMEERGERPRISERA
the loss before income tax per the consolidated statement of EIEATFEMERNEZ 2 HRWT ¢
profit or loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHT FET
Loss before income tax FRPTSIRBIES 1B (89,556) (101,626)
Tax calculated at domestic tax B AN EEE R EEN
rates applicable to loss in the AR RSB HIRIE
respective countries (11,806) (17,615)
Expenses not deductible for ENGIE Y
tax purpose 3,577 5425
Tax effect on temporary RN E R EZE/
differences not recognised M (926) 689
Income not taxable BIAEFRMRUTA (27) (268)
Tax loss not recognised KRIERNIEEIE 10,748 14,149
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses B 8 5¢ Al &) A< FE 50 F TE E5 38 1Y
not previously recognised ML (138) (452)
Tax losses previously recognised oAl B FERS K B[O IR IE RS 18
and reversed - 1,623
Over-provision in prior year RITRFEBRERE B - (2127)
Income tax expense FriS A 1,428 1,424
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rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

13. LOSS PER SHARE 13. EikE51E

BREXNEEDRERNETRBES AEMNL
BEFUBE BT EERIINEFIO#EE -

The basic loss per share is calculated by dividing the loss
attributable to owners of the Company by the weighted

14.

7162 o1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1K) #2837 IR A 5

average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year.

2022 2021
20225 20214
Weighted average number of FESREAREEEEN
ordinary shares for the purpose  Z BRI FHH (FAR)
of basic and diluted loss per
share (in thousands) 760,830 760,830
From continuing and REFEMRBRIERE T
discontinued operations
Loss attributable to owners of KABHEE NEHEER
the Company (in HK$'000) (F7#E7T) (87,451) (100,827)
Basic loss per share SREREE
(HK cents per share) BLERR) (11.49) (13.25)
From continuing operations REFBESEER
Loss attributable to owners of KRB R NEMLEER
the Company (HK$'000) (F%7T) (37,964) (40,085)
Basic loss per share SREREE
(HK cents per share) (BLERR) (4.99) (5.27)
From discontinued operations KEBKRIEREE
Loss attributable to owners of KB A ANEHEE
the Company (HK$'000) (F#T) (49,487) (60,742)
Basic loss per share SREAREE
(HK cents per share) (BLERR) (6.50) (7.98)

Diluted loss per share is the same as basic loss per share as
there were no potential dilutive ordinary shares outstanding

during the year (2021: same).

DIVIDENDS

14.

No dividends were paid, declared or proposed for both years,
nor has-any dividend been proposed since the end of the
_reporting period:

HFERTESTENNBEERTSER
WEREEHERESREAERER (2021

F AR -
HJXI:%\

P M AE F R 32 1~ BUREEZ R AR
BoMEBRSHREREZZ RS EAR

5

o
/i

4
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

15. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL

SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY

Place of incorporation/operation

15. ZAREEMBATFE

Particulars of issued

Effective economic
interest held by the

Name of entity and kind of legal entity Principal activities share capital Group
SR EEMB R ZIS%F)H#
- - S - = MR AT | 35
BB AR ERER TEEH BRARAHE RIRAEAT
2022 2021
2002F 2001F
Zhejiang Zhonghong Shunlian The PRC, limited liability company E-commerce-related services il 51% 51%
Internet Technology Co, Ltd HE BREFAT EFHHEMR% b
(TR IBH AR &
BIRAE)
Win Win Way Construction Co. Ltd Hong Kong, limited liability company ~ Construction and engineering  HK$131,636,000 - 100%
(WinWinWay") EHBETRE &5 BREALAHE BERTRE ordinary shares
BRAT (MEH) 131,636,00075 70 Z B %
Smart City Engineering Limited Hong Kong, limited liability company  Construction and engineering  HK$10,000 ordinary - 100%
(TEmIBERAE) 8 BRERAT BERIR shares
10,0008 T & B
Win Win Way Materials Supply Limited - Hong Kong, limited liability company ~ Trading of piles HK$10,000 ordinary - 100%
(MEFMRERAE) B BREARH BHEE shares
10,0007 70 BB A%
Win Win Way Construction Co,, Saipan, limited liability company Construction and engineering ~ US$200,000 ordinary - 100%
(Saipan) Inc. = BEREAAT BERIE shares
200,000% 70 B & &

Annual Report 2022 €3 CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited 7 X @ (B #= R A R A S 1 63
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eI MIET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

15. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL 15. ZABEENBATIEHE @
SUBSIDIARIES OF THE COMPANY (continued)

Effective economic

Place of incorporation/operation Particulars of issued interest held by the
Name of entity and kind of legal entity Principal activities share capital Group
HRRIL EEER AL
B4 HEERBE TEEH ER{TRANE RIRERA
2022 2021

20224 20214

Shenzhen CT Vision Investment The PRC, limited liability company Investment holding Nil 100% 100%
Holdings Limited TR ERFEAR BREER
(RYIPREEREER
BRAE) 10

AF

Sichuan Yafei Engineering Design The PRC, limited liability company Construction and engineering  Nil 100% 100%
Co, Ltd (T =R IS FE EREEAT BERTR z
E@/Aa”) m&E

Nanjing CT Vision Smart City The PRC, limited liability company Building information modelling RMB16,230,252 51% 51%
Technology Limited HED BREEAT services issued share capital
(BARPREEEEHTERA BEEERERS AR 162302527
RaF)me BETRA

Nanjing Hengyihui New Energy The PRC, limited liability company Leasing of solar power system  RMB630,000 100% 100%
Technology Co, Ltd HE BREEAR HEXGREZE S issued share capital
(B RIERENAERRHT AR 6300007
BRAR) 04 BETRA

(1) This subsidiary is registered as an enterprise of invested/ 1N XWBABSREBEFENZEZFMABAA

controlled by natural persons under the PRC Law. SE R EE
(2)  The English name for the PRC subsidiaries is for identification 2 HENBATMNELTBEMER -

purposes only.

(3)  The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company as at 31 (B) EFRFER2022F12B31BEFERELRE
December 2022 which principally affected the results or assets BXEENBEEZARBDWBAE - BIEE
of the Group. Management is of the opinion that to give details R REHMNBATNFEEENE
of other subsidiaries would result in particulars of excessive BAR TR ARAEMNEB AT N FRITE
length. None of the Company's subsidiaries had issued any BITERBEHES

debt securities at year end.
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e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 16. Y% R B K%

Solar Furniture,
Plant and power and Motor Office
machinery system fixtures vehicles  equipment Total
BER KA RAK RE WAZE st
i BEih RE B

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

AT AT TAT TAET TAT TAT
At 1 January 2021 120211818
Cost DN 76,100 1329 4113 1433 407 83,382
Accumulated depreciation REHNE (76,100) (170) (3393) (1,228) (215) (81,106)
Net book amount REFE = 1.159 720 205 192 2276
Year ended 31 December HZF2021F12831H

2021 HEE
Opening net book amount ~ EFIEREFE = 1,159 720 205 192 2276
Additions RE - - 122 105 283 510
Depreciation charge (Note 9)  #TEE Xt (FfE9) = (66) (294) (77) (129) (566)
Exchange differences EREH - 37 6 = 9 52
Closing net book amount FRE@ZE = 1,130 554 233 355 2272
At 31 December 2021 120215128318
Cost B 76,100 1,345 4245 1,201 679 83,570
Accumulated depreciation REINE (76,100) (215) (3691) (968) (324) (81,298)
Net book amount REFE = 1,130 554 233 355 2272
Year ended 31 December HZF2022%12831H
2022 LHEE

Opening net bookamount ~ EFIEREFE - 1,130 554 233 355 2,272
Additions e - - - - 50 50
Disposals of subsidiaries HERBAZ - - (89) (39) = (128)
Depreciation charge (Note 9)  #TEX H (Fi3E9) - (63) (225) (36) (158) (482)
Exchange differences ERER - (87) (11) = (25) (123)
Closing net book amount FRE@ZE - 980 229 158 222 1,589
At 31 December 2022 1#2022%12H831H
Cost (D% - 1,224 680 178 568 2,650
Accumulated depreciation  B&HFE - (244) (451) (20) (346) (1,061)
Net book amount REFE - 980 229 158 222 1,589
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rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

17. LEASES 17. A&
This note provides information for leases where the Group is a A FREAEBFAERKBAZHEEZE
lessee. o
(@) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement @ MREeMBRKRARERZHRIE
of financial position
The consolidated of financial position shows the FEMBRARINEBEEENE
following amounts relating to leases: REUWH -
2022 2021
2022% 20214
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FHET AT
Right-of-use assets EREEE
Properties LYES 6,208 2,832
Solar power system K PZRESE B b 3,965 4,577
Motor vehicles AE 775 1,352
10,948 8,761
Lease liabilities HEaR
Current EPEA 4,299 3,377
Non-current SFENHA 5,256 4,082
9,555 7,459
As a lessee TERAFAN
Additions to the right-of-use assets during the year were FENREFEAREER7,768,0008 7T

HK$7,768,000 (2021: HK$3,009,000).

(20214F : 3,009,0005&7T) ©

As at 31 December 2022, the lease liabilities of solar 7220225128310 » K[ B uhFE

power system-was secured by:

EaRUTIIRIEFRE

() trade receivables of approximately HK$47,000 () BS5EWRIEAI47,0007E 7T (2021

(2_021 : HK$72,000);

(2021: same).

7166 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1K) #2837 IR A 5

£ : 72,0005 7T) ;

i ",'ré_gister.ed capital of a wholly-owned subsidiary (ih ZBENBARNGEMERAREE

" amounting to RMB10,000,000 (2021: same); and 10,000,0007C (20214 © #8[E) 5 &
a guarantee by the wholly-owned subsidiary in (i) EIMNFE2EMNBAR &AEZ
(i) above and Dr. Ho Chun Kit Gregory (“Dr. Ho") gL (TatE 1)) REAIER

(0214 : AB[@E) °
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

17. LEASES (continued) 17. #HE @
(b) Amounts recognised in the consolidated statement (b) RiFSEEREMZENGERERZ
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income =%

The consolidated statement of profit or loss and other FEEmhEMEEWRGERY)RHE
comprehensive income show the following amounts EEFNSEWT
related to leases:

2022 2021
20225 20214F
Notes HK$'000 HKS$'000
B 5 FET AT
Depreciation charge of FRAEEENESZH
right-of-use assets
Properties LY/ES 4,130 5,637
Solar power system YN E N 260 269
Motor vehicles RE 389 404
9 4,779 6,310
Interest expense MERXZ
(included in finance cost) (5t ABFFE AL AS) 1 475 544
Expense relating to short-  E25ZHATAEARER
termleases (included B (BT AU A A e
in cost of revenue and HE RITER )
selling and administrative
expenses) 36 4,335
Sub-lease income DHEUA 801 647
The total cash outflow for leases for the year was AEERHEEELENREREEREN
approximately HK$5,548,000 (2021: HK$12,494,000). #35,548,00078 75 (20214F © 12,494,000

T
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

17. LEASES (continued)

(c)

(d)

168 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1K) #2837 IR A 5

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are
accounted for

The Group leases various properties, solar power system
and motor vehicles. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 1 year to 20 years, but may have
extension options as described in (e) below.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and
contain a wide range of different terms and conditions.
The lease agreements do not impose any covenants
other than the security interests in the leased assets that
are held by the lessor. Leased assets may not be used as
security for borrowing purposes.

The Group sub-leases the solar power system under
an operating lease. Lease terms are negotiated on
an individual basis and contain different terms and
conditions.

Variable lease payments

The sublease of solar power system in the PRC contain
variable payment terms that linked to power usage
by the lessee. Variable lease payments that depend
on the power usage are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which the condition that triggers those
payments occurs.

17. A&

(0)

(d)

FEENBEEHREARG

AEBBEEZEY R KB BIL
RABE - HEAGNEBRIEEEH
B EHRETIL > 2AM IR FIBE R /E T X
()P AYIEHAE R o

HERRTCEEHE BEaRER
B BY IR R 1 o BR B A FRIF A
EEEMNKTPERIN BEBEE
MERZY - AEEETSREER
i

AEERBEERNDHEKRZERE
e HERRIEBHE OS82
PEBIFR A

QIE-25N=AREN

ERE KRR BN SR EA5R
AT 10 7 B B 45 9 10 BT 2 £ R 45
# o BUAR F B B 00 AT 2T B A9 805
B 3 (AR R B SRR T B
PoBEER -

Annual Report 2022 FE R



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

18. GOODWILL 18. HE
HKS$'000
FTAET
At 1 January 2021 and 31 December 2021 72021518 1H %2021412831H
Cost D% 23,355
Accumulated impairment R EE =
Net book amount REFEE 23,355
Year ended 31 December 2022 HZE2022F 128310 LLEE
Opening net book amount FYREFE 23,355
Exchange differences PERERE (1,832)
Closing net book amount FRIREFE 21,523
At 31 December 2022 7220225128318
Cost [B%:N 21,523
Accumulated impairment EHEE _
Net book amount REFE 21,523

Goodwill acquired through business combination is allocated
to the CGU, “provision of construction service of renewable
energy system in the PRC’, that is expected to benefit from the
business combination.

The recoverable amount of the CGU is determined based
on value-in-use calculations. These calculations use cash
flow projections based on financial forecasts approved by
management covering a period of five years. Cash flows
beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using an
estimated growth rate of 2% (2021: 2%). The cash flows are
discounted using a discount rate of 28% (2021: 27%), which
reflects specific risks relating to the CGU.

In view of the fact that the recoverable amount éxceedé‘th‘e.
carrying amount of the above CGU, there is no impairment of

goodwill allocated to the above CGU during the year (2021:
same).

Management is of the opinion that any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not have resulted
in an impairment write-down in the CGU.

BRERSHMESNEETL DR T B
BREEFEHDPEZNIRSESE M B
MR EIR M B EERE BIEERR
o

HEELBUNNEEELZEREE
SEAER ZENEAFERAENKEERE
HEN A F R HEEANIRERTER c AE
HEIRE MBS R E % #HE (2021
& 12%) IREMGHERMIBEES BALT
TE R B9 AL IR Z28% (20214F & 27%) Ah3R o

LRARESEBE LN REEE MY

BREE RAFEEDRE LIRS EE BN -
BIRS B AL ARUE (20214F  AHE) o

BEERS EURFRIOVERNSERSE
ZBEIR A EERIRE EL BB EMR
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e B HRRMIE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

19. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  19. ##4ERE|H92&RT A
2022 2021
20224 20214
HKS$'000 HKS'000
FET FET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost; HBEIE R AT ER 2
TREE
Trade receivables, deposits and B RBARIBE - TR
other receivables HhpE g =Ia 128,889 117,554
Cash and bank balances BT MIRITHER 4,454 20,911
133,343 138,465
Financial liabilities ERaE
Financial liabilities at amortised cost: REHR AT R 2
TRIEE
Trade and other payables B 5 REMEN I (105,812) (93,600)
Amount due to the immediate BN BEZERAR A
holding company (19,164) (28,358)
Lease liabilities HEas (9,555) (7,459)
Borrowings R = (9,000)
(134,531) (138,417)

1 70 CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited X IIE B (B ) £2A& 5 BRA &

The Group's exposure to various risks associated with the
financial instruments is disclosed in Note 3.1. The maximum
exposure to credit risk at the end of the reporting period is the
carrying amount of each class of financial assets mentioned

above.

FEERAERSH T EERNSBRER

ERMEE3IRE - RIS R AEN RS
EERES LR BEMEEZREE-
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rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND

20. BZEURIE BT R EMEU

OTHER RECEIVABLES HIE
2022 2021
20224 20214
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
F#&T FET
Trade receivables (Note a) B rENFIE (Msta) 102,729 90,772
Loss allowance (Note 3.1(b)) B IR (M 5E3.1(0) (4,121) (154)
98,608 90,618
Deposits & 1,550 20,535
Prepayments (Note b) TEIRIE (stb) 2,016 49216
Other receivables HhpE W FIa 28,773 6,401
32,339 76,152
130,947 166,770
Less: Amounts due within one year B ORBEEEBE TR
shown under current assets —FERNE B FIE (129,397) (165,030)
Non-current portion JEBPEAZR 1,550 1,740
Notes: MIzE

(a) As at 31 December 2021, gross trade receivables of

approximately HK$44,441,000 was due from a customer which

Dr. Kan is one of the beneficial owners.

(b) As at 31 December 2021, it mainly represented prepaid
subcontracting charges of HK$41,899,000 made by the Group
for the resumption of the Saipan Project.

Annual Report 2022 &R

720215 12H31H > B EUREIEAEEEN
44,441,000 TR B —R%E A MEE L
AHERBEEAZ—-

R2021F 12831 H EFXBIEAEE S
EREMMIEE AN D B & 41,899,000/

JT ©
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rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

20. TRADE RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS AND 20. BFRWRIE RS RE ML
OTHER RECEIVABLES (continued) RIE ()
The Group's credit terms granted to customers range from 0 KEEZRTERNEERN FOREOK
to 60 days.
As at the end of reporting period, the ageing analysis of the RERSHIR > BER/RE HIENE S EWEE
trade receivables (before loss allowance), based on date of (B iBEER)) MERB DMTFIMIT ¢

certificate, were as follows:

2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET TFET
Up to 1 month KEEP 80,938 31,318
1 to 2 months 122184 12,465 864
2 to 3 months 2E3EH - -
3 to 6 months 3E6EHR - -
Over 6 months ofEl B LA £ 9,326 58,590
102,729 90,772
Due to the short-term nature of the current receivables, their R BNERFEGRR IR FZ BRI B A HARE
carrying amount is considered to be the same as their fair ERRAREAFEEB ME3I0EHER
value. Note 3.1(b) set out information about the impairment EMEERGNEERBEAEERK
of financial assets and contract assets and the Group's EEEREBHNER -
exposure to credit risk.
The carrying amounts of the trade receivables, deposits B 2 EINFIE ~ 12 & R E AR NI AR E
and other receivables are denominated in the following BEUTHEREEHE !
currencies:
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET TET
L H e T 1,013 123436
o RNIB AR 129,892 43334
130,905 166,770
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e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 21. BHNEERGHNER
LIABILITIES
The Group has recognised the following assets and liabilities AEEEBRITIHARRSNBB2EE
related to contracts with customers: R&af&E:
2022 2021
2022%F 20214
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHT FET
Contract assets relating to BN TRIERREZ
BHNEE
— building construction business —BRERTREER - 86,188
- renewable energy business — A BEERER 161,663 155,088
161,663 241276
Loss allowance (Note 3.1(b)) BEEEEMT 1) (1,174) (2,555)
160,489 238,721
Contract liabilities relating to M TRIERREZ
BHEE
- building construction business —BRITREER - 7,393
— renewable energy business — A BAERER 467 =
467 7,393
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eI MIET

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 21. BHEERGHNERE @
LIABILITIES (continued)
(a) Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities @ BHNEEREEBEMEKRES)

Contract assets represent the Group's rights to BHREERKXEIEERARPIRMEE
considerations from customers for the provision of ERFEMOE L WEEBIER Z
construction services, which arise when: (i) the Group ERFMPRUTBERTESE (0AEER
completed the relevant services under such contracts BEZESHNTHRAERRT B IREE
but the works are yet to be certified by architects, FE/VEFPZENEEM RS
surveyors or other representatives appointed by the HMARZE ; iNE A NBREMA A
customers; or (i) the customers withhold certain EENETRZENCEFEARES
certified amounts payable to the Group as retention UEREAONBEEETT - BRMERR
money to secure the due performance of the contracts. BEHNHRAREGFEZSOME 7
The terms and conditions in relation to the release FHEBNFANERE+ZMEA &
of retention vary from contract to contract and the EETESEBEERNERR KL
retention period generally ranged from six months to FIERAENEENTRNSENEE
twelve months. The Group does not hold any collateral BE P Z(ERVEEEN A S8m e H i
as security. Any amount previously recognised as a RIS K pl 7 AR A (R BRs R ih
contract asset is reclassified to trade receivables at the BRI BN EEE ZRINEIE &4
point at which it is certified by architects, surveyors or BENEEHEAEB B TMIE B RIZ
other representatives appointed by the customers and FNTEEIRERFARBETNENRIE
becomes unconditional other than passage of time. =1k

The change in contract assets is related to the work
in progress performed by the Group but is yet to be
certified and the release status of retention monies
throughout the year.

As at 31 December 2022, retention receivables of 20228128310 L5 NEETE
approximately HK$7,913,000 (2021: HK$44,646,000) was #37,913,00078 7T ( 20214F © 44,646,000
included in the contract assets as stated above. They B7n) KRB E  ILERINIRE £
were classified as current assets based on operating REKSHBHYBATHEE-E
cycle. The ageing of the retention receivables, based on 1R /REE HHARY R UR(R BB & BR B D AT &
the date of certificate, are as follows: FE0S

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FHET TFET

'-"'_Wi’t_'hi'n_ 1 year 1R 4,966 17,545
~ Over 1 year =0k 2,947 27,101

7,913 44,646
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20225F 12831 HIEEE

21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continuea)

(a)

Significant changes in contract assets and liabilities
(continued)

The retention receivables were expected to be
recovered as follows:

21. GHNEERGHEE @

(@) BAHNEEREENEREH (@

FEWIREE S FRHERR A 40 S AR UR (]

2022 2021

20224 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Within 1 year [ES - 5,603
Over 1 year TEM E 7,913 39,043
7,913 44,646

Contract liabilities are classified as current as they
are expected to be settled within the Group’s normal
operating cycle.

The balance of contract liabilities has decreased mainly
due to the decrease in deposit received in advance
of construction contracts. When the Group receives a
deposit before the construction activity commences,
this will give rise to contract liabilities at the start of
a contract, the deposit will set off against contract
assets and/or progress billings in the later stage. The
Group typically receives certain percentage of deposit
before construction work commences. Deposits may
be forfeited if construction contract is cancelled by the
customer.

R ERFN ES S BRGNS
BHRE WESBARF -

BNEREHRRCNEIERASRERE
BHRAKRRE R SXREENER
BB R 4a AT UREIR & > B RIS S 4
MieREEGHNEE RERERE
BHEENEER REENR K&
E—RENEEIREBBRIWEET
BT HERBUHRRGA
Al &R SEEHOR UK
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rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT 21. BHEERGHNERE @
LIABILITIES (continued)
(b) Revenue recognised in relation to contract (b) WMENEERETRE
liabilities
The following table shows how much of the revenue TEREIIN AR S AR PTER U S F
recognised in the current reporting period relates BEESNEEERNEsERE F—
to carried-forward contract liabilities and how much FEBETHNEOETEBENEE
relates to performance obligations that were satisfied in
a prior year:
2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHT FAET
Revenue recognised that was BEEHRTENEaR
included in the contract liability 458k A B FESR
balance at the beginning of W=
the period 6,529 4,259
Revenue recognised from M BEHAE B ETT

performance obligations satisfied  (B(Z D B1T) Z
(or partially satiated) in previous ~ BAI S ERET

periods (Note) g () - 5379
Note: The revenue recognised during the year is mainly due to izt FRERIWZEESERET
the changes in transactions price of certain construction BESONTZEREEFI -
contracts.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

21. CONTRACT ASSETS AND CONTRACT
LIABILITIES (continuea)

()

(d)

Unsatisfied long-term revenue contracts

The following table shows the expected timing of
recognising revenue for the unsatisfied performance
obligations resulting from fixed-price long-term revenue

21. BHNBEEREGNEE @

== 1

(0)

KETHRAKZE G4

TRITHMEEBREHARASH R
FETHENE TR mNTEIRRE
fE o

contracts.

2022 2021
20226 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
F#ET THET
Within one year —&FR 165,438 529,253

More than one year but not more — & L 1B B8 M 4
than two years 71,622 101,931
237,060 631,184

At 31 December 2021, the Saipan Project with a
remaining performance obligation of approximately
HK$223,724,000 which was suspended due to the travel
restrictions imposed by Saipan has been included in the
unsatisfied performance obligation.

As at 31 December 2021, gross contract assets of
approximately HK$18,299,000 was due from a customer
which Dr. Kan is one of the beneficial owners.

(d)

20215128318 » KEITHENEE
BIEREIEEMRITIRES MY EE
YT BR B 4 B (140 4223,724,00078 70
MZEIEH -

2021128310 5B EHETELY
1829900078 TTIEWME — & &P > S
BrAHEBERBEEAZ —°
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rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

22. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 22. REKIRITHEER
Bank balances carry interest at variable market rates which IRITHR R BN HH R B ZEF =R
range from 0.0% to 0.3% (2021: 0.0% to 0.3%). B F0.0%ZE03% (20214 © 00%ZE03%) ©
The carrying amounts of the cash and bank balances are REMIBITHBGNREER AT EES I
approximate their fair values and are denominated in the M3 EHEEHE -

following currencies:

2022 2021
20224 20214

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FET

HKS BT 606 9,316
RMB AR 3,848 11,595
4,454 20,911
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rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX

The natures of items giving rise to deferred income tax assets
and liabilities and their respective movements in deferred
income tax assets during the year without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax
jurisdiction are as follows:

23. EIMEFRTFR

SIBELEFSREERBRNEENME
RERFRERELEFSREETNSBEH

FEZEE—RMKEEERANBGEEHRET) W
T

Loss

allowance

for trade
receivables Accelerated
and contract tax

assets  depreciation Tax losses Total
RENEE
BHEEE MER/RERE REBR st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
TET TET TER FET
At 1 January 2021 1$20215181H 757 (77) 1623 2303
(Charged)/credited to consolidated (e /HAREEER
statement of profit and loss and A2 ElmE
other comprehensive income (305) 5 (1,623) (1,923)
At 31 December 2021 R2021512A31H 452 (72) - 380
At 1 January 2022 1#2022%181H 452 (72) - 380
(Charged)/credited to consolidated (e HAGRERER
statement of profit and loss and Hth2mEmlmE
other comprehensive income 885 - - 885
Exchange differences ERER (65) - - (65)
Disposal of subsidiaries HEHBEAR - 124 - 124
At 31 December 2022 1#2022%12831H 1,272 52 - 1,324

Deferred income tax assets are recognised for tax-loss carried-
forwards to the extent that the realisation of the related tax
benefit through future taxable profits.is probable: At the.end

of the reporting period, the Group has unused tax Ioss'e'_s'_u.

of approximately HK$90,606,000 (2021: HK$171,115,000)
available for offset against future profits. The tax loss of
approximately HK$22,402,000 (2021: HK$132,986,000) may
be carried forward indefinitely and the remaining tax loss of
approximately HK$68,204,000 (2021: HK$38,129,000) will be
expire within 5 years from the end of reporting period.
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MREARBH D BRI EEBRRERR G

FIBTE > ARk SRIBAS B DIEIErFTS

MEE NS AEESRDANE
#5184990,606,00038 7T (20214F. 1 171,115,000
A7) A BRI R R EF - RIBEED
22,402,0007875 ( 20214E .+ 132,986,000787T) PJ
ERHRAE K B TR IBRE51E4768,204,00078 7T

(20214 38,129,000/ 70) HFF ¥R & HASK#E
STHEENEIRR
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

23. DEFERRED INCOME TAX (continued)

24.

23. IRIEFRIGIR @

Deferred income tax liabilities of approximately HK$4,568,000 EIEFT12R & E494,568,0008 7 (20214F
(2021: HK$3,163,000) have not been provided for the 3,163,000/8 70) WERLHI B AN REHE
withholding tax that would be payable on the unremitted H)4945,619,0007 75 (20214F  31,629,0007 7T)
earnings of subsidiaries of approximately HK$45,619,000 AP EEN 2 BRI S - REHEF
(2021: HK$31,629,000) in the PRC. The unremitted earnings TRARBRE-FENERERTES KA
are used for reinvestment. The income tax liability is not EAREE S B CI G R E B I8
recognised, because the Group is able to control the timing BO A EE RARKELOIERELE

of the reversal of the temporary differences and it is probable

that the temporary differences will not reverse in the

foreseeable future.

SHARE CAPITAL 24. g7
Number of shares Share capital
Rir&E i
HK$'000
FHET
Authorised: JETE
Ordinary shares at HK$0.01 each BRROVIBITHEER
At 1 January 2021 R2021F1 818 1,000,000,000 10,000
Issuance of authorised ordinary 120214828238 %417
shares on 23 February 2021 EEEBE ()
(Note) 560,000,000 5,600
At 31 December 2021, FR20215F 128315 ~
1 January 2022 and 2022FF1 BB &
31 December 2022 20228E12831H 1,560,000,000 15,600
At 1 January 2021, 820211818
31 December 2021, 20215128318 ~
1 January 2022 and 2022F1A18 K&
31 December 2022 2022%12H31H 760,830,000 7,608
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24. SHARE CAPITAL (continued)

25.

Note:

Pursuant to a shareholders’ resolution passed on 23 February 2021,

the authorised share capital of the Company was increased from
HK$10,000,000 divided into 1,000,000,000 shares of the Company of
HK$0.01 each to HK$15,600,000 divided into 1,560,000,000 shares by
the creation of 560,000,000 additional shares, which will, upon issue

and being fully paid, rank pari passu in all respects with the Shares in

issue.

RESERVES

(a)

(b)

(c)

Share premium

The share premium account is governed by the
Companies Law of the Cayman Islands and may be
applied by the Company subject to provisions, if any, of
its memorandum and articles of association in paying
distributions or dividends to equity shareholders.

No distribution or dividend may be paid to equity
shareholders out of the share premium account
unless immediately following the date on which the
distribution or dividend is proposed to be paid, the
Company will be able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

Other reserve

The other reserve mainly represents the deemed
contributions from and distributions to the then
controlling shareholders as a result of the reorganisation
before the listing of the shares of the Company on the
Stock Exchange.

Exchange reserve

Exchange differences arising on translation. of ‘the-

24, Bg7s ()

25.

foreign controlled entity are recognised in oth'er._' s

comprehensive income as described in-Note 2.6 and
accumulated in a separate reserve within equity. The
cumulative amount is reclassified to profit or loss when
the net investment is disposed of.
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES

26. B5REMENRIEA

2022 2021
20225 20214F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET TFET

Trade and retention payables BHENMIER
FEMIRE & 103,031 91,899
Other payables HnEA=RIE 2,781 1,701
Accrued cost to subcontractor FEST D B 79,026 91,515
Accrued employee benefits fEstHRERA 1,356 10,877
Accrued operating expenses FESTRERX 15,371 7,151
Accrued interest FEETFIE 139 139
201,704 203,282

Trade payables are unsecured and are usually paid within
credit periods which ranged from 30 to 60 days.

As at the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of

B HRNRER R RBEE I F30E60

ROEEHANZ (T

RIS R RE

HARZ 7R E 5 R

the trade payables based on date of certificate were follows: TEHEREC AT -
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FAET FET
Within 1 month NENEED 95,565 19,651
1 to 2 months 122@ A - 8,976
2 to 3 months 2E3ME B 933 2,448
Over 3 months MEB M E 6,533 42,147
103,031 73,222
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26. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (continued)

In the consolidated statement of financial position, retention
payables were classified as current liabilities. The ageing
analysis of the retention payables, based on the date of
certificate, are as follows:

26. BHKREMEIRIE @

EREFBRRE BURESDESE
BE-ZEEAREINEMRES ZRE

DT

2022 2021
20225 20214

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Within 1 year 1R - 952
Over 1 year TE=U E - 17,725
= 18,677

The carrying amounts of the trade and other payables are
denominated in the following currencies:

B REMBMRENREEDUTIE

MEEHE

2022 2021
20224F 20214E

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FEBT

HKS BT 6,334 99,459
RMB AR 195,370 103,823
201,704 203,282

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are
considered to be the same as their fair values, due to their
short-term nature.

MR EERLE 85 REMEATRIENR

EEWRE AR EN R FERR -
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27. BORROWINGS 27. &R
2022 2021
20225 20214F
HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET TFET
Unsecured EE g
Bonds &% - 9,000
As at the end of reporting period, the Group's borrowings was RIREHRR > AEENEREMR I
repayable as follows:
2022 2021
20225 20214F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHT FET
Within 1 year 1ER - 9,000
- 9,000
Note: P sE
In 2020, the Company issued HK$9,000,000 bonds which carry 8% 5220204 » AS/A &) ££979,000,0008 Tt I B 8% 2
coupon interest and are due in 2022. 220225 B ER RV (E 55 ©
28. DISCOUNTINUED OPERATION 28. EARIERREET

With reference to the Company’s Announcement dated
29 November 2022, the Group discontinued its building
construction business at the time of the disposal of Win Win
Way Investment Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries during
the year 2022.

B2ERNFHEA2022F118298B 24
& AEBER2022FEHEWIn Win Way
Investment Holdings Limited 5 E b B /A 5] BF
RITHBRRTIEER
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28. DISCONTINUED OPERATION (continued)

The loss for the year from the discontinued operation is
analysed as follows:

28. BARIEEREET @

ERIECEXEBZFABEDOMUT -

2022 2021

2022%F 20214

HK$'000 HKS$'000

FHET TFET

Loss of discontinued operations BRI REETEER (50,431) (60,742)
Gain on disposal of discontinued HEBRIEEE R

operation 944 _

(49,487) (60,742)

The results of the discontinued operations for the period
from 1 January 2022 to 29 November 2022, which have been

B F R EEFZ T 00221 B 1H E20224E11

B2oBHBZ#E Bt AGEEAER) W

included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, are as I
follows:
Period from
1 January 2022 to Year ended
29 November 2022 31 December 2021
2022F1H1HE HE
2022 11H29H 2021 12831H
AR EFE
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FAET FAET
Revenue & 84,106 148,380
Cost of revenue o B A (117,561) (182,029)
Gross loss Ei8 (33,455) (33,649)
Other income HA s 6,372 2,035
Other loss, net Hithis183%8 (7) (3,139)
Net reversal of impairment/(impairment £ RIASNEERME
losses) on financial and contract assets ~ GE{EE518) #[E %8 465 (223)
Sell and administrative expenses THE RITER X (23,791) (24,538)
Loss from operations K E5IE (50,416) . (59,514) :
Finance costs =D (15) o izn
Loss before tax SR AN E A (50,431) 'j(-60_,".77'0)' =
Income tax credit TSR = 28
Loss for the priod/year B FEREE (50,431) (60,742)

No tax charge or credit arose on gain on disposal of the
discontinued operation.
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29. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 29. HEMWBAR

As referred to in note 28 to the consolidated financial AR S B 75 ER R M SR 28P 4t > 1220224
statements, in 2022 the Group discontinued its building ZAREE L H & Win Win Way Investment Holdings
construction business at the time of the disposal of Win Win Limited e L it B AR AR IE S HIZE T 12
Way Investment Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries. S

REEBHRZEEREINT :

Net assets at the date of disposal were as follows:

HKS'000

TFAT
Property, plant and equipment MEBEKRKE 128
Right of use assets fERAEEE 352
Trade receivables, deposits and other receivables B 5 FEWERIE ~ 2 K HAth fE W Fv 18 167,955
Bank and cash balances IRIT RIS AEER 2,075
Trade and other payable B2 R EMEMRIE (92,054)
Contract liabilities BHEE (14,446)
Current tax liabilities BRI IE & (6,760)
Inter companies' balance NGIIEFS: (54,437)
Other liabilities HihaE (2,837)
Net liabilities disposed of BEHEASEFEE (24)
Direct cost to the disposal HEZBEZERAK 1,080
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMBREZ WE 944
Total consideration - satisfied by cash BARBE-UREEZM 2,000
Net cash outflow arising on disposal: HEEEZREMEFEE
Cash consideration received BlRENE 2,000
Cash paid for direct cost UREZ M2 EZRAER (1,080)
Cash and cash equivalents disposed of BEHERERIAEEEY (2,075)

(1,155)
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7

30. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 30. ESEM R

280

141

(a) Directors’ emoluments @ EEF
The remunerations of the directors are set out below: BEEHMETIAOT -
For the year ended 31 December 2022: BE202F 12831 HIEFE ¢
Employer's
contribution to
a retirement Total
Fees Salary benefit scheme emoluments
BEREAK
R
ik i e 3 EEE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET
Executive Directors HTES
Mr. Wu Rui (‘Mr. Wu') BnEs (R8%4) = - - -
Dr. Ho g+ - 1,440 18 1,458
Mr. Guo Jianfeng (‘Mr. Guo")  SB&IE 4 (T8R4 - 1,298 18 1,316
Mr.Wong Kee Chung (note i) B4R SRS (Mifsiii) - 600 6 606
Sub-total NGt - 3,338 42 3,380
Non-Executive Directors FHTES
Ms.Du Yi HEZL - - - -
Ms. Yip Man Shan (note iv) ExXWmut (Hizkv) = = - -
Mr. Lu Qiwei (note v) BEEREE () = = - -
Sub-total NGt - - - -
Independent Non-Executive B JFHITES
Directors
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella (note vi) - {E&ZE 2+ (Hiztvi) 140 - - 140
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong; Philip
(note vi) Bk E%E (ki) 140 - - 140
Dr. Tang Dajie mANEL 280 - -
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan (note vil) - R E5E4E (#Fki)- 280 - = 280
Lin Tat Pang (note viii) NS (Fskiii) 141 = = '
Sub-total Nt 981 - - 981
Total st 981 3,338 4 4,361
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30. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS 30. EEENRER @

(continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (continued) @ EZBHMN @
For the year ended 31 December 2021: HE2021F12831HIEFE
Employer's
contribution to
a retirement Total
Fees Salary  benefit scheme emoluments
BERBRK
BRIEE
i e i FrifaEze
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FTET AT FTHET
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Wu Rui (‘Mr. Wu") Sinkd 244 - - - -
Dr. Ho E)chn = 1440 18 1458
Mr. Lee Kai Lun (note ii) %‘JESUE«}@?EE (B i) = 600 = 600
Mr. Guo Jianfeng (‘Mr. Guo")  ZBRIE 4 (TEBEE)) - 1323 19 1342
Mr. Wong Kee Chung (note i) E#AZRFc 4 (Miskiii) = 215 7 222
Sub-total INEt - 3,578 44 3622
Non-Executive Directors FHITESE
Ms. Du Yi LT - - = =
Ms. Yip Man Shan Exut - - - -
Mr. Lu Qiwei (note v) BEES R (izEy) = - i -
Sub-total INET = = = =
Independent Non-Executive &I FHITES
Directors
Ms. Ng Yi Kum, Estella mBEL L 280 = = 280
Mr. Wong Wing Cheong, Philip  EXKE %% 280 = = 280
Dr. Tang Dajie wANEL 280 = = 280
Mr. Ng Kwun Wan (note vi)  REE%L4 (Hizkvi) 2 = = 2
< Siib-tofal Nt 862 . - 862
ot e 483t 862 3578 44 4484
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30. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

(continued)
(@) Directors’ emoluments (continued)

Notes:

(i) Salary paid to a director is generally an emolument paid
or receivable in respect of that person’s other services in
connection with the management of the affairs of the
company or its subsidiary undertakings.

(ii) Resigned as executive director on 6 July 2021.

(i) Appointed on 23 August 2021.

(iv)  Resigned on 30 June 2022.

(v) Appointed on 25 January 2021.

(vi)  Retired on 30 June 2022.

(vii)  Appointed on 3 December 2021.

(viii)  Appointed on 30 June 2022.

(b) Directors’ retirement benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
retirement benefits during the year (2021: same).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

None of the directors received or will receive any
termination benefits during the year (2021: same).

30. EEGEMRER @

(a

(b)

(c)

ExRHM @

PoEE

() ZNFEENHEBERRZEGA
THERAREHIEWE QB K
75 BA B9 E A BR 75 B 19 S AR U9 S
A

(i) HR2021F7B6HBHERITES

(i) F20214F8H23HEERE

(iv) 220225 6830HEHE

v)  F2021F1B25sHEERE

v) 20225 6830H R E -

(vi)  FR2021F 12838 ESF-

(viii)  FR202286 H30H EZH1E

EEMRNKERN

TF R 2 =5 B U B i U B AT 3R
RABF] (20214 : #B[E) ©

EEMRIEER

£ L4 2 25 B R TS U BRI AR
LEFEF] (20214F : 4B[E]) ©
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30. BENEFITS AND INTEREST OF DIRECTORS

(continued)

(d)

(e)

(f)

Consideration provided to third parties for making
available directors’ services

During the year, the Group did not pay consideration to
any third parties for making available directors’ services
(2021: same).

Information about loans, quasi-loans and other
dealings in favour of directors, controlled bodies
corporate by and connected entities with such
directors

During the year, there is no loans, quasi-loans and
other dealing arrangements in favour of directors, or
controlled bodies corporate by and connected entities
with such directors (2021: same).

Directors’ material interests in transactions,
arrangements or contracts

Same as disclosed in Note 33, no significant
transactions, arrangements and contracts in relation to
the Group's business to which the Group was a party
and in which a director of the Company had a material
interest, whether directly or indirectly; subsisted at the
end of the year or at any time during the year (2021:
same).

30. EEGEMRER @

(d)

(e)

(f)

HENEFRBMEE =S GNE

FR AERBESENEFREM
AEAS =7 A ERRE (20214
HHE)

BRAUES - REFZREFEE R
BEREARTAZEMR EERREM
RBZER

FRBEUEE ZES2SEGE
EREEEEASTAZCER EE
TREMIZS (20214 : ) o

EENR S RHGHNZERER

W H 5E33FF IR EE » I E B A EFEFF 2
HEMAASEZRETEEEAER
(EmEEIER NEAEBEXHEE
BN ERFERTRFEDATE
HEAR S  ZHRE4 (202145 48
) o
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1. NOTETO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31. 48R REM

OF CASH FLOWS

2022 2021
20225 20214
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FET TET
Loss before tax from FESEER 2 BFRAIEE
continued operations (40,069) (40,856)
Loss before tax from BRI EER ZBRIRA
discontinued operation 518 (49,487) (60,770)
Adjustments for: HEE
Depreciation of property, plant and ME- -BERREITE
equipment 482 566
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEESEINTE 4,779 6,310
Net impairment losses on trade BRRKRFIBEREX
receivables and contract assets BEREBEZE 3,427 741
Finance costs M A 1,375 2,479
Interest income FEWHA (322) (1,689)
Change in fair value of financial asset at &2~ {Est ABHH
fair value through profit or loss ETMEENLAFEED - 3,343
Gain on disposal of property, plantand HE# BB KRREN
equipment W e = (198)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HE M B2 B B (944) =
Operating cash flows before working ~ REFTEEESEEE) 2
capital changes KREFEME (80,759) (90,074)
Changes in working capital: EEETEE !
Trade receivables, deposits and B S EWHIE s
other receivables Fe EL A & Wk IE (93,745) 82,273
Contract assets EHNEE 17,658 (43,353)
Trade and other payables B 5 K M ENTRIE 158,513 76,836
Contract liabilities LR 7,520 (7,704)
Cash generated from operations L T,978,

KREELRE 9,187
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31. NOTE TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT 31. %8 H&REMNE @
OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from NMREIRERERN KBHEVE -KE
sale of property, plant and equipment comprise: K BRI E I ELE -
2022 2021
20225 20214F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHT FHET
Cost disposed HEMAE = 735
Accumulated depreciation REHITE - (735)
Gain on disposal of property, HEME -BMEKRKE
plant and equipment UL 2 - 198
- 198
(@) Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing @ ®EEFBELEERINHIER
activities
The table below details changes in the Group's liabilities TREMAERRETHELNER
arising from financing activities, including both cash HES) BIEREMRIFIREEE -ME
and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing EHELNEEIEHRERET KK
activities are those for which cash flows were, or future HERERNAEENGESRERE
cash flows will be, classified in the Group's consolidated KADIEAMEEFNIRE RS

statement of cash flows as cash flows from financing
activities.
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31. NOTETO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT  31.

OF CASH FLOWS (continued)

(a)

(b)

72 O =]

maREREME @

Reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing (@ ®MEIBFELEENHIE @
activities (continued)
Amount
Interest due to Amount
payable Dr. Kan due to
(included (included immediate
in other in other Lease holding
payable) payable) Bank loan Bonds liabilities company Total
FEfI L
RS REGA B
(5t A EAth HithfEt ERAT
FERIFRIE) A BRITER &% HE&E HIFRIE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTERT THEx TET FTHERT TR FERT FTHERT
At 1 January 2021 202151818 139 4468 43110 9,000 11,867 4581 73,174
Financing cash flows MERERE (1935) (4,468) (43,110) = (8,159) 23618 (34,054)
Acquisition of leases S - = = 3,009 = 3,009
Interests expenses FEHE% 1935 = = 544 = 2479
Exchange differences ERELS - - - 189 159 348
At 31 December 2021 1#2021%12A318 139 - 9,000 7,459 28358 44,956
Financing cash flows HERERE (900) - - (9,000) (5,512) (8,456) (23,868)
Acquisition of leases YR E - - - - 7,768 - 7,768
Disposal of subsidiaries HEWRBAT - - - - (179) - (179)
Interests expenses FIEE% 900 - - - 475 - 1,375
Exchange differences ERER - - - - (456) (738) (1,194)
At 31 December 2022 1#2022512A31R 139 - - - 9,555 19,164 28,858
Net cash flows attributable from discontinued (b) REBRLEKEXEBNIRESREFEE

operations

2022 2021
20225 20214F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET THT
Operating activities K ES (8,161) | .48_,.935':-' :
Investing activities REEE 1,610 e TR
Financing activities BT - (430) TSI O
(6,981) (5,229)
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32.

33.

794 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1) #2837 IR A 5

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

(@) At 31 December 2021, the Group had contingent
liabilities in respect of performance bonds to guarantee
the due and proper performance of the obligations
undertaken by the Group’s subsidiaries for projects
amounting to HK$2,100,000.

(b) At 31 December 2021, the Group had contingent
liabilities in respect of potential liquidated and
ascertained damages claims for two construction
projects amounting to HK$28,964,000. The subsidiary
involved was disposed by the Group during the year
2022.

RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE

For the purposes of the consolidated financial statements,
a party is considered to be related to the Group if the party
has the ability, directly or indirectly, to exercise significant
influence over the Group in making financial and operating
decisions. Related parties may be individuals (being members
of key management personnel, significant shareholders and/
or their close family members) or other entities and include
entities which are under the significant influence of related
parties of the Group where those parties are individuals.
Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to
common control.

32.

33.

HARE

@  FR2021E 12831 H  KEBMIERALE
BB B S ESEITMIEBEEMAESE
EMHAERARETRNHIAEES
2,100,00078 7 ©

(b)  FR2021E12831H KEBEMIEEE
BHEWNAEEEREENBES IR
RYEL A B2 15 5328,964,00078 7T © A< &
B0 2FEHERMT RIHB AR -

BBk 75 1 B2

AR EMBIRERME * H— SR ERNE
BEAEEFMFNMBREERREEE
REES BIRAR 7 R A5 B A R B o R R
HAERBEABEEZERAE BFRE
BERF/ REEWNAR) HEMBER > BF
FEEBEANBBSHEEERZEN
BYER RS o B HFIEHIBY & 75 TR 45 AR 75 B Bt
7o
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33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued)
Management is of the view that the following individuals
and companies were related parties that had transactions or

balances with the Group as at and during the year.

Name of related party

33. FABEAIE @

EEERB THNALRRABDBEERNEF
WEAEEEE X5 WS RIIRER T o

Relationship with the Group

RAHE S T8 AL ENRF
Mr. Wu Executive Director
R4uEE HITES
Dr. Ho Executive Director
fatE+ HITESE
Mr. Lee Kai Lun Executive Director
MR ST HITES
Mr. Guo Executive Director
At HITESE
Mr. Wong Kee Chung Executive Director
BRI E HITES
CT Vision Investment Limited Immediate holding company
PRRERERBRAR BEEERAR
(@) Related party balances @ PBRAN S RVAEER
2022 2021
20224 20214F
HK$'000 HKS$'000
FHT FAT
Amount due to the immediate N BEEERATRIE
holding company (Note) (P 5E) 19,164 28358
Note: B 5E

The balance is denominated in RMB, non-trade “in_nature,
unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand.

The carrying amount of amount due to the immediate holding
company approximates its fair values.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

33. RELATED PARTY DISCLOSURE (continued)

(b) Key management personnel compensation

The remuneration of directors and senior management
who were considered as key management personnel of
the Group during the year is as follows:

33. BB IE »
b) TEEEASHH

FRARGERTEETEEEAEBNE
EhEHREZABRFMMOT

2022 2021

20224 20214

HKS$'000 HKS$'000

FHET FET

Short-term benefits kG ERRE A 7,313 7,188
Pension costs — defined BIREBR A —TEE

contribution plans HERETE 96 89

7,409 7,277

34. EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

The Group does not have any material subsequent event.

34. REHREIR

FEERBEEAEANREE
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF  35. AR MBI RR
THE COMPANY

2022 2021
20224 20214
HKS$'000 HKS$'000
FHET FET

Non-current assets ERBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries NI S 112,408 150,066
Interests in subsidiaries R B AR R - 62,558
112,408 212,624

Current assets MENEE

Other receivables HhpE W FIa 293 240
Amounts due from subsidiaries FEUL I B A = 718 - 14,436
Cash and cash equivalents REMREEFEY 606 2,795
899 17,471
Total assets WEE 113,307 230,095

Annual Report 2022 €3 CT Vision S.L. (International) Holdings Limited 7 X @ (B #= R A R A S 1 97



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

rE M BHRRME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. RABMTFENRER @

THE COMPANY (continued)

2022 2021
20224F 20214
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Equity R
Share capital (&N 7,608 7,608
Reserves (Note) 1 (sH) 93,951 187,902
Total equity R iEEE 101,559 195,510
Liabilities af&
Non-current liabilities ERFEE
Borrowings B - 9,000
Current liabilities B =R
Other payables HAEN I 6,324 3,975
Amount due to the immediate T EZTER AT
holding company I8 5,424 21,610
11,748 25,585
Total liabilities =Rk 11,748 34,585
Total equity and liabilities EamkaEREE 113,307 230,095

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved by the board of directors on 31 March 2023 and was

signed on its behalf.

Bl
DIRECTOR
EFE

TO8 1 vision S.L. (international) Holdings Limited =5 IE %4 (E1) 2R3 7 IR A 5

* Guo Jianfeng

EATFHRAEREAESTZRN2023F38
STHH#LE WHUTERAREE

Sun Dexin
BRIEE
DIRECTOR
EZx
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Notes to the Consplidated Financial Statements
e EHRERMIEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022 & ZE20226 12831 B IEFEE

35. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF 35. "ABMTERRER @
THE COMPANY (continued)

Note: M 5E
Reserves movement of the Company RN EEEES
Share Accumulated
premium losses Total
B 15 it 8 REHEE #azt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHETT FHET FHETT
At 1 January 2021 20211818 278,775 (15,527) 263,248
Loss and total comprehensive loss FEBBREEEEEE
for the year - (75,346) (75,346)
At 31 December 2021 5202141283180 278,775 (90,873) 187,902
Loss and total comprehensive loss for FEBEKREZEEGBERE
the year - (93,951) (93,951)
At 31 December 2022 720225128310 278,775 (184,824) 93,951
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Financial Summary

RAT A&

A summary of the results and assets and liabilities of the Group for ~ANEBBFRAENREENEELEEREEH
the last five financial years are as follows. EW e

Year ended 31 December

H#Z12A31ALEE
RESULTS e 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20226 20214F 20204F 20194 20184F

HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
TER TAET TET TET TET

Continuing and discontinued FEREARLERE

operations e+
Revenue W 297,485 355,524 250,889 246,880 610,761
(Loss)/profit before tax prigAT (B518) s (89,556) (101,626) (55,060) (109,368) 21,869
Income tax (expense)/credit Fiisi (%) /1% (1,428) (1424) (1,104) 1,230 (4/475)
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (BB & (90,984) (103,050) (56,164) (108,138) 17,394
At 31 December
7128318

ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BERARE 2022 2021 2020 2019 2018
20225 20214 2020 20194 20184

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET FHETT TR FETT FHET

Total assets BEHEE 331,274 461,170 536,193 517,742 584,865
Total liabilities BB (235,943) (265,660) (241,354) (283,513) (241,979)
Net assets BEFE 95,331 195,510 294,839 234,229 342,886

This annual report is published in both English and Chinese 7N %R L\ A 55 S T B o AE X fR A 80 A& £ A
languages. Should there be any inconsistency between the Chinese 77 > BE LA SRR A ZE o
and English versions, the English version shall prevail.
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